
 
 

  

  

Contact: Tom Scott 

Tel: 01246 217045 

Email: thomas.scott@ne-derbyshire.gov.uk 

Date: Tuesday, 21 June 2022 

 
To:  All Members of the Audit & Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee 

 
Please attend a meeting of the Audit & Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee to be 
held on Wednesday, 29 June 2022 at 3.00 pm in the Council Chamber, District Council 
Offices, Mill Lane, Wingerworth, Chesterfield S42 6NG. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 

 
Assistant Director of Governance and Monitoring Officer  
 
 

Conservative Group Labour Group Liberal Democrat Group 

 
Cllr W Armitage  
Cllr S Clough 
Cllr B Lewis 
Cllr K Tait 
Cllr M E Thacker   

 
Cllr N Barker  
Cllr P R Kerry 
Cllr G Morley   
 

 
Cllr R Shipman  

 

A G E N D A 
 

1   Apologies for Absence   
 

2   Declarations of Interest   
 

 Members are requested to declare the existence and nature of any disclosable 
pecuniary interest and/or other interest, not already on their register of interests, 
in any item on the agenda and withdraw from the meeting at the appropriate time. 
 

3   Minutes of Last Meeting  (Pages 4 - 7) 
 

 To approve as a correct record and the Chair to sign the Minutes of the Audit and 
Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee held on 11 May 2022. 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 1



 

 
4   Report of the Director of Growth and Assets   

 
a.   Car Parking Strategy  (Pages 8 - 11) 

 
5   Report of the External Auditors - Mazars  (Pages 12 - 43) 

 
a.   Audit Strategy Memorandum   

 
6   Report of the Internal Audit Consortium Manager   

 
a.   Internal Audit Annual Report  (Pages 44 - 57) 

 
b.   Internal Audit Progress Report  (Pages 58 - 76) 

 
c.   CIPFA Publication - Internal Audit Untapped Potential  (Pages 77 - 138) 

 
7   Report of the Managing Director   

 
a.   Risk Management  (Pages 139 - 167) 

 
8   Report of the Director of Finance and Resources (Section 151 Officer)   

 
a.   Medium Term Financial Plan Outturn  (Pages 168 - 192) 

 
9   Report of the Assistant Director of Governance and Monitoring Officer   

 
a.   Committee Work Programme  (Pages 193 - 199) 

 
10   Forward Plan of Executive Decisions   

 
 To consider the Forward Plan of Executive Decisions. The most up-to-date 

Forward Plan of Executive Decisions can be accessed via the following link: 

 
https://democracy.ne-
derbyshire.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=1137&RD=0&bcr=1  
 

11   To consider any other items which the Chair is of the opinion should be 
considered as a matter of urgency.   
 

12   Date of Next Meeting   
 

 The next meeting of the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committtee is 
scheduled to take place on 27 July 2022. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 2

https://democracy.ne-derbyshire.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=1137&RD=0&bcr=1
https://democracy.ne-derbyshire.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=1137&RD=0&bcr=1


 

 
 
 

 

Page 3



 

AUDIT & CORPORATE GOVERNANCE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON WEDNESDAY, 11 MAY 2022 
 

Present: 
 

Councillor Martin E Thacker MBE JP (Chair) (in the Chair) 
 

Councillor Stephen Clough Councillor William Armitage 
Councillor Nigel Barker Councillor Pat Kerry 
Councillor Ross Shipman Councillor Kevin Tait 
 
Also Present: 
 
J Dethick Director of Finance and Resources & (Section 151 Officer) 
K Drury Information Engagement & Performance Manager 
J Williams Internal Audit Consortium Manager 
A Maher Interim Governance Manager 
D Stanton Senior Scrutiny Officer 
 
AUD
103/
21-
22 

Apologies for Absence 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors M Roe and G Morley.  
 

AUD
104/
21-
22 

Declarations of Interest 
 
Members were requested to declare the existence and nature of any 
disclosable pecuniary interest and/or other interest, not already on their 
register of interest, in any item on the agenda and withdraw from the meeting 
at the appropriate time. 
 
No Declarations of Interest were received for the meeting.   
 

AUD
105/
21-
22 

Minutes of Last Meeting 
 
RESOLVED – That the Minutes of the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny 
Committee held on 23 February 2022 be approved as a correct record and signed 
by the Chair. 
 

AUD
106/
21-
22 

Summary of Progress on the Annual Internal Audit Plan 
 
The Committee received a report which updated them on progress in respect 
of the 2021/22 Internal Audit Plan. The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 
required that the Head of Internal Audit report periodically to Members in 
respect of performance against the Audit Plan.  
 
The Committee heard that a full annual report would be brought to the July 
meeting.  
 
RESOLVED – That the update be noted. 
 
 

Page 4

Agenda Item 3



 

AUD
107/
21-
22 

Internal Audit Plan 2022/23 
 
The Internal Audit Consortium Manager presented a report which allowed 
Members to consider the Internal Audit Plan for 2022/23.  
 
The Committee noted that there was currently a vacancy for a Senior Auditor 
and that Members would be kept updated on the recruitment process. The 
Internal Audit Consortium Manager also agreed to bring the report back to the 
Committee if there were any further changes.  
 
The Chair commented that he would like to see a number of risks included 
such as the impact of increased cost of living, as well as international risks 
such as the invasion of Ukraine. The Committee agreed that risks to the 
Council were not only financial but also reputational.   
 
RESOLVED – That 
 

1. The Internal Audit Plan for 2022/23 be agreed. 
2. That it be noted that the Plan is provisional and may need adjusting and 

prioritising in light of any emerging risks/staff shortages etc. 
 

AUD
108/
21-
22 

Performance Management Quarter 4 
 
The Engagement and Performance Manager was present at the meeting to 
report the Quarter 4 outturns for the Council Plan 2019-2023 targets.  
 
It was stated that out of the 80 targets 26 were on track; 2 had been achieved 
this quarter; 12 had achieved their annual outturn; 11 had failed to meet their 
outturn; 1 had been placed on alert; and 3 had been recommended for 
withdrawal by Cabinet.  
 
The Committee discussed planning enforcement and the need to be proactive 
and not reactive. The Engagement and Performance Manager agreed that the 
target needed to be clearer so that Members expectations could be met.  
 
Members also discussed the role of relevant service managers and Portfolio 
Holders in addressing those targets which had failed to meet their outturn. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Quarterly Outturns against the Council Plan 2019-23 
targets be noted. 
 

AUD
109/
21-
22 

Corporate Debt Quarter 4 
 
The Assistant Director – Finance and Resources (S151 Officer) presented a 
report which provided Members with a summary of the corporate debt position 
as at 31 March 2022.  
 
The Committee enquired about the debt collecting process. It was stated that 
the Council’s recovery team were Sundry Debtors and that there was a 
process to prevent and collect debt. Members noted, however, that some debt 
had to be written off due to it not being in the best interests of the Council to 
pursue.  

Page 5



 

 
RESOLVED – That the Committee notes the report concerning the Council’s 
corporate debt position as at 31 March 2022. 
 

AUD
110/
21-
22 

Report on Consideration of the Council's Investments (in relation to the 
Investment Strategy) 
 
The Committee received a report which provided information on the current 
portfolio of cash investments along with alternative options for scrutiny.  
 
Members agreed that the Council’s investment strategy had been typically of 
low yield in the past, and that re-consideration of its long term strategy in 
medium risk opportunities was welcomed. The Assistant Director – Finance 
and Resources (S151 Officer) confirmed that this had been approved by the 
Council’s financial advisors Arlingclose. 
 
The Committee acknowledged that it was important to balance risk and that 
the increased return on investment could make a significant difference to 
projects in North East Derbyshire in the long term. There was a consensus 
that the Strategy should be endorsed. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted and the Committee’s comments be 
passed on to Cabinet.  
 

AUD
111/
21-
22 

Update on the Parking Strategy and its Pilot Schemes 
 
The Assistant Director – Finance and Resources (S151 Officer) gave a verbal 
update to Members in regards to the Parking Strategy and its pilot schemes.  
 
It was stated that District Councils had no legal obligation to provide car parking, 
other than through the planning process for new homes. Members noted, 
however, that addressing parking issues on land within the Council’s housing 
stock was good practice and a strategy to deal with such parking issues had 
recently been produced.  
 
A pilot scheme was approved by Cabinet in April 2021, this also identified a 
ranking scheme to be used to prioritise the 65 sites identified across the district. 
An annual budget of £288k had been allocated for parking in the HRA. 
 
The Committee requested that a report be produced for the next meeting which 
specifically included the full list of sites, prioritised according to the approved 
rankings and a timeline of when works were scheduled for. 
 
RESOLVED – That the update be noted. 
 

AUD
112/
21-
22 

Committee Work Programme 2021-2022 
 
RESOLVED – That the Work Programme for 2021-22 be noted. 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



 

AUD
113/
21-
22 

Forward Plan of Executive Decisions 
 
RESOLVED – That the Forward Plan of Executive Decisions be noted. 
 

AUD
114/
21-
22 

To consider any other items which the Chair is of the opinion should be 
considered as a matter of urgency. 
 
There were no urgent items to be discussed at the meeting. 
 

AUD
115/
21-
22 

Date of Next Meeting 
 
The next meeting of the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee will 
be 29 June 2022 at 3.00 pm. 
 

Page 7



 
 

 
North East Derbyshire District Council  

 
Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee 

 
29 June 2022 

 

 
Car Parking Update 

 

 
Report of the Director of Growth & Assets  

 
Classification:  This report is public 
 
Report By: Matt Broughton - Director of Growth and Assets 
 
Contact Officer:  as above 

 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
PURPOSE/SUMMARY 
 

To provide an update to the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee 
on car parking. 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
1. That the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee note the report. 

  
 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
  
IMPLICATIONS 
  
Finance and Risk         Yes  No  
 
Contained within the report 
 
On Behalf of the Section 151 Officer    
  
Legal including Data Protection     Yes  No 
 
None arising 
 
On Behalf of the Solicitor to the Council  
 
Staffing         Yes  No  
 
There are no staffing issues arising directly from this report. 
 
On Behalf of the Head of Paid Service 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

Page 8

Agenda Item 4a



 
 

 
DECISION INFORMATION 
 

Is the decision a Key Decision? 
A Key Decision is an executive decision 
which has a significant impact on two or 
more District wards or which results in 
income or expenditure to the Council above 
the following thresholds:               

N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BDC:     
 

Revenue - £75,000    
Capital - £150,000     

NEDDC:  
 

Revenue - £100,000  
Capital - £250,000     

 Please indicate which threshold applies 

Is the decision subject to Call-In? 
(Only Key Decisions are subject to Call-In)  
 

N/A 

Has the relevant Portfolio Holder been 
informed 

N/A 

District Wards Affected 
 

All 

Links to Corporate Plan priorities or 
Policy Framework 
 

All  

 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
REPORT DETAILS  
 
1 Car Parking 
 
1.1 At its last meeting the Committee received a verbal update on the Council’s parking 

solutions. District Councils have no legal obligation to provide car parking, other 
than through the planning process for new homes. However, addressing parking 
issues on land within the Council’s housing stock is good practice and a strategy 
to deal with such parking issues has recently been produced. This report provides 
further information on the progress with residential parking solutions on Council 
owned land for the Committee’s information.  

1.2 Lack of residential parking on Council owned estates has been an issue throughout 
the district for a number of years and with car ownership far exceeding the 
available parking on the majority of the Council’s housing estates, there are 
increasing issues with accessibility, unsafe parking and access for 
service/emergency vehicles. There has been an historic lack of investment in 
parking and other infrastructure assets which will begin to be addressed through 
this parking strategy.  

1.3 The Communities Scrutiny Committee recently made a number of 
recommendations in relation to parking solutions for residents including 
investigation of the effectiveness of using Grasscrete at suitable locations within 
the District to offer further parking opportunities for residents. 

 

Page 9



 
 

1.4 As part of the response to the Residential Parking Scrutiny Review, the Council 

began working on a strategy to improve residential parking.  This was considered 

and agreed by Cabinet on 27 January 2022. The focus of the strategy at this 

stage is to identify priority areas through assessment against agreed criteria, 

then review after each phase. New priority areas identified will be assessed 

alongside those already on the list.  

1.5 A budget of £288k per annum has been allocated in the HRA Capital Programme 
for residential parking solutions on the Council’s estates. A set of criteria to rank 
the residential parking locations that would benefit from improvement work has 
been applied. The criteria is: 

 
   1. Vulnerable *, Council owned* and quick win* 
   2. Vulnerable and quick win 
   3. Vulnerable and council owned 
   4. Council owned and quick win 
   5. Only one criterion met 
 
 Definitions: 
 
  *Vulnerable – more than 50% of properties benefitting are either bungalows or 

ground floor flats. This approach may miss some properties that have been 
specifically adapted but is a good gauge. 

 *Council owned – over 50% of properties in the direct vicinity are owned by NEDDC 
*Quick win – Can be carried out with minimal involvement from other Authorities 

or private landowners and do not need special permissions 

1.6 Prior to the above critera being agreed, a pilot project was established which aimed 
to provide parking solutions in three areas of the district - Holymoorside, 
Apperknowle and Kelstedge.  

 
1.7 Following consultation at Holymoorside, the proposed solutions were not 

considered suitable to remedy the issues identified. The Apperknowle scheme has 
been granted planning permission and work is ongoing to discharge planning 
conditions. Part of the scheme requires approval from DCC so will be undertaken 
at a later date. The public consultation for the village wide scheme at Kelstedge 
was delayed due to Covid-19 and a revised date has not yet been provided.  

 
1.8 In addition to the schemes identified, a trial project using grass protection matting 

was approved. Adlington Avenue, Wingerworth, was chosen as a viable site and 
agreed. If the trial is successful, other suitable sites will be identified and 
considered. 

 
1.9 A working group has been established to prioritise areas for future consideration 

and this will be done on an annual basis whilst resources allow. Each year, new 

priority areas identified will be assessed alongside those already on the list and 

prioritised by the criteria set out above.  

1.10 There are some learning points to be gained from the initial phase which need 

further consideration as the schemes progress alongside some consideration with 

regards to delivery capacity and ongoing maintenance costs/liabilities.   

 

Page 10



 
 

2 Reasons for Recommendation  
 
2.1 To update the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee on the current 

position regards residential car parking on Council owned estates. 

 
3 Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection 
 
3.1 No alternative options, the report is for information only 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
DOCUMENT INFORMATION 
 

Appendix No 
 

Title 

 
 
 

 
 

Background Papers (These are unpublished works which have been relied 
on to a material extent when preparing the report.  They must be listed in the 
section below.  If the report is going to Cabinet (NEDDC) or Executive (BDC) 
you must provide copies of the background papers) 

 

Report Author 
 

Contact Number 

Matt Broughton Director of Growth and Assets  01246 217512 

 
 

Page 11



Audit Strategy Memorandum

P
age 12

A
genda Item

 5



01

02

03

04

05

06

07

08

Contents

Engagement and responsibilities summary

Your audit engagement team

Audit scope, approach and timeline

Significant risks and other key judgement areas

Value for money

Fees for audit and other services

Our commitment to independence

Materiality and misstatements

Appendix – Key communication points

This document is to be regarded as confidential to North East Derbyshire District Council. It has been prepared for the sole use of Audit & Corporate Overview Scrutiny Committee as the appropriate sub-committee charged 

with governance. No responsibility is accepted to any other person in respect of the whole or part of its contents. Our written consent must first be obtained before this document, or any part of it, is disclosed to a third party.

2

P
age 13



Audit & Corporate Overview Scrutiny Committee

North East Derbyshire District Council 

2013 Mill lane
Wingerworth
Chesterfield
S42 6NG 

June 2022

Dear Committee Members

Audit Strategy Memorandum – Year ending 31 March 2022 

We are pleased to present our Audit Strategy Memorandum for North East District Council for the year ending 31 March 2022. The purpose of this document is to summarise our audit approach, highlight significant audit risks and 
areas of key judgements and provide you with the details of our audit team. As it is a fundamental requirement that an auditor is, and is seen to be, independent of its clients, section 7 of this document also summarises our 
considerations and conclusions on our independence as auditors. We consider two-way communication with you to be key to a successful audit and important in:

• reaching a mutual understanding of the scope of the audit and the responsibilities of each of us;

• sharing information to assist each of us to fulfil our respective responsibilities;

• providing you with constructive observations arising from the audit process; and

• ensuring that we, as external auditors, gain an understanding of your attitude and views in respect of the internal and external operational, financial, compliance and other risks facing North East Derbyshire District Council 
which may affect the audit, including the likelihood of those risks materialising and how they are monitored and managed.

With that in mind, we see this document, which has been prepared following our initial planning discussions with management, as being the basis for a discussion around our audit approach, any questions, concerns or input you 
may have on our approach or role as auditor. This document also contains an appendix that outlines our key communications with you during the course of the audit,

Client service is extremely important to us, and we strive to provide technical excellence with the highest level of service quality, together with continuous improvement to exceed your expectations so, if you have any concerns or 
comments about this document or audit approach, please contact me on mark.surridge@mazars.co.uk.

Yours faithfully

Mark Surridge 

Mazars LLP

Mazars LLP

2 Chamberlain Square

Birmingham

B3 3AX

Mazars LLP – First floor, Two Chamberlain Square, Birmingham, B3 3AX

Tel: 0121 232 9500– www.mazars.co.uk

Mazars LLP is the UK firm of Mazars, an integrated international advisory and accountancy organisation. Mazars LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales with registered number OC308299 and with its registered office at Tower Bridge House, St Katharine’s Way, 

London E1W 1DD.

We are registered to carry on audit work in the UK by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Details about our audit registration can be viewed at www.auditregister.org.uk under reference number C001139861. VAT number: 839 8356 73

P
age 14

mailto:mark.surridge@mazars.co.uk
http://www.mazars.co.uk/


Section 01:

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

P
age 15



Value for money
We are also responsible for forming a commentary on the 

arrangements that the Council has in place to secure economy, 

efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.  We discuss our 

approach to Value for Money work further in section 5 of this report.

1. Engagement and responsibilities summary

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas

Value for money
Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements

Appendices

Audit opinion
We are responsible for forming and expressing an opinion on the 

financial statements. Our audit does not relieve management or 

Audit & Corporate Overview Scrutiny Committee, as those charged 

with governance, of their responsibilities.

The section 151 officer is responsible for the assessment of 

whether is it appropriate for the Council to prepare its accounts on 

a going concern basis. As auditors, we are required to obtain 

sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding and conclude on a) 

whether a material uncertainty related to going concern exists; and 

b) consider the appropriateness of the section 151 officer’s use of 

the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the 

financial statements.

Fraud
The responsibility for safeguarding assets and for the prevention and 

detection of fraud, error and non-compliance with law or regulations rests 

with both those charged with governance and management. This includes 

establishing and maintaining internal controls over reliability of financial 

reporting.  

As part of our audit procedures in relation to fraud we are required to 

enquire of those charged with governance, including key management and 

Internal audit, as to their knowledge of instances of fraud, the risk of fraud 

and their views on internal controls that mitigate the fraud risks. In 

accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK), we plan and 

perform our audit so as to obtain reasonable assurance that the financial 

statements taken as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether 

caused by fraud or error. However our audit should not be relied upon to 

identify all such misstatements.

Wider reporting and electors’ rights
We report to the NAO on the consistency of the Council’s financial

statements with its Whole of Government Accounts (WGA) submission.

The 2014 Act requires us to give an elector, or any representative of the

elector, the opportunity to question us about the accounting records of the

Council and consider any objection made to the accounts. We also have a

broad range of reporting responsibilities and powers that are unique to the

audit of local authorities in the United Kingdom

5

Responsibilities

Overview of engagement

We are appointed to perform the external audit of North East Derbyshire District Council (the Council) for the year to 31 March 2022. The scope of our engagement is set out in the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and 

Audited Bodies, issued by Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) available from the PSAA website: https://www.psaa.co.uk/managing-audit-quality/statement-of-responsibilities-of-auditors-and-audited-bodies/. Our 

responsibilities are principally derived from the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the 2014 Act) and the Code of Audit Practice issued by the National Audit Office (NAO), as outlined below.

P
age 16

https://www.psaa.co.uk/managing-audit-quality/statement-of-responsibilities-of-auditors-and-audited-bodies/


Section 02:

Your audit engagement team

P
age 17



2. Your audit engagement team

7

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas

Value for money
Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements

Appendices

Individual Role Contact details

Mark Surridge Engagement Lead Mark.surridge@mazars.co.uk

+44 (0)7875 974 291 

Nomfundo Magwaza Audit Manager Nomfundo.Magwaza@mazars.co.uk

+44 (0)7790 886 841

P
age 18

mailto:Mark.surridge@mazars.co.uk
mailto:Leah.parsons@mazars.co.uk


Section 03:

Audit scope, approach and timeline

8

P
age 19



3. Audit scope, approach and timeline

Audit scope

Our audit approach is designed to provide an audit that complies with all professional requirements.

Our audit of the financial statements will be conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK), relevant ethical and professional standards, our own audit approach and in accordance with the terms of our 
engagement. Our work is focused on those aspects of your activities which we consider to have a higher risk of material misstatement, such as those impacted by management judgement and estimation, application of new 
accounting standards, changes of accounting policy, changes to operations or areas which have been found to contain material errors in the past.

Audit approach

Our audit approach is risk-based and primarily driven by the issues that we consider lead to a higher risk of material misstatement of the accounts. Once we have completed our risk assessment, we develop our audit strategy and 
design audit procedures in response to this assessment.

If we conclude that appropriately-designed controls are in place, then we may plan to test and rely upon these controls. If we decide controls are not appropriately designed, or we decide it would be more efficient to do so, we may 
take a wholly substantive approach to our audit testing. Substantive procedures are audit procedures designed to detect material misstatements at the assertion level and comprise tests of details (of classes of transactions, 
account balances, and disclosures); and substantive analytical procedures. Irrespective of the assessed risks of material misstatement, which take into account our evaluation of the operating effectiveness of controls, we are 
required to design and perform substantive procedures for each material class of transactions, account balance, and disclosure.

Our audit will be planned and performed so as to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement and give a true and fair view. The concept of materiality and how we define a 
misstatement is explained in more detail in section 8.

The diagram on the next page outlines the procedures we perform at the different stages of the audit. 

9

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas

Value for money
Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements

Appendices

P
age 20



10

3. Audit scope, approach and timeline

Reliance on internal audit

Where possible we will seek to utilise the work performed by internal audit to modify the nature, extent and

timing of our audit procedures. We will meet with internal audit to discuss the progress and findings of their

work prior to the commencement of our controls evaluation procedures, and we will take the Head of Internal

Audit’s Annual Report findings into account in forming our Value for Money Conclusion.

Management’s and our experts

Management makes use of experts in specific areas when preparing the Council’s financial statements. We

also use experts to assist us to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence on specific items of account.

Service organisations

International Auditing Standards (UK) (ISAs) define service organisations as third party organisations that

provide services to the Council that are part of its information systems relevant to financial reporting. We are

required to obtain an understanding of the services provided by service organisations as well as evaluating the

design and implementation of controls over those services. We have not identified any service organisations

that are relevant for the purpose of our audit.

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas

Value for money
Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements

Appendices

Item of account Management’s expert Our expert

Property, Plant and 

Equipment  & Investment 

Properties

John Knight

Internal Valuer 

None. 

We may utilize third party 

evidence provided via the 

NAO to support our 

challenge of valuation 

assumptions. 

Wilks, Head & Eve

The Council’s external valuer (non-

dwellings) 

Barlow Property Consultancy

The Council’s external valuer (dwellings)

Pensions Hymans Robertson 

Actuary for Derbyshire Pension Fund 

(LGPS)

PwC LLP (Consulting 

actuary appointed by the 

National Audit Office).

Financial Instrument 

disclosures

Arlingclose 

Treasury management advisors

None. 

Business Rates Appeals 

Valuation

Inform CPI Ltd NoneP
age 21



11

3. Audit scope, approach and timeline

Planning January–February 2022

• Planning visit and developing our understanding of the Council

• Initial opinion and value for money risk assessments

• Considering proposed accounting treatments and accounting policies

• Developing the audit strategy and planning the audit work to be performed

• Agreeing timetable and deadlines

• Preliminary analytical review

Completion By November 2022

• Final review and disclosure checklist of financial statements

• Final partner review

• Agreeing content of letter of representation

• Reporting to the Audit & Corporate Overview Scrutiny Committee

• Reviewing subsequent events

• Signing the auditor’s report

• Issuing the Auditor’s Annual Report 

Interim March 2022

• Documenting systems and controls

• Performing walkthroughs

• Interim controls testing including tests of IT general controls

• Early substantive testing of transactions

• Reassessment of audit plan and revision if necessary

Fieldwork July-August 2022

• Receiving and reviewing draft financial statements

• Receiving and reviewing the Annual Governance Statement 

• Reassessment of audit plan and revision if necessary

• Executing the strategy starting with significant risks and high risk areas

• Ongoing assessment of potential VFM risks

• Communicating progress and issues

• Clearance meeting

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas

Value for money
Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements

Appendices

DLUHC has yet to confirm the 2021/22 draft accounts and audited accounts deadlines. These are expected to be 31st July 2022 and 30th November 2022 respectively.P
age 22



Section 04:

Significant risks and other key 
judgement areas

12

P
age 23



4. Significant risks and other key judgement areas

Following the risk assessment approach discussed in section 3 of this document, we have identified risks 
relevant to the audit of financial statements. The risks that we identify are categorised as significant, enhanced 
or standard. The definitions of the level of risk rating are given below:

Significant risk

A significant risk is an identified and assessed risk of material misstatement that, in the auditor’s judgment, 
requires special audit consideration. For any significant risk, the auditor shall obtain an understanding of the 
entity’s controls, including control activities relevant to that risk.

Enhanced risk

An enhanced risk is an area of higher assessed risk of material misstatement at audit assertion level other than 
a significant risk. Enhanced risks require additional consideration but does not rise to the level of a significant 
risk, these include but may not be limited to:

• key areas of management judgement, including accounting estimates which are material but are not 
considered to give rise to a significant risk of material misstatement; and

• other audit assertion risks arising from significant events or transactions that occurred during the period.

Standard risk

This is related to relatively routine, non-complex transactions that tend to be subject to systematic processing 
and require little management judgement. Although it is considered that there is a risk of material misstatement 
(RMM), there are no elevated or special factors related to the nature, the likely magnitude of the potential 
misstatements or the likelihood of the risk occurring. 

13

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas

Value for money
Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements

Appendices

Summary risk assessment

The summary risk assessment, illustrated in the table below, highlights those risks which we deem to be significant 
and other enhanced risks in respect of the Council.  We have summarised our audit response to these risks on the 
next page.

Key:            Significant risk                Enhanced risk  

3
2

1

H
ig

h

HighLow

L
o
w

Likelihood

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l im
p

a
c
t

1.  Management override of controls

2. Valuation of the net defined benefit liability

3.  Valuation of land and buildings

P
age 24



4. Significant risks and other key judgement areas

Specific identified audit risks and planned testing strategy

We have presented below in more detail the reasons for the risk assessment highlighted above, and also our testing approach with respect to significant risks. An audit is a dynamic process, should we change our view of risk or 
approach to address the identified risks during the course of our audit, we will report this to Audit & Corporate Overview Scrutiny Committee.

Significant risks

Description Fraud Error Judgement Planned response

1 Management override of controls 

This is a mandatory significant risk on all audits due to the 

unpredictable way in which such override could occur.

Management at various levels within an organisation are in a unique 

position to perpetrate fraud because of their ability to manipulate 

accounting records and prepare fraudulent financial statements by 

overriding controls that otherwise appear to be operating effectively. 

Due to the unpredictable way in which such override could occur 

there is a risk of material misstatement due to fraud on 

all audits.

We plan to address the management override of controls risk through 

performing audit work over accounting estimates, journal entries and 

significant transactions outside the normal course of business or otherwise 

unusual. 

14

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas

Value for money
Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements

Appendices

P
age 25



4. Significant risks and other key judgement areas

Significant risks

Description Fraud Error Judgement Planned response

2 Net defined benefit liability valuation

The defined benefit liability relating to the Local Government 

Pension Scheme represents a significant balance on the Council’s 

balance sheet.

The Council uses an actuary for the scheme to provide an annual 

valuation of these liabilities in line with the requirements of IAS 19 

Employee Benefits.

Due to the high degree of estimation uncertainty associated with this 

valuation, we have determined there is a significant risk in this area.

We plan to address the risk by:

• assessing the competency, objectivity and independence of the Actuary 

at the Pension Scheme;

• liaising with the auditors of the Derbyshire Pension Fund to gain 

assurance over the design and implementation of controls in place at the 

Derbyshire Pension Fund. This will include the processes and controls in 

place to ensure data provided to the Actuary by the Pension Fund for the 

purposes of the IAS 19 valuation is complete and accurate;

• reviewing the appropriateness of the Pension Asset and Liability valuation 

methodologies applied by the Pension Fund Actuary (as applicable), and 

the key assumptions included within the valuation. This will include 

comparing them to expected ranges, utilising information by the 

consulting actuary engaged by the National Audit Office; and

• agreeing the data in the IAS 19 valuation reports provided by the Actuary 

for accounting purposes to the pension accounting entries and 

disclosures in the Council’s financial statements.

15

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas

Value for money
Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements

Appendices

P
age 26



4. Significant risks and other key judgement areas

Significant risks 

16

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas

Value for money
Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements

Appendices

Description Fraud Error Judgement Planned response

3 Valuation of  land, building, council dwellings and investment 

properties 

The Council’s accounts contain material balances and disclosures 

relating to its holding of council dwellings, land & buildings and 

investment properties, with the majority required to be carried at 

valuation.

The valuation of these assets is complex and is subject to a number 

of management assumptions and judgements.

Due to the high degree of estimation uncertainty associated, we 

have determined there is a significant risk in this area.

We plan to address this risk by:

• critically assessing the scope of work, qualifications, objectivity and 

independence of each of the Council’s valuers to carry out the required 

programme of revaluations;

• considering whether the overall revaluation methodologies used by the 

Council’s valuers are in line with industry practice, the CIPFA code of 

practice and the Council’s accounting policies; 

• assessing whether valuation movements are in line with market 

expectations by considering valuation trends; 

• critically assessing the approach that the Council adopts to ensure that 

assets that are not subject to revaluation in 2021/22 are materially 

correct, including considering the robustness of that approach in light of 

the valuation information reported by the Councils valuers; 

• considering movements in market indices between revaluation dates and 

the year end in order to determine whether these indicate that values 

have moved materially over that time; and 

• considering engaging our own valuation expert to support our work.

P
age 27



Section 05:

Value for money

17

P
age 28



18

6. Value for Money

The framework for Value for Money work

We are required to form a view as to whether the Council has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and

effectiveness in its use of resources. The NAO issues guidance to auditors that underpins the work we are required to carry out

in order to form our view, and sets out the overall criterion and sub-criteria that we are required to consider.

The new Code of Audit Practice (the Code) has changed the way in which we report our findings in relation to Value for Money

(VFM) arrangements from 2020/21. We are still required to be satisfied that the Council has proper arrangements in place and to

report in the auditor’s report where we identify significant weaknesses in arrangements. However, the key output of our work on

VFM arrangements will now be a commentary on the Council’s arrangements which will form part of the Auditor’s Annual Report.

Specified reporting criteria

The Code requires us to structure our commentary to report under three specified criteria:

1. Financial sustainability – how the Council plans and manages its resources to ensure it can continue to deliver its services

2. Governance – how the Council ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly manages its risks

3. Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness – how the Council uses information about its costs and performance to 

improve the way it manages and delivers its services

Our approach

Our work falls into three primary phases as outlined opposite. We need to gather sufficient evidence to support our commentary

on the Council’s arrangements and to identify and report on any significant weaknesses in arrangements. Where significant

weaknesses are identified we are required to report these to the Council and make recommendations for improvement. Such

recommendations can be made at any point during the audit cycle and we are not expected to wait until issuing our overall

commentary to do so.

Identified risks of significant weaknesses in arrangements

We reported our 2020/21 VFM commentary in the Annual Auditor’s Report issued to the Council in December 2021. We reported 

that we had not identified any risks of, or actual, significant weaknesses in the Council’s VFM arrangements and there were no 

recommendations arising from our work. Our 2021/22 planning and risk assessment work, at this stage, has not identified any 

risks of, or actual, significant weaknesses. We will, if necessary, report any identified risks or weaknesses to the Audit and 

Corporate Overview Scrutiny Committee through our Audit Completion Report.

Engagement and 
responsibilities 

summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Extended
auditor’s report

Significant risks and 
key judgement areas

Value for money
Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements

Appendices

Planning

Obtaining an understanding of the Council’s arrangements for each 

specified reporting criteria.  Relevant information sources will include:

• NAO guidance and supporting information

• Information from internal and external sources including 

regulators

• Knowledge from previous audits and other audit work undertaken 

in the year

• Interviews and discussions with staff and members

Additional risk 

based 

procedures and 

evaluation

Reporting

Where our planning work identifies risks of significant weaknesses, 

we will undertake additional procedures to determine whether there is 

a significant weakness.

We will provide a summary of the work we have undertaken and our 

judgements against each of the specified reporting criteria as part of 

our commentary on arrangements.  This will form part of the Auditor’s 

Annual Report.

Our commentary will also highlight:

• Significant weaknesses identified and our recommendations for 

improvement

• Emerging issues or other matters that do not represent significant 

weaknesses but still require attention from the Council. 

P
age 29



Section 06:

Fees for audit and other services

19

P
age 30



Fees for work as the Council’s appointed auditor

Details of the 2020/21 Actual and indicative 2021/22 Audit fees in line with PSAA and other reporting mechanisms are set out below.

6. Fees for audit and other services

20

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas

Value for money
Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements

Appendices

Area of work 2021/22 Proposed Fee 2020/21 Actual Fee

Scale audit fee £43,510 £43,510

Fee variations:

Additional testing on Property, Plant & Equipment and Defined Benefit Pensions Schemes as a 

result of changes in regulatory expectations.
£7,700 1 £7,067

Additional testing as a result of the implementation of new auditing standards: ISA 220 (Revised): 

Quality control of an audit of financial statements; ISA 540 (Revised): Auditing accounting estimates 

and related disclosures; ISA570 (Revised) Going Concern; and ISA 600 (Revised): Specific 

considerations –audit of group financial statements.

£2,900 2 £2,892

Other 

(Covid-19 Grants and Additional Testing on asset valuations)
TBC £1,188

Sub-total £54,110 £54,657

Additional work arising from the change in the Code of Audit Practice £9,000 3 £9,293

Grand Total £63,110 4 £63,950

We continue to liaise with PSAA 

regarding fee variations and sector-wide 

adjustments to the scale fee.

1 As previously reported to you, the scale 

fee has been adjusted to take into 

account the additional work required as a 

result of increased regulatory 

expectations in these areas.

2 For 2020/21, new auditing standards 

have been introduced which will lead to 

additional audit work not reflected in the 

scale fee. 

3 As explained in section 5, the revised 

Code of Audit Practice has led to a 

substantial amount of additional audit 

work to support the new value for money 

conclusion and the changes in reporting 

requirements. The final fee will take into 

account the extent and complexity of any 

significant weaknesses in arrangements 

we identify.

4 This is a proposed fee for 2021/22 at 

the point of the issue of our ASM. This 

figure is subject to change and additional 

costs will be discussed with 

management.

P
age 31



6. Fees for audit and other services

Fees for non-PSAA work

In addition to the fees outlined above in relation to our appointment by PSAA, we have been separately engaged 
by the Council to carry out additional work as set out in the table below. Before agreeing to undertake any 
additional work, we consider whether there are any actual, potential or perceived threats to our independence. 
Further information about our responsibilities in relation to independence is provided in section 7.

21

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas

Value for money
Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements

Appendices

Area of work 2021/22 Estimated Fee 2020/21 Actual Fee

Other Services – Pooling of Housing Capital 

Receipts Assurance
£4,000 £4,000

Other Services - Housing Benefits Subsidy 

Assurance 
£7,000 £7,000

P
age 32



Section 07:

Our commitment to independence

22

P
age 33



7. Our commitment to independence

We are committed to independence and are required by the Financial Reporting Council to confirm to you at 
least annually in writing that we comply with the FRC’s Ethical Standard. In addition, we communicate any 
matters or relationship which we believe may have a bearing on our independence or the objectivity of the 
audit team.

The Ethical Standard 2019 is applicable for any non-audit services commencing on or after 15 March 2020.

Based on the information provided by you and our own internal procedures to safeguard our independence as 
auditors, we confirm that in our professional judgement there are no relationships between us and any of our 
related or subsidiary entities, and you and your related entities creating any unacceptable threats to our 
independence within the regulatory or professional requirements governing us as your auditors.

We have policies and procedures in place which are designed to ensure that we carry out our work with 
integrity, objectivity and independence. These policies include:

• All partners and staff are required to complete an annual independence declaration;

• All new partners and staff are required to complete an independence confirmation and also complete 
computer based ethical training;

• Rotation policies covering audit engagement partners and other key members of the audit team; and

• Use by managers and partners of our client and engagement acceptance system which requires all non-
audit services to be approved in advance by the audit engagement partner.

We confirm, as at the date of this document, that the engagement team and others in the firm as appropriate, 
Mazars LLP are independent and comply with relevant ethical requirements. However, if at any time you have 
concerns or questions about our integrity, objectivity or independence please discuss these with Mark Surridge 
in the first instance.

Prior to the provision of any non-audit services Mark Surridge will undertake appropriate procedures to consider 
and fully assess the impact that providing the service may have on our auditor independence.

Principal threats to our independence and identified associated safeguards in relation to the planned non-audit 
work for 2021/22 are set out below. Any emerging independence threats and associated identified safeguards 
will be communicated in our Audit Completion Report.

23

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas

Value for money
Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements

Appendices

Issue

Pooling of Housing Capital

Receipts assurance

Housing Benefits Subsidy

Assurance

We have considered threats and safeguards as follows:

• Self Review: The work does not involve the preparation of 

information that has a material impact upon the financial 

statements subject to audit by Mazars;

• Self Interest: The total fee level is not deemed to be material to 

the Council or Mazars. The work undertaken is not paid on a 

contingency basis;

• Management: The work does not involve Mazars making any 

decisions on behalf of management;

• Advocacy: The work does not involve Mazars advocating the 

Council to third parties;

• Familiarity: Work is not deemed to give rise to a familiarity threat 

given this piece of assurance work used to fall under the Audit 

Commission / PSAA certification regimes and was the

responsibility of the Council’s appointed auditor; and

• Intimidation: The nature of the work does not give rise to any 

intimidation threat from management to Mazars.

P
age 34



Section 08:

Materiality and misstatements

24

P
age 35



8. Materiality and misstatements

Summary of initial materiality thresholds Materiality

Materiality is an expression of the relative significance or importance of a particular matter in the context of 
financial statements as a whole. 

Misstatements in financial statements are considered to be material if they, individually or in aggregate, could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial 
statements. 

Judgements on materiality are made in light of surrounding circumstances and are affected by the size and 
nature of a misstatement, or a combination of both. Judgements about materiality are based on consideration of 
the common financial information needs of users as a group and not on specific individual users.

The assessment of what is material is a matter of professional judgement and is affected by our perception of 
the financial information needs of the users of the financial statements. In making our assessment we assume 
that users:

• have a reasonable knowledge of business, economic activities and accounts; 

• have a willingness to study the information in the financial statements with reasonable diligence;

• understand that financial statements are prepared, presented and audited to levels of materiality;

• recognise the uncertainties inherent in the measurement of amounts based on the use of estimates, 
judgement and the consideration of future events; and

• will make reasonable economic decisions on the basis of the information in the financial statements.

We consider materiality whilst planning and performing our audit based on quantitative and qualitative factors. 

Whilst planning, we make judgements about the size of misstatements which we consider to be material and which 
provides a basis for determining the nature, timing and extent of risk assessment procedures, identifying and 
assessing the risk of material misstatement and determining the nature, timing and extent of further audit procedures.

The materiality determined at the planning stage does not necessarily establish an amount below which 
uncorrected misstatements, either individually or in aggregate, will be considered as immaterial. 

25

North East Derbyshire District Council: Threshold
Initial threshold

£’000s

Overall materiality 1,700

Performance materiality 1,360

Specific materiality (Senior Officers remuneration - on the basis this is 

qualitatively material owing to public interest)
5

Trivial threshold for errors to be reported to the Audit & Corporate 

Overview Scrutiny Committee
50

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas

Value for money
Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements

Appendices

P
age 36



8. Materiality and misstatements

Materiality (continued)

We revise materiality for the financial statements as our audit progresses should we become aware of 
information that would have caused us to determine a different amount had we been aware of that information 
at the planning stage.

Our provisional materiality is set based on a benchmark of Gross Revenue Expenditure at Surplus/deficit on 
Provision of Services level for 2020/21. We will identify a figure for materiality but identify separate levels for 
procedures designed to detect individual errors, and also a level above which all identified errors will be 
reported to the Audit & Corporate Overview Scrutiny Committee

We consider that the Gross Revenue Expenditure remains the key focus of users of the financial statements 
and, as such, we base our materiality levels around this benchmark. 

We expect to set a materiality threshold at 2% of Gross Revenue Expenditure. Based on prior year financial 
statements we anticipate the overall materiality for the year ending 31 March 2022 to be in the region of 
£1,700k.

After setting initial materiality, we continue to monitor materiality throughout the audit to ensure that it is set at 
an appropriate level.

Performance Materiality

Performance materiality is the amount or amounts set by the auditor at less than materiality for the financial 
statements as a whole to reduce, to an appropriately low level, the probability that the aggregate of uncorrected 
and undetected misstatements exceeds materiality for the financial statements as a whole. Our initial 
assessment of performance materiality is based on low inherent risk, meaning that we have applied 80% of 
overall materiality as performance materiality.

Misstatements

We accumulate misstatements identified during the audit that are other than clearly trivial.  We set a level of 
triviality for individual errors identified (a reporting threshold) for reporting to the Audit & Corporate Overview 
Scrutiny Committee Committee that is consistent with the level of triviality that we consider would not need to 
be accumulated because we expect that the accumulation of such amounts would not have a material effect on 
the financial statements.  Based on our preliminary assessment of overall materiality, our proposed triviality 
threshold is £50k based on 3% of overall materiality.  If you have any queries about this, please do not hesitate 
to raise these with Mark Surridge.

Reporting to the Audit & Corporate Overview Scrutiny Committee

The following three types of audit differences above the trivial threshold will be presented to the Audit & 
Corporate Overview Scrutiny Committee :

• summary of adjusted audit differences;

• summary of unadjusted audit differences; and 

• summary of disclosure differences (adjusted and unadjusted).

26

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas

Value for money
Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements

Appendices

P
age 37



Appendix: Key communication points
A

27

P
age 38



Appendix: Key communication points

We value communication with Those Charged With Governance as a two-way feedback process at the heart of 
our client service commitment. ISA 260 (UK) ‘Communication with Those Charged with Governance’ and ISA 
265 (UK) ‘Communicating Deficiencies In Internal Control To Those Charged With Governance And 
Management’ specifically require us to communicate a number of points with you.

Relevant points that need to be communicated with you at each stage of the audit are outlined below.

Form, timing and content of our communications

We will present the following reports:

• Audit Strategy Memorandum;

• Audit Completion Report; and

• Auditor’s Annual Report

These documents will be discussed with management prior to being presented to yourselves and their 
comments will be incorporated as appropriate.

Key communication points at the planning stage as included in this Audit 
Strategy Memorandum

• Our responsibilities in relation to the audit of the financial statements;

• The planned scope and timing of the audit;

• Significant audit risks and areas of management judgement;

• Our commitment to independence;

• Responsibilities for preventing and detecting errors;

• Materiality and misstatements; and

• Fees for audit and other services.

Key communication points at the completion stage to be included in our 
Audit Completion Report

• Significant deficiencies in internal control;

• Significant findings from the audit;

• Significant matters discussed with management;

• Our conclusions on the significant audit risks and areas of 
management judgement;

• Summary of misstatements;

• Management representation letter;

• Our proposed draft audit report; and

• Independence.

28

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas

Value for money
Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements

Appendices

P
age 39



29

Appendix: Key communication points

ISA (UK) 260 ‘Communication with Those Charged with Governance’, ISA (UK) 265 ‘Communicating Deficiencies In Internal Control To Those Charged With Governance And Management’ and other ISAs (UK) specifically require 
us to communicate the following:

Required communication Where addressed

Our responsibilities in relation to the financial statement audit and those of management and those charged 

with governance.

Audit Strategy Memorandum

The planned scope and timing of the audit including any limitations, specifically including with respect to 

significant risks.

Audit Strategy Memorandum

With respect to misstatements:

• uncorrected misstatements and their effect on our audit opinion;

• the effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods;

• a request that any uncorrected misstatement is corrected; and

• in writing, corrected misstatements that are significant.

Audit Completion Report

With respect to fraud communications:

• enquiries of the Audit & Corporate Overview Scrutiny Committee to determine whether they have a 

knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the entity;

• any fraud that we have identified or information we have obtained that indicates that fraud may exist; and

• a discussion of any other matters related to fraud.

Audit Completion Report and discussion at the Audit & Corporate Overview Scrutiny Committee, 

Audit planning and clearance meetings

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas

Value for money
Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements

Appendices

P
age 40



30

Appendix: Key communication points

Required communication Where addressed

Significant matters arising during the audit in connection with the entity’s related parties including, 

when applicable:

• non-disclosure by management;

• inappropriate authorisation and approval of transactions;

• disagreement over disclosures;

• non-compliance with laws and regulations; and

• difficulty in identifying the party that ultimately controls the entity.

Audit Completion Report

Significant findings from the audit including:

• our view about the significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices including accounting policies, 

accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures;

• significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit;

• significant matters, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed with management or were the subject 

of correspondence with management;

• written representations that we are seeking;

• expected modifications to the audit report; and

• other matters, if any, significant to the oversight of the financial reporting process or otherwise identified in the 

course of the audit that we believe will be relevant to the Audit & Corporate Overview Scrutiny Committee in 

the context of fulfilling their responsibilities.

Audit Completion Report

Significant deficiencies in internal controls identified during the audit. Audit Completion Report

Where relevant, any issues identified with respect to authority to obtain external confirmations or inability to 

obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence from other procedures.

Audit Completion Report

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas

Value for money
Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements

Appendices

P
age 41



31

Appendix: Key communication points

Required communication Where addressed

Audit findings regarding non-compliance with laws and regulations where the non-compliance is material and 

believed to be intentional (subject to compliance with legislation on tipping off) and enquiry of  the Audit & 

Corporate Overview Scrutiny Committee into possible instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations 

that may have a material effect on the financial statements and that Governance, Audit and Standards 

Committee may be aware of.

Audit Completion Report and Audit & Corporate Overview Scrutiny Committee

With respect to going concern, events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s 

ability to continue as a going concern, including:

• whether the events or conditions constitute a material uncertainty;

• whether the use of the going concern assumption is appropriate in the preparation and presentation of the 

financial statements; and

• the adequacy of related disclosures in the financial statements.

Audit Completion Report

Reporting on the valuation methods applied to the various items in the annual financial statements including any 

impact of changes of such methods

Audit Completion Report 

Indication of whether all requested explanations and documents were provided by the entity Audit Completion Report 

Engagement and 
responsibilities summary

Your audit
engagement team

Audit scope,
approach and timeline

Significant risks and key 
judgement areas

Value for money
Fees for audit and

other services
Our commitment to 

independence
Materiality and 
misstatements

Appendices

P
age 42



Mazars

Mazars is an internationally integrated partnership, specialising in audit, accountancy, advisory, tax 

and legal services*. Operating in over 90 countries and territories around the world, we draw on the 

expertise of 40,400 professionals – 24,400 in Mazars’ integrated partnership and 16,000 via the 

Mazars North America Alliance – to assist clients of all sizes at every stage in their development.

*where permitted under applicable country laws.

First Floor

Two Chamberlain Square

Birmingham, B3 3AX

Mark Surridge

P
age 43



North East Derbyshire District Council 
 

Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee 
 

29th June 2022 
 

INTERNAL AUDIT CONSORTIUM ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22 
 

Report of the Head of the Internal Audit Consortium  
 

Classification: This report is public     
 
Report By:           Head of the Internal Audit Consortium  
 
Contact Officer: Jenny Williams 
   Jenny.Williams@ne-Derbyshire.gov.uk 
 

 
PURPOSE / SUMMARY 
 
The purpose of this report is to: -  

 

 Present a summary of the internal audit work undertaken during 2021/22 
from which the opinion on governance, risk and internal control is derived. 

 Provide an opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the 
Council’s governance, risk and control arrangements including any 
qualifications to that opinion. 

 Draw attention to any issues that need to be considered for inclusion in the 
Annual Governance Statement. 

 Compare work undertaken with that which was planned and summarise 
performance. 

 Comment on compliance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 
(PSIAS) and Code of Ethics. 

 Comment on the results of the internal quality assurance programme. 

 Confirm the organisational independence of internal audit 

 Review the performance of the Internal Audit Consortium against the 
current Internal Audit Charter. 

 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
  
1.1 That the Internal Audit Consortium Annual Report for 2021/22 be accepted. 
 

 

IMPLICATIONS 
 

 

Finance and Risk:   Yes☒  No ☐  

Details:  

Page 44

Agenda Item 6a



Internal audit reviews help to ensure that processes and controls are operating 

effectively thereby contributing to ensuring that value for money is obtained. Regular 

audit reviews help to ensure that risk is managed appropriately. Internal audit makes 

recommendations to reduce the level of risk and improve the control environment. 

On Behalf of the Section 151 Officer 
 

 

Legal (including Data Protection):   Yes☒  No ☐  

Details: 
The core work of internal audit is derived from the statutory responsibility under the 
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 which requires the Council to “undertake an 
effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control 
and governance processes, taking in to account public sector internal auditing 
standards or guidance”. 
 

On Behalf of the Solicitor to the Council 
 

Staffing:  Yes☐  No ☒   

Details: 
On behalf of the Head of Paid Service 

 

 

Decision Information    

Is the decision a Key Decision? 
A Key Decision is an executive decision which has a 
significant impact on two or more District wards or 
which results in income or expenditure to the Council 
above the following thresholds:  
 
NEDDC:  

Revenue - £100,000 ☐  Capital - £250,000  ☐ 

☒ Please indicate which threshold applies 

No 

Is the decision subject to Call-In? 
(Only Key Decisions are subject to Call-In)  
 

No 
 

District Wards Significantly Affected 
 

None 
 

Consultation: 

Leader / Deputy Leader ☐   Cabinet  ☐ 

SAMT ☐ Relevant Service Manager ☒ 

Members ☐   Public ☐ Other ☐ 

 

Yes 
 
Details: 
 
 

 

Page 45



Links to Council Plan (NED) priorities or Policy Framework including Climate 
Change, Equalities, and Economics and Health implications. 

 Audit reviews help to ensure that the council’s resources and priorities are focused 
on achieving the objectives within the council plan and that there are appropriate 
governance, risk and control arrangements in place. 

 
REPORT DETAILS 
 
1 Background  
 
1.1 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards require that the Head of the 

Internal Audit Consortium delivers an annual internal audit opinion and report 

that can be used by the organisation to inform its governance statement. 

2. Details of Proposal or Information 
 
2.1 COVID- 19 along with staff vacancies and the training requirements of new 

staff has impacted on the extent of completion of the 2021/22 internal audit 
plan. However, enough of the internal audit plan (along with reliance on other 
assurances) has been completed to be able to give an unlimited audit opinion 
in respect of the 2021/22 financial year.  

 
2.2 Appendix 1 details the audit reports issued in respect of audits included in the 

2021/22 internal audit plan.  The appendix shows for each report the overall 
assurance level provided on the reliability of the internal controls and the 
assurance level given at the last audit.  The report opinions can be 
summarised as follows: 

 

Assurance 

Level  

2020/21 

Number 

2021/22 

 % 

2021/22 

Number 

2021/22 

% 

Substantial 13 68 11 61 

Reasonable 6 32 7 39 

Limited 0 0 0 0 

Inadequate 0 0 0 0 

Total 19 100 18 100 

 
2.3 A definition of the above assurance levels is shown at the bottom of Appendix 

1. 
 

2.4 No fraud was identified. 

Page 46



2.5 The following table summarises the performance indicators for the Internal 

Audit Consortium as detailed in the Internal Audit Service Plan: 

Description 2021/22 2022/23 

 Plan Actual Plan 

Cost per Audit Day £306 £288 £310 

Percentage of Plan Completed 

(NEDDC) 

75% 70% 75% 

Sickness Absence (Average Days 

per Employee) 

8.0 

(Corporate 

Trigger) 

1.2 8.0 

Customer Satisfaction Score 

(NEDDC) 

85% 93% 85% 

To issue internal audit reports within 

10 days of the close out meeting  

90% 100% 90% 

Quarterly reporting to Audit and 

Corporate Governance Scrutiny 

Committee 

100% 100% 100% 

 

OPINION ON THE ADEQUACY AND EFFECTIVENESS OF GOVERNANCE, RISK 

AND CONTROL ARRANGEMENTS 

2.6 The Head of the Internal Audit Consortium is responsible for the delivery of an 

annual audit opinion that can be used by the council to inform its governance 

system. The annual opinion concludes on the overall adequacy and 

effectiveness of the organisation’s framework of governance, risk 

management and control. 

2.7 In my opinion reasonable assurance can be provided on the overall adequacy 

and effectiveness of the council’s framework for governance, risk 

management and control for the year ended 2021/22. Sufficient work has 

been completed and assurances ascertained to be able to provide an 

unlimited opinion on the systems of governance, risk management and control 

in place.   

2.8 Assurance can never be absolute. In this context “reasonable assurance” 

means that arrangements are in place to manage key risks and to meet good 

governance principles, but there are some areas where improvements are 

required. 

Page 47



2.9 As well as internal audit work assurance has also been gained from previous 

years’ work, the work of the risk management group, PSN compliance, 

external audit and compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance. 

2.10 Overall, 100% of the areas audited received Substantial or Reasonable 

Assurance demonstrating that there are effective systems of governance, risk 

management and control in place.  

2.11 The Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee receive a 6-

monthly report in relation to outstanding audit recommendations. Where a 

limited or inadequate assurance audit report is issued or where the 

Committee has concerns, managers are required to attend the Committee to 

discuss progress and to provide assurance that recommendations are being 

implemented in a timely fashion. 

ISSUES FOR INCLUSION IN THE ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 

2.12 The internal control issues arising from audits completed in the year and 
outstanding internal audit recommendations will be considered during the 
preparation of the Annual Governance Statement. There are no issues arising 
from internal audit work that require raising in the Annual Governance 
Statement. 

 
COMPARISON OF PLANNED WORK TO ACTUAL WORK UNDERTAKEN 

2.13 The Internal Audit Plan for 2021/22 was approved by the Audit and Corporate 
Governance Scrutiny Committee on the 28th of April 2021.  The majority of 
audits have been completed with the remaining audits being scheduled into 
the 2022/23 Internal Audit Plan. Appendix 2 details the audits completed and 
those deferred. 

 

COMPLIANCE WITH THE PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS / 

CODE OF ETHICS AND OTHER QUALITY ASSURANCE RESULTS 

2.14 Quality control procedures have been established within the Internal Audit 

Consortium and these are documented in the Quality and Assurance 

Improvement Programme at Appendix 3. These procedures are designed to 

ensure compliance with the PSIAS and Code of Ethics. 

ORGANISATIONAL INDEPENDENCE 

2.15 It can be confirmed that the internal audit activity is organisationally 

independent. Internal audit reports directly to the Director of Finance and 

Resources but has a direct and unrestricted access to the Senior 

Management Team and the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny 

Committee. 

 

Page 48



REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE OF THE INTERNAL AUDIT CONSORTIUM 

AGAINST THE CURRENT INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER  

2.16 The Internal Audit Charter was last reported to and approved by the Audit and 

Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee in September 2021.  

2.17 Based on the information provided in this report on the completion of the 

2021/22 internal audit plan, it is considered that the requirements of the 

Charter were met during the year.   

3 Reasons for Recommendation  
 
3.1 To present to Members the annual report for the Internal Audit Consortium in 

respect of North East Derbyshire District Council for 2021/22. 

3.2 To ensure compliance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. 
 
3.3 To provide an annual opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of 

the Council’s governance, risk and control arrangements including any 
qualifications to that opinion. 

 
4 Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 Not Applicable 
 
DOCUMENT INFORMATION 
 

Appendix No 
 

Title 

1 Internal Audit Reports Issued 2021/22 

2 Comparison of planned work to work completed 2021/22 

3 Quality and Assurance Improvement Programme 

Background Papers (These are unpublished works which have been relied on to a 
material extent when preparing the report.  They must be listed in the section below.  
If the report is going to Cabinet you must provide copies of the background papers) 

 
 
 

 

Page 49



 1  
 

 
 

Appendix 1 
 

North East Derbyshire District Council – Internal Audit 
Reports Issued 2021/22 

 
Assurance Level Definition 

Substantial 
Assurance 
 

There is a sound system of controls in place, designed to 
achieve the system objectives. Controls are being consistently 
applied and risks well managed. 

Reasonable 
Assurance 
 

The majority of controls are in place and operating effectively, 
although some control improvements are required. The 
system should achieve its objectives. Risks are generally well 
managed. 

Limited Assurance 
 

Certain important controls are either not in place or not 
operating effectively. There is a risk that the system may not 
achieve its objectives. Some key risks were not well managed. 

Inadequate 
Assurance 
 

There are fundamental control weaknesses, leaving the 
system/service open to material errors or abuse and exposes 
the Council to significant risk. There is little assurance of 
achieving the desired objectives. 

 

 
Ref 

 
Report Title 

Assurance 
Level 

2021/22 

Opinion 
Previous 

Audit 

1 Health & Safety Substantial Substantial 

2 Payroll Substantial Substantial 

3 Leisure Operations Substantial Substantial 

4 Creditors Substantial Substantial 

5 Corporate Targets Substantial Substantial 

6 Safeguarding Reasonable Reasonable 

7 Sundry Debtors Reasonable Substantial 

8 Homelessness Reasonable Good 

9 Disaster Recovery Arrangements Substantial Substantial 

10 Section 106 Agreements Reasonable Reasonable 

11 Main Accounting & Budgetary Control Substantial Substantial 

12 Ethical Governance Reasonable New 

13 Treasury Management Substantial Substantial 

14 National Non Domestic Rates Substantial Substantial 

15 Risk Management Reasonable Reasonable 

16 Housing Benefits Substantial Substantial 

17 Domestic Waste Management Substantial Substantial 

18 Digital Transformation Reasonable New 

Page 50



 

1 
 

Appendix 2 

 
North East Derbyshire District Council Internal Audit Plan 2021/22 
 

 Complete 

 Deferred 

 
 

 

 Main Financial Systems 

2021/22 
Days 

 Main Accounting / Budgetary Control / MTFP 15 

 Creditor Payments (key controls) 10 

 Debtors (key controls) 10 

 Treasury Management 15 

 Council Tax (key controls) 10 

 NNDR 20 

 Housing Benefits 18 

 Payroll 15 

 Business Grants 15 

   

 Total Main Financial Systems 128 

   

 Other Operational Audits 2021/22 

   

 Committee Processes 8 

 Food Hygiene 12 

 Grounds Maintenance – swap with waste 8 

 Homelessness 12 

 Insurance 10 

 Killamarsh Leisure Centre 13 

 Section 106 12 

   

 Total Operational Areas 75 

   

 Rykneld Homes 97 

   

 IT Related  

   

 Disaster Recovery 6 

Page 51



 

2 
 

 IT Transformation Programme / Digital Agenda 8 

   

 Total IT 14 

 
 
 2021/22 

 Fraud and Corruption  

   

 National Fraud Initiative 5 

   

 Total Fraud & Corruption 5 

   

 Corporate / Cross Cutting Issues  

   

 Business Continuity 8 

 Corporate Governance / Assurance Statement 2 

 Corporate Targets 10 

 Financial Advice / working groups 12 

 Safeguarding 8 

 Ethics 10 

 Health and Safety 12 

 Risk Management 7 

 Transformation Agenda 10 

   

 Total Corporate/Cross Cutting Issues 79 

   

 Special Investigations / Contingency 43 

  Apprenticeships / training 30 

 Audit Committee / Client Liaison 15 

 Grand Total  486 

 

Page 52



Internal Audit Consortium 

 

Quality Assurance and 

Improvement Programme 

(QUAIP) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 53



Introduction 

 

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards require that the Head of Internal Audit 

develops and maintains an improvement programme that covers all aspects of the 

internal audit activity. 

A quality assurance and improvement programme (QUAIP) is designed to enable an 
evaluation of the internal audit activity’s conformance with the Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards and an evaluation of whether internal auditors apply the Code of 
Ethics. The programme also assesses the efficiency and effectiveness of the internal 
audit activity and identifies opportunities for improvement.  
 
The quality assurance and improvement programme must include both internal and 
external assessments. 
 
Internal assessments must include: 
 

  Ongoing monitoring of the performance of the internal audit activity. 

 Periodic self-assessments or assessments by other persons within the   
organisation with sufficient knowledge of internal audit practices. 
 

External assessments must be conducted at least once every five years by a 
qualified, independent assessor or assessment team from outside the organisation.  
 
This QUAIP covers: - 
 

1) Internal Assessments 
2) External Assessments 
3) Staff qualifications / experience 
4) Training 
5) Other elements 

 
 

1) Internal Assessments 

Internal assessments consist of the following: - 

 An annual assessment against the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards by 
the Head of the Internal Audit Consortium. This was undertaken in May 2022 

and the review confirmed that there were no significant areas of non- 

compliance. 
 Reviews of working papers – All audit working papers are reviewed by the 

Head of Internal Audit or a Senior Auditor to ensure that they meet required 

standards and support the findings of the review. These reviews are 

documented. 

 Review of audit reports – The Head of Internal Audit reviews all reports for 

quality and consistency before they are formally issued. 

Page 54



 Key performance indicators – these are reported to each Audit Committee in 

the annual report. 

 Customer feedback – Customer satisfaction surveys are issued with every 
report and the results monitored. Based on the customer satisfaction survey 
forms returned (17 returned for NEDDC & Rykneld Homes), the average score 
was 93% for customer satisfaction during 2021/22.  

 The results of the annual Client Officer survey for NEDDC were a score of 91% 
(a score of 32/35 over 7 questions).        

 

 

2) External Assessments 

An external review of internal audit took place in May 2021 the results of which 
concluded “Current services are assessed to “generally conform” with the PSIAS and 
compare favourably with peers, there are no areas where the service does not 
comply with the Standards”. 
 
The results of the external assessment were fully reported to each Audit Committee 
and to the Joint Board. 
 
An action plan was developed from the points arising in the 2021 external review and 
has been used to further drive improvement. All of the recommendations made have 
been implemented and are in the process of being embedded. 
 

3) Audit Staff qualifications / experience 

The table below summarises the qualifications and experience of the Internal Audit 

Consortium staff. 

Post Qualification Experience 

   

Head of Internal Audit CIPFA 25 years 

Senior Auditor - 
NEDDC 

Vacant post  

Senior Auditor - BDC AAT and IIA 30 plus years 

Senior Auditor - CBC AAT 30 plus years 

Auditor AAT / studying for IIA 7 years 

Auditor Vacant Post  

Auditor AAT 9 months 

Auditor -  2 years 

Auditor AAT 30 plus years 

Auditor -  14 years 
 

 

 

Page 55



Training Undertaken in 2021/22 

Training records are maintained to monitor both professional and ad hoc training 

received by staff. 

Training is delivered via webinars, team meetings, professional journals etc. All staff 

undertake CPD. 

During 2021/22 training was received by various staff in the following areas: - 

 Ethics and culture 

 Emergency and response plans 

 Creating an anti- fraud culture 

 Lean auditing 

 Effective audit reporting 

 Project Management 

 Carbon literacy 

 Introduction to internal audit 

 Risk based internal audit 

 Understanding the impact of the pandemic on local government finances 

 Mental health awareness 

 CIPFA Summer School – various topics 

 Delivering and stress testing the HRA Business Plan 

 Conflicts of interest 

 Post pandemic fraud landscape 

 CIPFA Good Governance 2022 update 

 Safeguarding 

 
One member of staff is undertaking an apprenticeship that will lead to the Institute 
of Internal Auditors qualification. 
 

Other Elements 
 

 A spreadsheet is populated by members of the audit team with ideas for 
service improvement. The ideas are discussed at team meetings and actions 
agreed accordingly.  

 Performance Development Reviews – All staff have a full and mid- year 

performance review. These reviews set and monitor the achievement of 

objectives and identify any training requirements. 

 1:1’s – All staff have 1:1 meetings with their manager at least monthly. 

 The Internal Audit Manual is a comprehensive record of audit procedures and 

requirements and is updated at least every 2 years. 

 Declarations of Business Interest – Staff are required to complete a declaration 

of business interests form on an annual basis and cannot undertake audits 

where there is a potential conflict of interest. 

 Team meetings – Monthly team meetings are held which discuss points of 

practice, audit findings, information sharing and include elements of training 

Page 56



and brainstorming. Team meetings have been via zoom during the pandemic 

but are now taking place in person. 

 

 

Page 57



North East Derbyshire District Council 
 

Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee  
 

29th June 2022 
 

Summary of Progress on the 2021/22 Internal Audit Plan  
 

Report of the Head of the Internal Audit Consortium  
 

Classification: This report is public     
 
Report By:  Jenny Williams: Head of the Internal Audit Consortium 
 
Contact Officer: Jenny.Williams@ne-derbyshire.gov.uk 
 

 
PURPOSE / SUMMARY 
 

 To present, for members’ information, a progress report in respect of the 
2021/22 Internal Audit Plan.  

 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
  
1. That the report be noted. 

 
 

IMPLICATIONS 
 

 

Finance and Risk:   Yes☒  No ☐  

Details: 
 

Internal audit reviews help to ensure that processes and controls are operating 

effectively thereby contributing to ensuring that value for money is obtained. 

 

On Behalf of the Section 151 Officer 
 

 

Legal (including Data Protection):   Yes☒  No ☐  

Details: 
 

The core work of internal audit is derived from the statutory responsibility under the 

Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 which requires the Council to “undertake an 

effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control 

and governance processes, taking in to account the Public Sector Internal Audit 

Standards or guidance”. 

Page 58

Agenda Item 6b



 

On Behalf of the Solicitor to the Council 
 

Staffing:  Yes☐  No ☒   

Details: 
 

 

On behalf of the Head of Paid Service 
 

 

DECISION INFORMATION 
 

Decision Information    

Is the decision a Key Decision? 
A Key Decision is an executive decision which has a 
significant impact on two or more District wards or 
which results in income or expenditure to the Council 
above the following thresholds:  
 
NEDDC:  

Revenue - £100,000 ☐  Capital - £250,000  ☐ 

☒ Please indicate which threshold applies 

No 

Is the decision subject to Call-In? 
(Only Key Decisions are subject to Call-In)  
 

No 
 

District Wards Significantly Affected 
 

None 
 

Consultation: 

Leader / Deputy Leader ☐   Cabinet  ☐ 

SAMT ☐ Relevant Service Manager ☒ 

Members ☐   Public ☐ Other ☐ 

 

Yes 
 
Details: 
 
 

 

Links to Council Plan priorities or Policy Framework including Climate 
Change, Equalities, and Economics and Health implications. 

 Internal audit reviews help to ensure that the Council is delivering high quality, cost 
effective services. 

 
 
 

REPORT DETAILS 
 
1 Background  

Page 59



 
1.1 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards require that the Head of the Internal 

Audit Consortium reports periodically to the Audit and Corporate Governance 

Scrutiny Committee in respect of performance against the audit plan. Significant 

risk and control issues should also be reported. 

 
2. Details of Proposal or Information 
 
2.1 Appendix 1 is a summary of reports issued 23rd April 2022 to the end of May 

2022. The Appendix shows for each report the level of assurance given and 
the number of recommendations made / agreed where a full response has 
been received. This provides an overall assessment of the system’s ability to 
meet its objectives and manage risk. The definitions of the assurance levels 
used can be seen at Appendix 2. 

 
2.2 In this period 3 reports have been issued two with substantial assurance and 

one with reasonable assurance. Attached at Appendix 3 is the internal audit 
report in respect of digital transformation that Members previously requested 
to see once the work had been completed. 

 
2.3 Reports are issued as Drafts with five working days being allowed for the 

submission of any factual changes, after which time the report is designated 
as a Final Report. Fifteen working days are allowed for the return of the 
Implementation Plan.  

 
2.4 In respect of the audits being reported, it is confirmed that no issues arising 

relating to fraud were identified. 
 
3 Reasons for Recommendation  
 
3.1 To inform Members of progress on the 2021/22 Internal Audit Plan and to 

provide details of the Audit Reports issued to date. 
 
3.2 To comply with the requirements of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. 
 
 
4 Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 Not Applicable 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 60



DOCUMENT INFORMATION 
 

Appendix No 
 

Title 

Appendix 1 Summary of Internal Audit reports issued in respect of the   
2021/22 Internal Audit Plan 23rd April – end May 2022                                                                  

Appendix 2 Assurance Definitions 

Appendix 3 Internal Audit Digital Transformation Report 

Background Papers (These are unpublished works which have been relied on to a 
material extent when preparing the report.  They must be listed in the section below.  
If the report is going to Cabinet you must provide copies of the background papers) 

 
 
 

 

Page 61



1 
 

                Appendix 1 

NORTH EAST DERBYSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued 23rd April - end May 2022  
 

Report 

Ref No. 

Report Title Scope and Objectives Assurance        

Provided 

Date Number of 

Recommendations  

Report 

Issued 

Response 

Due 

Made Accepted 

N016 Housing Benefits To ensure that Housing 
Benefits are paid in a 
timely and accurate 
manner 

Substantial 28/4/22 20/5/22 0 0 

N017 Domestic Waste 

Management 

To review the controls 
and procedures in place 

Substantial 4/5/22 25/5/22 1M 1 

N018 Digital Transformation To review project 
management procedures 

Reasonable 12/5/22 6/6/22 6 (3M 

3L) 

6 

 

H = High Priority M = Medium Priority L = Low Priority 

 

P
age 62



1 
 

 
 
 

            Appendix 2 

Current Assurance Levels 
 

Assurance Level Definition 

Substantial 

Assurance 

 

There is a sound system of controls in place, designed to 

achieve the system objectives. Controls are being consistently 

applied and risks well managed. 

Reasonable 

Assurance 

 

The majority of controls are in place and operating effectively, 

although some control improvements are required. The 

system should achieve its objectives. Risks are generally well 

managed. 

Limited Assurance 

 

Certain important controls are either not in place or not 

operating effectively. There is a risk that the system may not 

achieve its objectives. Some key risks were not well managed. 

Inadequate 

Assurance 

 

There are fundamental control weaknesses, leaving the 

system/service open to material errors or abuse and exposes 

the Council to significant risk. There is little assurance of 

achieving the desired objectives. 

: 
 

Control levels that were used until end March 17 

 

Control Level Definition 

Good A few minor recommendations (if any). 

Satisfactory Minimal risk; a few areas identified where changes would be 

beneficial. 

Marginal A number of areas have been identified for improvement. 

Unsatisfactory Unacceptable risks identified, changes should be made. 

Unsound Major risks identified; fundamental improvements are required. 

 
 
 

 

Page 63



Appendix 3 
Bolsover, Chesterfield and North East Derbyshire District 

Councils’ 
 

Internal Audit Consortium 
 

Internal Audit Report 
 

 
 

 
Authority: 

 

 
NEDDC 

 

 
Subject: 

 

 
Digital Transformation (N018) 

  
Date of Issue: 

 

 
12th May 2022 

 
Assurance 

Level 

 
Reasonable Assurance 

 

 
Report 

Distribution: 

 
 Director of Finance and Resources (NEDDC) 

Executive Director of Resources (BDC) 
Projects and Development Manager (BDC &NEDDC) 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 64



 

Internal Audit Report – Digital 
Transformation  

1 May 2022 

 

 
INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT 

 
Introduction 
 
In accordance with the 2021/22 annual audit plan a review of the processes and controls in 
respect of Digital Transformation projects has been undertaken across BDC and NEDDC.  
 
Scope and Objectives 
 
The scope of the audit was to ensure that: 
 

 Previous audit recommendations have been followed up and completed 

 Digital transformation strategies are up to date and still relevant 

 Staff and residents are kept informed of relevant projects, achievements etc. 

 The reporting and corporate monitoring of digital projects is adequate 

 A central records of digital projects  is maintained 

 Project management guidance is available and used by council officers to reduce risk 
of project failures and to provide consistency. 

 Budgeting arrangements in relation to digital transformation projects are adequate 

 Estimated cost savings from digital transformation are realistic and monitored to 
ensure delivery 
 

 
 
Conclusion 
 
The conclusion of the audit was that the reliability of the controls was assessed as 
Reasonable Assurance: The majority of controls are in place and operating effectively, 
although some control improvements are required. The system should achieve its objectives. 
Risks are generally well managed. 
 
 
The help and assistance of the Projects and Development Manager was much appreciated 
during the review.   
 
 
 

Page 65



 

Internal Audit Report – Digital 
Transformation  

2 May 2022 

 

 
Findings and Recommendations 
 
Previous Recommendations 
 
1 The previous internal audit report in respect of the transformation agenda was issued in 

January 2020 and reached a reasonable conclusion with 4 medium rated 
recommendations being made. It was established that the recommendations have either 
been implemented or superseded. 

 
2 Discussion showed that the emphasis is currently on undertaking transformation 

strategic projects that are likely to result in the best resource allocation and have the 
most positive impact towards achieving each Council’s aims and priorities.  

 
3 As well as these strategic projects supplemental key solutions are also underway to 

ensure smaller transformation items identified from stakeholder consultations are given 
consideration based on urgency.  
 

Digital Strategy documents  
 
4 Digital Transformation Strategies are in place for BDC & NEDDC that are identical in 

content as they were written under joint partnership arrangements. The strategies include 
aims up to 2023. 
 

5 These strategy documents incorporate other Central Government strategy such as the 
Government Transformation Strategies 2016, 2017 to 20 and local digital declaration 
whilst building in the Councils own transformation plan agendas. 
 

6 Objectives included in the strategy are defined however discussion has shown both 
councils have moved onto specific strategic objectives given resource issues and the 
impact of COVID. Objectives are in line with NEDDC’s Corporate plan and BDC’s vison 
statement  
 

7 Examination of the key digital transformation aims to be achieved by 2021, as set out in 
the Transformation Plan in the strategy document were seen to be largely addressed via 
recent projects/solutions.  

 
Created access to all services wherever internet access is available, irrespective 
of the type of device or time of day. This can be seen as accomplished with the 
websites being redesigned and accessibility legislation examined in 2 digital 
transformation projects. The website re-design and accessibility projects have 
addressed accessibility from multiple devices such as tablets and phones as well as 
computers as well as compliance with digital content legislation. Self-service has also 
been promoted and offered on the websites.  
 

Page 66



 

Internal Audit Report – Digital 
Transformation  

3 May 2022 

 

An organisation where digital channels are the primary gateway to access 
Council services. Self-service has been developed to a large extent – the current 
program of planning service digital channels being developed will further this goal. 
 
Investment in digital infrastructure to rationalise systems, reduce paper usage, 
maximise staff flexibility to improve efficiency and reduce travel related costs. 
The Councils have invested in website design, email billing, agile working solutions 
and first solution self-service has been successful plus the implementation of zoom 
meetings has reduced travel related costs.  
 
Digital inclusivity for our customers and service users by ensuring ease of 
access and supporting the development of skills, motivation and trust to 
confidently go online. Working with partners has seen investment in developing 
resident skills and this has been actively promoted on the websites. There has also 
been training provided for businesses to promote topics such as business rates and 
contract/funding bids. Investment in upgrading all online solutions/software to ensure 
compliance with website access/content has also been undertaken.  
 

8 Partner bodies are identified in the Strategy documents and overall aims set have been 
partially achieved with links to partners on the main BDC/NEDDC websites and 
consideration of digital services as a one council approach.  
 

9 Work to develop data sharing and joined up services to break down silos have proved 
difficult due to data protection issues and lead officer resources. Revenues Services 
service agreements with DWP are in effect.  

 
10 The Councils Partnership team has also worked to ensure the business community are 

understood and feature in forward planning. Digital skills training has also been offered to 
residents and businesses to assist in digital transformation on services.  

 
11 Examination of monitoring of action plan points in the Strategies showed that some areas 

such as data sharing, improving business digital infrastructure and representing business 
views have proved difficult to undertake,  

 
12 Although the principles in the Digital Strategy documents are still relevant the move away 

from Strategic Alliance joint working and development of individual Council directions on 
Digital Transformation projects/solutions represents an opportunity to reconsider content 
based on direction of travel.  

 

 

Recommendation 
 

R1 
 

BDC and NEDDC should review and update their digital transformation strategy’s 
and associated documents e.g. process framework / action plans to ensure that 
they are still consistent with their aims, objectives and achievements to date. 
(Medium Priority)  

Page 67



 

Internal Audit Report – Digital 
Transformation  

4 May 2022 

 

 
Communication to staff and residents 
 
13 Communication of the digital strategy aims accomplishments have been communicated 

via email/updates on the Council’s Internet/Intranet site and via Leaders briefings as well 
as NEDDC NEWS/BDC INTOUCH articles as critical success points are reached. 
 

14 Promotion of the resident/business Digital Skills program has been undertaken via leaflets 
and information on the websites/social media accounts.  

 
Reporting and Monitoring of Digital Projects 
 
15 The Communication of project progress has been via the Transformation Governance 

Group Board, sub-groups and Senior Management Team meetings. Whilst it could be 
seen that BDC have retained some elements of the original Transformation Group terms 
of reference it was noted that NEDDC has moved away from these meetings. The impact 
of COVID affected meeting scheduling and some of the original sub-groups have not met 
for a period of time.  

 
16 Discussions established that by moving away from the Transformation Governance 

Group Board the Projects and Development Manager is not always kept up to date with 
projects progress and discussions/decisions made by SMT. 

 

17 Examination of the original Transformation Governance Group (TGG) terms of reference 
and board make up showed that representation was satisfactory with Officers having a 
good skill set.   
 

18 Meeting scheduling of TGG and sub-groups was present at the start of the program 
however was interrupted by COVID-19 and requires examination as to what meetings are 
required.  

 

 
Digital Project Records 
 

19  A Transformation Aims monitoring record is in place for BDC/NEDDC which shows 
projects and solutions and relevant lead officers/ completion status of project aims. 
 

20 Project/solution outcomes and successes/lessons learned form part of the records held 
within folders and a summary is included in the monitoring record.  Monitoring reports are 
also discussed within the specific meetings on Transformation agenda categories (TGG, 
Climate change, organisation etc.)  

Recommendation 
 

R2 
 

NEDDC and BDC should establish how they each want to manage and report 
project progress (Digital & Transformation) in the future to ensure that all relevant 
parties are fully involved as appropriate. (Medium Priority)  

Page 68



 

Internal Audit Report – Digital 
Transformation  

5 May 2022 

 

 
21 It was apparent from examination of the records that not all projects have been recorded 

fully as some projects undertaken by Services are not recorded that have had an impact 
on the digital transformation agenda e.g. some leisure projects. 

 

 
Project guidance / templates 
 
22 There are project management paperwork templates in place for projects and smaller 

schemes that are in line with a handbook for successful projects and a project flow chart. 
 
23 Examination of a sample of 6 projects showed that whilst good practice was present 

some weaknesses were identified:- 
 

 The quality of documentation was variable between projects and services with 
recording of all projects in the central log not always evident.  
 

 Project consideration by all parties (proposer, chief Officer and resource sections) 
needs development to ensure linked Council wide issues and in house resource 
availability is adequate.  
 

 Risks were not always identified on project briefs (Clay X town deal website). 
 

 Project briefs were not always formally signed off. 
 

 Costing of projects and savings to be made were lacking in detail and have been 
costed in man hours rather than monetary costs in most instances. Not all parties 
involved in projects logged time (ICT logged website redesign hours whilst 
Communications did not). 

 

 One project (Webreg) was proposed as a joint Council item to BDC Exec however was 
implemented at BDC only in 2019. NEDDC has approved progression in April 2022-; 
sharing of original project paperwork and outcomes could have assisted NEDDC in 
brief preparation and identified possible areas to consider (such as training).  

 

 Some projects have not been able to progress where they are reliant on third parties. 
 

 Critical success factors measured at the end of projects showed that some points were 
not resolved during the projects and needed extra resource e.g. Website not linked to 
Mod GOV system and failure to address accessibility legislation regarding PDF 
documents ownership.  
 

Recommendation 
 

R3 
 

Consideration should be given to the digital monitoring record containing all 
projects (including those completed by service areas) to provide a comprehensive 
record of achievements. (Low Priority)  

Page 69



 

Internal Audit Report – Digital 
Transformation  

6 May 2022 

 

 Where reviews or further work have been suggested as part of the project closure 
there does not appear to be a defined follow up process (website redesign review after 
6 months / MOD GOV work / PDF ownership work). 

 
24 A sample of 6 smaller solutions (not formalised as a project) was also examined that 

although having less documentation still had a basic brief in place. Formal approval was 
not clear on most solutions however a clear service need was present for all cases such 
as replacement of existing solutions or in Council priorities (such as British Sign 
Language project). As solutions are smaller than projects associated costs and risk are 
also less. 
 

25 In the main documentation was adequate however some shortcomings were noted as for 
the sample above.   

 
26 It was noted that in-house resource capabilities impact on the ability to undertake some 

projects and solutions and ones implemented have a long term impact with maintenance 
issues not always being considered fully.  ICT resources such as the Application 
Developer are working across three authorities maintaining over 80 existing applications 
therefore are limited in availability.   

 

 

 

Recommendations 
 

R4 
 
 
 

Some training for managers on project management may be beneficial in order to 
promote a shared understanding of the guidance and the differing requirements 
for complex, moderately complex and simple projects and the importance of 
completing documentation in full  (Low Priority)  

R5 
 

Project/Solution monitoring is improved by introducing quality checks/tick lists to 
ensure that: 

 All appropriate documentation is completed in full 

 Centralised recording of all projects/solutions is undertaken. 

 Impact on related projects in other service areas is considered. 

 In house resource availability is considered before approval (especially ICT).  

 Clear costs (and man-hour costs rationale) and savings are identified. 

 Project briefs are appropriately signed off. 

 Where a review is proposed after the project details of follow up actions are 
recorded.  

 A follow up review takes place to identify if the project is still achieving 
outcomes after a set period or if changes/costs have occurred.  

 Where additional side elements are needed to achieve critical achievement 
points these should be identified and scheduled into planned work and cross 
referenced accordingly. (Medium Priority) 

Page 70



 

Internal Audit Report – Digital 
Transformation  

7 May 2022 

 

 
Budgeting arrangements 
 
27 Discussion showed that digital project costs are not centralised and the PDM has no 

monitoring duty as such.  Budgets for projects are established within the relevant service 
area when a scheme is approved and in liaison with Accountancy and the budget holder.  

 
28 Budgets and costing estimates included in the project scope and close out document 

summary in the sample examined showed that often man hours are quoted rather than 
monetary costs making actual costings difficult. (R5.above) 

 
29 Some sampled briefs identified where funding was to be sought from however did not 

detail specific cost codes or where different fund types are to be used.  
 

30 ICT have a specified budget for the “Customer Success Bundle” for the Customer 
Services system and related self-service / internal forms. 

 

 
Medium Term Financial Plan cost savings 
 
31 Figures presented to the Audit & Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee (NEDDC) on 

Digital Transformation proposed savings were examined and a more complete 
breakdown obtained from the S151 Officer corresponded with cost savings. Individual 
cost codes were not detailed in the breakdown however are monitored by the 
service/Accountancy Team based on service costs being reduced.  
 

32 Reliance on savings being achieved is dependent on sound project management to 
ensure service spend is reduced in the years stated and availability of in-house/external 
solutions being available.  

 
33 Examination of the MTFP savings showed that the majority of savings are likely based on 

staff reduction costs or usage of digital services rather than printed material. 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 

Recommendation 
R6 

 
Project briefs include details of budget codes in use to allow centralised 
monitoring via CIVICA to be undertaken and give an idea of when multiple 
resource budgets are used (project and capital/revenue spend situations). (Low 
Priority) 
 

Page 71



 

Internal Audit Report – Digital 
Transformation  

8 May 2022 

 

Appendix A 
 

Assurance Level Definition 

Substantial 
Assurance 
 

There is a sound system of controls in place, designed to 
achieve the system objectives. Controls are being consistently 
applied and risks well managed. 

Reasonable 
Assurance 
 

The majority of controls are in place and operating effectively, 
although some control improvements are required. The 
system should achieve its objectives. Risks are generally well 
managed. 

Limited Assurance 
 

Certain important controls are either not in place or not 
operating effectively. There is a risk that the system may not 
achieve its objectives. Some key risks were not well managed. 

Inadequate 
Assurance 
 

There are fundamental control weaknesses, leaving the 
system/service open to material errors or abuse and exposes 
the Council to significant risk. There is little assurance of 
achieving the desired objectives. 

 
 

Page 72



 

Internal Audit Report – Digital Transformation  
Implementation Schedule ~ May  2022 

9  

 

Internal Audit Report – Implementation Schedule - NEDDC 
 

Report Title: Digital Transformation  Report Date: 12th May 2022  

  Response Due By Date: 6th June 2022 

 

Recommendations Priority 
(High, 

Medium, 
Low) 

Agreed To be 
Implemented 

By: 

Disagreed Further 
Discussion 
Required 

Comments 

Officer Date 

R1 NEDDC should review and update 
their digital transformation strategy’s 
and associated documents e.g. 
process framework / action plans to 
ensure that they are still consistent 
with their aims, objectives and 
achievements to date. 

M √ Kriste
n 

O’Gor
man, , 
Jayne 
Dethic

k,  

2023    
The current 
policy expires 
next year so 
rather than 
reviewing the 
current strategy 
energy will be 
directed towards 
devising the new 
strategy for 2023 
onwards 

R2 NEDDC  should establish how they 
each want to manage and report 
project (Digital & Transformation) 
progress in the future to ensure that 
all relevant parties are fully involved 
as appropriate. 

M √ Jayne 
Dethic

k  
Kriste

n 
O’Gor
man 

2023    
This will be 
incorporated in 
the new strategy 

R3 Consideration should be given to the 
digital monitoring record containing 
all projects (including those 
completed by service areas) to 
provide a comprehensive record of 
achievements. 

L √ , 
Jayne 
Dethic

k 
Steve 
Lee 

2023   This will be 
reviewed, our 
view is that this 
should be wider 
than 
Digital/Transfor

P
age 73



 

Internal Audit Report – Digital Transformation  
Implementation Schedule ~ May  2022 

10  

 

Recommendations Priority 
(High, 

Medium, 
Low) 

Agreed To be 
Implemented 

By: 

Disagreed Further 
Discussion 
Required 

Comments 

Officer Date 

mation – to be 
reviewed with 
the AD 
Partnerships 
and 
Transformation 
in line with 
strategy review 
(above) 

P
age 74



 

Internal Audit Report – Digital Transformation  
Implementation Schedule ~ May  2022 

11  

 

 

R4 Some training for managers on 
project management may be 
beneficial in order to promote a 
shared understanding of the 
guidance and the differing 
requirements for complex, 
moderately complex and simple 
projects and the importance of 
completing documentation in full   

L √ Kriste
n 

O’Gor
man 

Steve 
Lee 

   This will follow 
the review of the 

strategy and 
review of 

recording (as 
per 

recommendation
s above)  

R5 Project/Solution monitoring is 
improved by introducing quality 
checks/tick lists to ensure that: 

 All appropriate documentation is 
completed in full 

 Centralised recording of all 
projects/solutions is undertaken. 

 Impact on related projects in 
other service areas is 
considered. 

 In house resource availability is 
considered before approval 
(especially ICT).  

 Clear costs (and man-hour 
costs rationale) and savings are 
identified. 

 Project briefs are appropriately 
signed off. 

 Where a review is proposed 
after the project details of follow 
up actions are recorded.  

 A follow up review takes place 
to identify if the project is still 
achieving outcomes after a set 

M √ Kriste
n 

O’Gor
man 

Steve 
Lee 

2023   This will follow 
the review of the 

strategy and 
review of 

recording (as 
per 

recommendation
s above) t  

P
age 75



 

Internal Audit Report – Digital Transformation  
Implementation Schedule ~ May  2022 

12  

 

period or if changes/costs have 
occurred.  

Where additional side elements are 
needed to achieve critical 
achievement points these should be 
identified and scheduled into 
planned work and cross referenced 
accordingly. 

R6 Project briefs include details of 
budget codes in use to allow 
centralised monitoring via CIVICA to 
be undertaken and give an idea of 
when multiple resource budgets are 
used (project and capital/revenue 
spend situations). 

L Y Projec
ts and 
Develo
pment 
Manag

er 

Octo
ber 

2022 

   

 
Please tick the appropriate response () and give comments for all recommendations not agreed. 
 

Signed Head of Service:  
 

Date:  

 
 

Note: In respect of any High priority recommendations please forward evidence of their implementation to the Internal 
Audit team as soon as possible. 
 

 
 
 

 
 

P
age 76



North East Derbyshire District Council 
 

Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee 
 

29th June 2022 
 

CIPFA PUBLICATION – INTERNAL AUDIT UNTAPPED POTENTIAL 
 

Report of the Head of the Internal Audit Consortium 
 

Classification: This report is public     
 
Report By:  Head of the Internal Audit Consortium  
 
Contact Officer: Jenny Williams 
   Jenny.Williams@ne-derbyshire.gov.uk 
 

 
PURPOSE / SUMMARY 
 
The purpose of this report is to make Members aware of a recent CIPFA 
publication – Internal Audit Untapped Potential. 
 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
  
1. That the report be noted 
 

 

IMPLICATIONS 
 

 

Finance and Risk:   Yes☐  No ☒  

Details: 
 

 

On Behalf of the Section 151 Officer 
 

 

Legal (including Data Protection):   Yes☐  No ☒  

Details: 
 

 

On Behalf of the Solicitor to the Council 
 

Staffing:  Yes☐  No ☒   

Details: 
 

 

Page 77

Agenda Item 6c



On behalf of the Head of Paid Service 
 

 

DECISION INFORMATION 
 

Decision Information    

Is the decision a Key Decision? 
A Key Decision is an executive decision which has a 
significant impact on two or more District wards or 
which results in income or expenditure to the Council 
above the following thresholds:  
 
NEDDC:  

Revenue - £100,000 ☐  Capital - £250,000  ☐ 

☒ Please indicate which threshold applies 

No 

Is the decision subject to Call-In? 
(Only Key Decisions are subject to Call-In)  
 

No 
 

District Wards Significantly Affected 
 

None 
 

Consultation: 

Leader / Deputy Leader ☐   Cabinet  ☐ 

SAMT ☐ Relevant Service Manager ☐ 

Members ☐   Public ☐ Other ☐ 

 

No 
 
Details: 
 
 

 

Links to Council Plan (NED) priorities or Policy Framework including Climate 
Change, Equalities, and Economics and Health implications. 

 This document highlights how internal audit can contribute to ensuring that the 
Council has sound governance, risk and control arrangements in place. 

 
REPORT DETAILS 
 
1 Background  
 
1.1 CIPFA have recently conducted a survey in respect of internal audit and the 

results of that survey are reflected in their publication Internal Audit Untapped 
Potential (Appendix 1).  

 
1.2 The publication promotes the importance of internal audit and the benefit that it 

can bring to the organisation in terms of managing risks and improving the 
governance and control framework. 

 
1.3 This report is valuable as it highlights for Members and Officers what makes an 

effective internal audit service, what the current impact of internal audit is and 
how internal audit can become more effective. 

Page 78



 
2. Details of Proposal or Information 
 
2.1 The publication covers the following areas:- 
 

1. Identifying the impact of internal audit 
2. How internal audit is making an impact 
3. The potential for internal audit 
4. What is holding internal audit back 

 
 Some of the main points arising from the survey are:- 
 

 That since 2008 the perception of internal audit has improved. 

 The role of internal audit varies greatly between organisations. 

 That internal audit provide a range of services in addition to assurance such as 
providing advice and sharing best practice. 

 The independence of internal audit is critical – internal audit can attend steering 
or project groups as a critical friend but should not have a decision making role 

 Capacity is highlighted as a key issue for many internal audit services. 

 Internal audit need to be able to provide assurance on emerging issues whilst 
still providing a core assurance on business as usual activities. 

 That recruiting and retaining the right skills is a challenge. 
 
2.2 The research highlights the top 6 areas that should be covered by internal audit 

for the most impact in coming years:- 
 

1. Cybersecurity 
2. Digitisation and the greater use of data within the organisation 
3. Environmental sustainability / climate change 
4. Financial viability 
5. Culture and ethics 
6. Supporting improved risk maturity 

 
2.3 It is pleasing to note that all of these areas are covered within NEDDC’s internal 

audit plan although we will continue to develop our work in these areas. The 
research recognises that internal audit are unlikely to have the significant 
technical knowledge in respect of cyber security but can provide assurance in 
terms of the Council’s strategic approach. 

 
2.4 The conclusions of the publication are that things need to change:- 
 

1. Successful organisations need to have robust and effective management and 
governance, including an understanding of assurance. Improving this 
understanding will enable the most effective use of internal audit. 
 

2. Internal audit is often not allowed to unleash its full potential. The importance of 
its contribution must be fully understood and appreciated by clients – 
management and audit committees. Internal audit managers must become 
greater advocates in promoting the function within organisations. 
 

Page 79



3. Internal audit must be kept independent to achieve its maximum impact in an 
organisation. Auditors frequently take on additional roles, which may 
compromise their independence. They must have a sole focus and a direct 
reporting line to the leadership team as required by the Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards. 
 

4. Discussion on public sector policy issues, be they social care, financial 
resilience or technological change, should acknowledge the importance of 
assurance and highlight internal audit’s contribution. This would help raise the 
expectations of internal audit’s clients. 
 

 
3 Reasons for Recommendation  
 
3.1 To ensure that Members are aware of the role, impact and future potential of 

internal audit as identified by the CIPFA survey. 
 
4 Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 Not applicable 
 
DOCUMENT INFORMATION 
 

Appendix No 
 

Title 

1 CIPFA Publication – Internal Audit Untapped Potential 

Background Papers (These are unpublished works which have been relied on to a 
material extent when preparing the report.  They must be listed in the section below.  
If the report is going to Cabinet you must provide copies of the background papers) 

 
 
 

 

Page 80



Internal audit: 
untapped 
potential
May 2022

P
age 81



2CIPFA | Sustainability Report 2021

Title

2CIPFA Thinks | Internal audit: untapped potential

Contents

Executive summary 5
Identifying the impact of internal audit 9
How internal audit is making an impact 12
The potential for internal audit  17
What is holding internal audit back?  26
Appendix A: The framework for internal audit impact 49
Appendix B: Maximising the impact of internal audit 51
Appendix C: References and literature considered in our research 53
Appendix D: Research methodology 55

P
age 82



3CIPFA | Sustainability Report 2021

Title

3CIPFA Thinks | Internal audit: untapped potential

Acknowledgements
We would like to thank Khalid Hamid for his helpful comments and support and 
Jonathan Gordon for his expertise on the research survey. Milan Palmer, Sarah Delaurey, 
Mark Davey and Ursula Dale also provided essential support on the project.

We would also like to thank Liz Sandwith at the Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors 
for her comments and support on both the survey and report.

The input of all those who shared the survey link, responded to the survey or attended a 
focus group has been invaluable. In addition, we are grateful to the individuals we spoke 
to during the research.

The views expressed in this report are those of the authors unless otherwise stated and 
the responsibility for any errors or omissions lies with them.

Report authors

Diana Melville, CIPFA 
Rachel Bowden, CIPFA

Making it count

CIPFA is committed to changing lives for the better.

As a global leader in public financial management and governance, our aim is to make 
a difference to the world we live in. Our work enables people to prosper, protects the 
vulnerable and helps sustain the environment for future generations.

As a professional institute, we support our members and students to act with integrity 
and deliver excellence in public financial management throughout their careers.

By setting standards and advising public bodies and governments, we help ensure the 
money and resources used on behalf of citizens are raised and spent fairly, transparently, 
efficiently and are free from fraud and corruption.

Our thought leadership puts us at the heart of the policy debate, while our education 
and training offerings and range of advisory services support our members, students 
and other public finance professionals, helping them add value to their teams and the 
organisations for which they work.

CIPFA is a global body, operating at local, national and international level. Wherever we 
find ourselves and whoever we are supporting, our goal is to always make it count.

P
age 83



4CIPFA | Sustainability Report 2021

Title

4CIPFA Thinks | Internal audit: untapped potential

Foreword

CIPFA advocates best practice in assurance, governance, 
management and financial control across the public services. 
As such, we think it’s time to put public service organisations’ 
internal audit capabilities in the spotlight.  

We know internal audit has the potential to help 
organisations achieve their goals, but this potential is not 
currently realised. In a technologically advancing world and 
with tackling climate change high up on the agenda, it’s time 
to address this. This report, and the research that has been 
conducted to create it, explores the changing landscape of 
internal audit in the public services and how vital it is for an 
organisation in terms of its future success. 

As the pandemic has shown us, managing emerging risks 
and responding to ongoing geopolitical and technological 
change remain top priorities for organisations. This means 
that internal audit must respond too, and the profession must 
continually evolve to remain effective and efficient. 

To keep pace with these changes, we have identified several 
aspects of internal audit that require attention, including 
resourcing, the need for specialisms, reporting lines within 
organisations, and investment in training to attract long-term 
expertise into the profession. The public services also need to 
keep pace with their expectations of internal audit, ensuring 
they make full use of its expertise. 

Our intention with this report is to open a dialogue across 
public service organisations, the internal audit profession, 
audit committees, as well as those considering a career 
in internal audit. Internal audit is an important part of the 
solution for effective management of the public services, 
and we hope to facilitate change that will see greater 
independence of internal audit, sustainability of recruitment 
into the role and an increased understanding of assurance.  

Allowing internal audit to achieve its full potential benefits 
organisations, the public services overall and the public 
finance professionals of the future. We hope this report gives 
the internal audit profession the confidence to champion the 
critical work it does. 

Rob Whiteman CBE
CIPFA CEO

P
age 84



5

Executive 
summary

P
age 85



6CIPFA Thinks | Internal audit: untapped potential

We need to talk about internal audit – talk about it more and 
talk about it in the right way.

This report is titled Internal audit: untapped potential because 
CIPFA believes that internal audit has a vital role to play in 
supporting public service organisations to achieve their goals. 

CIPFA has conducted UK-wide research, sending an open 
survey to those in the public services, including those in 
the internal audit profession, management clients and 
audit committee members. The survey received a strong 
response with 831 submissions. The outcome of the research 
concludes that where internal audit is operating effectively, it 
is already providing this support, but there are pockets where 
internal audit is unable to do this. This report will examine 
how internal audit is currently making an impact, identify 
where it can do more and what is holding it back. Better 
internal audit means better public services.

As with all organisations, the public services must respond 
and adapt to global trends and areas of risks. The COVID-19 
pandemic put the public services on the front line of the UK’s 
response, requiring them to be agile and redirect resources 
accordingly to meet new challenges. Advances in technology 
present new opportunities for service redesign but also 
challenges around complexity and security. Many parts of 
the public services are people focused, and rising needs and 
demographic changes result in challenges across health  
and social care. The impact of climate change on services  
and carbon reduction initiatives are core parts of the public 
sector agenda. 

At the same time, the public services have experienced a 
sustained period of financial pressure, resulting in reductions 
to core functions, loss of expertise and difficulties maintaining 
demand-led services within allocated budgets. Long-term 
financial planning is challenging, and many public bodies have 
explored new structures to deliver services or generate income. 

Demonstrating stewardship of public funds, building and 
maintaining public trust and confidence in decision making 
and delivering a sustainable future for taxpayers and service 
users are fundamental expectations of all those working 
within the public services.

Where does this leave internal audit? What contribution can 
internal audit make to this complex web of expectations, 
obligations, ambitions and challenges?

When internal audit provides support, it does so in a 
unique way. It provides independent assurance. Achieving 
this requires a resource base of trained internal auditors 
supported by modern approaches and professional 
standards. It needs both capacity and capability. Internal 
audit also needs to work in conjunction with an organisation’s 
governance, risk, control and assurance frameworks. A 
professional team of internal auditors will not have the 
desired impact in an organisation that doesn’t understand 
its assurance requirements or have good governance 
arrangements. Assurance requirements are constantly 
evolving, and internal audit must keep up with the pace of 
change to stay relevant. Concerns that organisations face 
such as climate change and increased cyber security and 
financial risks are areas where internal audit can have a  
great impact.

Currently, the role of internal audit varies greatly between 
organisations. There is a need for consistency, quality 
and adherence to professional practice to ensure that an 
organisation has access to the assurance requirements it needs 
as opposed to just those that are available. Internal audit must 
also develop the capacity and ability to be sustainable. To 
achieve this, organisations must ensure the provision of internal 
audit expertise. The sections on recruitment, retention and 
training in this report explore this further.

P
age 86



7CIPFA Thinks | Internal audit: untapped potential

Our conclusion is that things need to change.

Successful organisations need to have robust and 
effective management and governance, including an 
understanding of assurance. 

Improving this understanding will enable the most 
effective use of internal audit.

Internal audit must be kept independent to achieve its 
maximum impact in an organisation. Auditors frequently 
take on additional roles, which may compromise their 
independence. 

They must have a sole focus and a direct reporting line 
to the leadership team as required by the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS).

Internal audit is often not allowed to unleash its full 
potential. The importance of its contribution must 
be fully understood and appreciated by clients – 
management and audit committees. 

Internal audit managers must become greater 
advocates in promoting the function within 
organisations.

Discussions on public sector policy issues, be they social 
care, financial resilience or technological change, should 
acknowledge the importance of assurance and highlight 
internal audit’s contribution. 

This would help raise the expectations of internal audit’s 
clients.

1

2

3

4

P
age 87



8CIPFA Thinks | Internal audit: untapped potential

Where do we go from here?
This report makes several recommendations. Some are directed 
at the internal audit teams working within and for the public 
services. Others are directed at the client organisations, both 
management and audit committees. There are areas of planned 
work that CIPFA will be taking forward, some in collaboration 
with the Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors (CIIA) and the 
Internal Audit Standards Advisory Board (IASAB).

Continuing support for internal audit
CIPFA and the CIIA are keen to keep supporting high-quality 
internal audit within the public services. The institutes are 
exploring ways that they can collaborate more to continue the 
work set out in this report. Working together and with IASAB, 
they will support internal auditors to meet the PSIAS. 

Both institutes have identified specific areas where they can 
collaborate. These include raising the profile of the internal 
audit profession in the public services, improving internal 
audit’s status and cultivating a greater understanding 
between internal audit clients and audit committees. They will 
also examine issues raised in the report around professional 
standards, such as the head of internal audit’s annual opinion 
and the quality assurance and improvement programme, to 
identify where guidance or support could improve practice.

Both institutes are mindful of the challenges that internal 
audit teams experience in the recruitment and retention of 
staff. Therefore, they will undertake some research on options 
for career paths and routes into internal audit to encourage 
long-term, sustainable recruitment into the role.

Internal audit is not the only solution to supporting effective public services, but it is part of the solution. 

P
age 88



9

Identifying 
the impact of 
internal audit

P
age 89



10CIPFA Thinks | Internal audit: untapped potential

Internal audit is vital because it focuses on the areas that 
are important for organisations and therefore supports their 
success. 

Internal auditors help management, boards and their audit 
committees understand how well risks are managed, and 
the effectiveness of the governance and control framework 
in place – key things senior stakeholders need to know to be 
effective in discharging their own role. Strong internal audit 
functions will be more prepared to support the public services 
of the future, and to support organisations going through 
change.

In this research, we have focused on making an impact: 
internal audit that is not only effective in what it can offer but 
achieves influence with key decision makers for the benefit of 
organisational objectives.

There is no ‘formula’ for assessing or quantifying the impact 
of internal audit, as many of the indicators of an effective 
internal audit service are, to some extent, subjective.

The ability to respond to emerging risks or issues and 
changing priorities for the organisation.

The ability to challenge constructively and to help 
management find solutions. 

Additionally, internal auditors must be able to demonstrate 
their conformance with internal auditing standards, including 
the PSIAS, which are mandated for the UK public sector, and 
which are based on global internal auditing standards. 

However effective and impactful internal audit teams may 
be, our research shows they are enhanced when operating in 
an organisation that understands assurance and the role of 
internal audit and engages with internal audit to obtain the 
maximum benefit from the function. 

Our research concludes that the impact of internal audit is 
determined by interlinking factors in both the internal audit 
team and in the organisation. We have developed a model to 
highlight this.

Timely and meaningful assurance, communicated in a 
way that is understood by stakeholders.

Good engagement with senior management and the 
audit committee, while maintaining independence and 
objectivity.

Internal audit plans clearly aligned to the topics that are 
most important for the success of the organisation.

Indicators of effective internal audit

1

2

3

4

5

P
age 90



11CIPFA Thinks | Internal audit: untapped potential

Impact 
of internal 

audit

The internal 
audit team

Organisational 
context

Internal audit 
framework

Ex
pe

cta
tions

Impact

The impact of internal audit can be defined as its ability to 
support the organisation in achieving its strategic objectives 
and priorities. This will be through an appropriate mix of 
assurance, consulting activity and advice. The impact of 
internal audit will vary across organisations based on 
assurance needs, organisational culture and capacity for 
continual improvement. 

The impact of internal audit is dependent on the quality of 
the internal audit team, the framework and the organisation 
in which internal audit operates. Each of these will shape 
expectations of what internal audit can and should deliver. 
The individual components of internal audit impact are 
discussed in Appendix A.

Our findings and recommendations

Many of the findings from our research are interwoven. We 
cannot consider the impact of internal audit teams without 
considering, for example, the environment in which they work, 
the stakeholders and clients they serve, and the skills and 
resources needed to provide that service. 

Our research included an extensive survey of internal auditors 
and their clients, including audit committee members, from 
across the public services. This was supported by focus 
groups and a literature review. The next section of the report 
will identify the evidence from our research that shows how 
internal audit is currently making an impact. We will then 
consider the future potential for internal audit. What can it do 
more of and where can it be more effective?

Finally, we will consider the factors that currently hold some 
internal audit teams back.

P
age 91



12

How internal 
audit is making 
an impact

CIPFA’s findings: 

P
age 92



13CIPFA Thinks | Internal audit: untapped potential

Internal audit’s contribution has 
improved

In 20081 CIPFA identified an expectation and perception  
gap between local government internal auditors and their 
clients. Our new research identifies significant progress 
on closing this gap. This is most notable in terms of the 
contribution that internal audit makes in supporting the 
management of the organisation. The 2021 survey feedback 
is more positive than CIPFA’s 2008 survey; a positive 
view of internal audit’s contribution from clients increased 
significantly from 60% to 87%.

In the 2021 responses concerning the contribution of internal 
auditing, audit committee members are more positive 
than management (92% agreed, compared with 84% of 
management). Similarly, heads of internal audit are upbeat 
about this, with 96% agreeing that internal audit makes a 
positive contribution, reducing to 89% across other members 
of the internal audit team.

1 Perceptions of audit quality: a survey analysis (CIPFA, 2009).

0

20

40

60

80

100

Percentage (%)

87% 87%

60%

92%

ClientsInternal auditors

20212008

Respondents agreeing or strongly agreeing with the 
statement: the contribution internal audit makes supports 
the management of the organisation.

Making an impact on governance arrangements
Worcestershire Children First is a wholly owned 
company of Worcestershire County Council. Following 
high-profile governance failures in other LATCs, WCF 
identified that it would be good practice to review its 
arrangements. 

The Director of Resources undertook a review of 
the company’s governance arrangements, as well 
as the council’s shareholding and commissioning 
arrangements. Internal audit reviewed the outcome 
of the self-assessment, which provided independent 
assurance and added value to share good practice 
across the council. Internal audit had to challenge 
themselves and work differently with a self-assessment 
model, and in doing this, they were able to add value 
to the review and the outcome. They helped to embed 
understanding about governance and roles across 
both organisations. The review was used as a board 
refreshers training session and used with the leader and 
senior cabinet members. 

P
age 93

https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/p/perceptions-of-audit-quality-a-survey-analysis


14CIPFA Thinks | Internal audit: untapped potential

One of the reasons for the improved contribution, and 
perception of the contribution, of internal audit may be better 
communication between internal auditors and their clients.

In 2008, just 56% of clients agreed that internal audit 
communicated effectively; in 2021, this has increased to 69% 
of clients. For internal auditors, there was a decline in their 
positive view of their communications, but this was primarily 
noted among audit team members rather than heads of 
internal audit. This could reflect the wider experience of 
communications among heads of audit.

Effective communication is a core skill required at every 
stage of the audit process, from explaining the rationale 
for conducting an audit to exploring options for control 
improvements with clients. To have impact, internal auditors 
need to ensure that the communication is consistently 
of a high standard and meeting client expectations. 
The improvement in client perceptions is very welcome, 
but auditors will need to continue to focus on effective 
communications. 

0

20

40

60

80

100

20212008

Percentage (%)

ClientsInternal auditors

83%

56%

75%

69%

Respondents agreeing or strongly agreeing with the 
statement: internal audit builds and maintains effective 
communication at all levels within the organisation.

P
age 94



15CIPFA Thinks | Internal audit: untapped potential

The services provided by internal 
audit vary

Internal auditors make an impact through a range of 
approaches. Our survey identified that while most internal 
audit teams were already offering broad coverage, their 
clients did not always recognise this. 

Head of internal audit or equivalent

Executive/senior manager

Audit committee member

0 20 40 60 80 100

Working with other internal audit teams to provide assurance on partnerships or collaborative ventures

Sitting as an independent critical friend on committees or steering groups relating to transformation, projects or major programmes

Sharing good practice from, or comparisons with, other departments or organisations

Advice on new systems or developments

Assurance relating to individual projects or programmes

Advisory/consultancy assignments/ad hoc advice

Percentage (%)

The view of what internal audit currently delivers, split by role.

P
age 95



16CIPFA Thinks | Internal audit: untapped potential

The disparity is most marked in relation to the role of internal 
audit sitting on project or steering groups and in advice 
provided on new systems or developments. Heads of audit 
will have a full understanding of their team’s activities, while 
clients perhaps only recognise those where they have had 
direct interaction. There is also a difference in perception 
between management and audit committees, perhaps 
reflecting that not all advisory work is reported to the audit 
committee in detail. 

Recommendations: 
•  Part of the role of the head of internal audit should be to 

advocate for and explain the role of internal audit. This 
could usefully include explaining the nature of internal 
audit consultancy or advisory work and draw out the 
benefits of internal audit interventions. Engagement and 
communication with senior stakeholders are core skills for 
effective heads of internal audit. 

•  Internal audit should provide the audit committee with an 
overview of all work it undertakes to ensure that there is 
visibility of any advisory activity. This does not necessitate 
a detailed report to the committee on all advisory work. 

Showcasing internal audit: how the 
pandemic created opportunities

Another opportunity to have an impact is to ensure that 
internal audit is responsive to change and clients’ needs. 
The pandemic provided considerable challenges for public 
sector bodies. Survey respondents were asked how the 
impact of internal audit has changed due to the COVID-19 
response. Views were similar across respondent groups and 
sectors, with a mild positive response. Forty-two percent of 
respondents said that internal audit colleagues attended 
COVID-19 response meetings with management. 

A number of participants reflected that the quick response 
by their internal audit function to provide agile and targeted 
assurance and advice had been an opportunity to showcase 
the ability of internal audit and had helped raise the profile 
of the team and how it is able to support the organisation. 
This may have helped individual relationships with senior 
managers and departments rather than bringing about an 
overall change in perception of impact.

P
age 96



17

The potential for 
internal audit 

P
age 97



18CIPFA Thinks | Internal audit: untapped potential

Our research explored different ways to improve the impact 
of internal audit within organisations. When considering 
these opportunities, it is essential to consider them from both 
the perspective of a client as well as an internal auditor.

Expectations and understanding

There is a range of expectations of internal audit from 
management and audit committees, as well as a difference 
in the perception of what internal audit delivers for the 
organisation.

Examples shared through discussion groups ranged from 
internal audit teams that provide fundamental assurance 
on core financial controls but little coverage of strategic 
topics, through to internal audit teams that have flexible 
plans clearly aligned to strategic goals and that can provide 
advice or swift assurance in response to emerging issues. 
This variation was reflected not only in the discussion of 
internal audit plans and proposed activity, but also in the 
expectations of senior management and audit committees. 
Some clients recognised they received a basic assurance 
plan around core systems and did not want additional 
coverage. Others already received a broader plan linked to 
strategic priorities or encouraged the internal audit plan to 
move towards this.

CIPFA believes that higher expectations by management and 
audit committees will provide both a challenge and support 
for internal audit. Higher expectations would ultimately be 
beneficial for the profession in the public services. This means 
there is a need for organisations to focus on what assurance 
or advice is needed rather than what assurance internal audit 
is currently able to deliver.

CIPFA has established expectations of internal audit through 
the CIPFA statement on the role of the head of internal audit.

The head of internal audit in a public service 
organisation plays a critical role in delivering the 
organisation’s strategic objectives by: 

•  objectively assessing the adequacy and effectiveness 
of governance and management of risks, giving an 
evidence-based opinion on all aspects of governance, 
risk management and internal control 

•  championing best practice in governance and 
commenting on responses to emerging risks and 
proposed developments.

While heads of internal audit might have these expectations, 
clients and audit committees also need to share them if 
internal audit is to have greater opportunity for impact.

Stable, supportive leadership has a huge 
role to play in getting the best out of internal 
audit, setting the culture of accountability 
and improvement. 

Assistant Director, Metropolitan Council 

Planned developments
CIPFA will consider how its forthcoming publication on 
assurance frameworks can build on its statement on the 
role of the head of internal audit to aid the understanding 
of assurance needs among leadership teams. CIPFA would 
like to see a culture of engaging with assurance and raised 
expectations for the internal audit profession in the public 
services.

Present and forthcoming actions: 
The global IIA is currently undertaking a refresh of the 
International Professional Practices Framework on which 
the PSIAS are based. Once the new international framework 
is known, the IASAB, along with the relevant internal audit 
standard setters for the public services in the UK, will review 
the PSIAS and update accordingly. This may also be an 
opportunity, with a simplified framework, to raise the profile 
of internal auditing standards, and the role that management 
and the audit committee play in creating a culture of engaged 
assurance, to create an environment in which internal audit 
can make a greater impact. 

P
age 98



19CIPFA Thinks | Internal audit: untapped potential

More strategic coverage

A key factor of the impact of internal auditing is the nature of 
the areas in which internal audit invests its time and focus. 
We were interested in topics where internal audit should be 
focusing and also the nature of activities that internal audit 
should include in its work.

We asked survey respondents to identify three themes that 
internal audit should focus on in the coming three years 
that would have the greatest impact on an organisation. 
Cybersecurity was the top priority area identified by all 
groups of respondents. Second was digitisation and the use 
of data. Technology and the impact of digitisation is not a 
new priority. In 2008, internal auditors ranked information 
technology as their second most important priority area for 
future internal audit coverage; at that time, clients saw this as 
a lower priority. 

The top six areas that should be covered to achieve impactful 
internal audit in the coming three years, as identified by our 
research, are as follows.

•  Cybersecurity

•  Digitisation and the greater use of data within the 
organisation

•  Environmental sustainability/climate change

•  Financial viability

•  Culture and ethics

•  Supporting improved risk maturity.

There were some differences in the views of internal auditors 
and clients. Internal auditors thought cybersecurity, culture 
and climate change were a higher priority compared with 
clients. Management thought internal audit’s role in helping 
to improve risk maturity was more of a priority compared 
with audit committee members or internal auditors. Of 
these six topics, management were least interested in audit 
coverage around culture and ethics and were less interested 
in assurance linked to financial viability than internal auditors 
and audit committees. 

Some internal audit teams are already providing assurance 
on these areas, although not necessarily in as much depth or 
with as much coverage that heads of internal audit or their 
clients would like to see in future. 

Balancing the need for deep specialisms
Heads of internal audit recognised that both cybersecurity 
and climate change would be areas of increased focus for 
internal audit, but that they would not be able to develop 
deep specialisms.

Topics such as cybersecurity will require significant technical 
knowledge, and often, this will be unrealistic for in-house 
teams that do not have access to additional skills through 
a co-sourced arrangement to provide assurance on some 
aspects of cyber risks. Internal audit should still be able 
to provide assurance over the strategic approach of the 
organisation, however.

As public sector organisations work towards zero carbon 
strategies, many may have made carbon reduction 
commitments but have yet to finalise detailed plans to 
achieve this target. There is an opportunity for internal audit 
to play the role of critical friend in terms of how other plans, 
priorities and goals may impact, support or contradict climate 
priorities and targets. 

To enable internal audit to have impact in these areas, audits 
should be carefully scoped and other assurances available 
considered. For example, in relation to cybersecurity, there 
will be some areas of risk and control that internal audit 
can consider in all audit work (such as access controls 
and data governance). A useful role of internal audit may 
be to recognise a wider range of existing assurance and 
specialist input, some of which may not be visible to the audit 
committee, and to help develop a map of assurance needs 
and priorities and how such assurance can be obtained.

P
age 99



20CIPFA Thinks | Internal audit: untapped potential

Developing a golden thread through controls, 
assurance and internal audit
Across central government, the Government Internal 
Audit Agency (GIAA) and HM Treasury have been 
working with finance and risk colleagues to clarify the 
control framework that underpins the responsibilities 
of accounting officers. The team is also considering 
how assurance can be provided on the elements of 
the control framework. A third stage will shape how 
internal audit plans and reports its work. As well as 
supporting a better understanding of controls and 
assurance, the project should help internal auditors 
deliver internal audit opinions that can be compared 
across government.

This example shows how internal audit can have an 
impact in improving internal control and assurance 
arrangements, as well as helping internal audit opinions 
to be more meaningful for their clients.

Auditing financial risks 
Traditionally, internal audit has provided assurance over 
financial systems and processes such as payments, 
income collection and payroll. In many organisations, such 
systems operate well, and the risks associated with them 
are well managed. Is there still a role for internal audit to 
provide assurance over financial risks? To what extent 
can internal audit provide assurance over the big financial 
risks associated with policy and strategy as well as the 
more traditional assurance over internal financial control 
systems? Our survey shows that financial viability is an area 
of priority for future internal audit coverage.

Examples of such risks are financial resilience, medium-
term financial strategies and decisions around commercial 
strategies. Typically, the planning and decision making on 
such strategies will take place at a senior level within the 
organisation, and they can be complex and technical. This 
can mean they are difficult for internal audit to approach. 
However, their strategic importance to the organisation is 
such that they come with big financial risks. They are also 
areas the audit committee should be seeking independent 
assurance on. 

Neither the audit committee nor internal audit will be 
seeking to influence the financial policies themselves, but 
they will want to feel confident that the strategy is sound, 
supported by robust data and incorporates risk management 
measures. They should therefore audit the arrangements 
and assumptions underpinning those decisions, plans and 
strategies. 

This area provides an opportunity for internal audit to have 
an impact in an area clearly linked to the achievement of 
organisational objectives. To be most effective in this area, 
auditors will need to have a good understanding of the 
financial framework in which their organisation operates. 
In public bodies, particularly local government, this can 
be complex, involving government grants, local taxation, 
rental income, investment income, fees and charges 
and its own capital management. The auditor will also 
need to understand how macro trends will impact on the 
organisation; for example, demographics, inflation, interest 
rates, national and local economic growth and technological 
innovation may all be relevant. Changes to government 
policy can also impact directly on public bodies’ plans, so 
their internal auditors need to keep up to date with the wider 
policy agenda. 

P
age 100



21CIPFA Thinks | Internal audit: untapped potential

Going beyond assurance 

Internal auditors provide a range of services as well 
as assurance
We have not asked internal auditors or their clients to 
provide an overview of their current internal audit plan and 
its priorities but did ask for feedback on the internal audit 
approach, engagement and particular tools or activities.

The responses to a question on how internal audit currently 
contributes to an organisation reflect a somewhat traditional 
view of internal audit activity. Unsurprisingly, independent 
and objective assurance is the highest-ranking response. 
Other activities that would perhaps be expected in a high-
functioning internal audit team such as providing advice, 
helping to understand the root cause of weaknesses and 
audit coverage relating to major change receive a much lower 
ranking and may reflect that internal audit could have more 
of an impact in delivering its core role and current assurance 
plans.

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80

Assurance or advice on significant partnerships or joint ventures

Real-time assurance

Assurance or advice on major change

Sharing insight on good practice or comparisons with other organisations

Sharing information on emerging risks and issues that could impact the organisation

Advocating for sound risk management

Telling management and the audit committee things that were not already known by these groups

Advisory/consultancy role

Identifying opportunities or efficiencies as well as control weaknesses or risks

Understanding the root cause of internal control, risk management or governance weaknesses

Independent and objective assurance

Percentage (%)

Respondents’ views on how internal audit currently contributes to the organisation.

P
age 101



22CIPFA Thinks | Internal audit: untapped potential

Supporting improved risk maturity
There are several different models of risk maturity available. We set out a simple, 
four-scale descriptive framework and asked respondents to share their view of their 
organisation’s current risk maturity, with maturity increasing from left to right on the 
descriptors set out below.

Step 4

Risk decisions are embedded in how 
the organisation is run. 

Our understanding of risks and 
opportunities drives our assurance 
priorities and the information report to 
management/the board.

Step 1

The organisation is just starting out 
with risk management.

Step 2

The organisation has identified and 
assessed its risks.

There is not yet a clear link 
to how this informs the board/audit 
committee’s view of assurance or 
information needs.

Step 3

The organisation has a risk register 
and understands its risk appetite. 

There is reasonable linkage between 
our risks and the assurance/ 
information provided to management 
and the board/audit committee.

P
age 102



23CIPFA Thinks | Internal audit: untapped potential

We can see a difference between the views of heads of 
internal audit, management and audit committees. Overall, 
management and audit committee members considered that 
their risk management arrangements were more mature than 
the view of internal auditors.

The results from both auditors and clients indicate that there 
is scope to improve arrangements for managing risk in public 
sector bodies. Thirty-one percent of respondents believe that 
the impact of internal audit would be enhanced if there was 
greater support to help the organisation understand risk and 
its risk maturity – areas where there is scope for internal audit 
to bring its advisory role to bear.

Recommendation:
Leadership teams and audit committees should strengthen 
their risk management arrangements. Internal audit’s 
annual opinion on risk management should provide clarity 
over aspects for improvement and identify opportunities for 
support.

Sharing best practice
On the theme of value, clients’ perceptions of quality were 
influenced by the ability of internal audit to share ideas 
and good practice across departments or from other 
organisations. Such insight was found to be useful and added 
value to the internal audit process. 

Fourteen percent of respondents said that internal audit 
currently contributes to the organisation’s success and 
delivery of strategic priorities by sharing good practice and/
or comparisons with other organisations. A further 19% of 
respondents identified this as a future priority for internal 
audit. 

Our internal audit service is able to provide 
comparisons and informal insights from 
other blue light organisations. This helps 
the audit committee gauge its response, 
particularly regarding systemic issues. 

Jonathan Swan, Chair of the Joint Audit Committee for the Essex 
Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner and Essex Police

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

Risk decisions are embedded 
in how the organisation is run

The organisation has a risk register 
and understands its risk appetite

The organisation has identified 
and assessed its risks

The organisation is just starting 
out with risk management

H
ea

d 
of

 in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it

Se
ni

or
 m

an
ag

er

A
ud

it 
co

m
m

itt
ee

 m
em

be
r

Percentage (%)

Respondents’ views on risk maturity (by role).

P
age 103



24CIPFA Thinks | Internal audit: untapped potential

Data analysis

The impact of internal audit comes not only from the nature 
of topics on which it focuses, but also the tools used. Many 
internal audit teams are using some form of data analytics, 
including spreadsheets, specialist analytical tools such as 
ACL and IDEA, and data visualisation tools such as Power BI 
and Tableau. 

Where data analytics are not already being used by the 
internal audit function, 68% of internal auditors and 40% of 
clients think that adding analytics to the audit toolkit would 
be beneficial.

Respondents were aware that internal auditors are seeking 
to use analytics and to upskill team members, but also 
reflected barriers such as multiple legacy systems and 
challenges to accessing the organisation’s data.

During 2021, we recruited at trainee level 
and had a tremendous response in the 
number of applicants. One of the lessons 
learnt from the recruitment process is the 
number of potential recruits with significant 
data analytics experience. 

In subsequent processes, this will be an 
area that we specifically highlight in the 
job adverts to further increase the talents 
required for the service moving forward. 

Jonathan Idle, Head of Internal Audit, Kent County Council 

The consulting role of internal audit
The definition of internal auditing recognises that internal 
audit has both an assurance and consulting role. 

Internal auditing is an independent, objective assurance 
and consulting activity designed to add value and 
improve an organisation’s operations. It helps an 
organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing 
a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and 
improve the effectiveness of risk management, control, 
and governance processes.

International Standards for the Professional Practice of 
Internal Auditing/PSIAS

Eighty-six percent of respondents stated that internal audit 
delivered advisory or consulting work or provided ad hoc 
advice to the organisation. Notably, stakeholders appear less 
aware of this, with just 59% of audit committee respondents 
confirming this role compared with 73% of management 
and 95% of heads of internal audit. However, only 24% of 
respondents saw the advisory role as a current priority in 
terms of best describing how internal audit contributes to the 
success of the organisation. 

When responses about advisory work are compared by 
the internal audit resourcing model, more respondents 
with in-house internal audit agreed that their internal audit 
service provided advisory assignments or advice on new 
developments. The response regarding in-house teams using 
co-sourced arrangements reflected a similar response to in-
house teams that did not use co-sourcing. 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

Outsourced to 
an external provider

In-house internal 
audit team

Percentage (%)

79%

62%

Respondents who stated that internal audit provided 
advisory work or advice on new systems and 
developments.

P
age 104



25CIPFA Thinks | Internal audit: untapped potential

Our roundtable discussions with a range of internal auditors 
and stakeholders reflected a varied understanding of the 
advisory role of internal audit. Some stakeholders – audit 
committee members in particular – voiced their concern that 
internal audit undertaking consulting work can impair its 
independence and objectivity when it needs to later provide 
assurance in that same area.

Internal audit consulting input may not always be a 
standalone assignment; for many internal audit teams, a core 
element of their advisory role is to attend project or steering 
groups to act as a critical friend. It is key that internal auditors 
should not have a decision-making role at any such meeting; 
however, being present enables internal audit to be aware 
of progress and make decisions to determine how it can best 
respond to support the organisation (including planning, 
real-time assurance or being able to ask questions to check 
that decisions made are well thought through). Internal 
audit will also seek to ensure good governance, with risk 
management and control built into any new development, 
control framework or scheme.

I have found that sitting on various 
programme and change boards has helped 
the organisation better understand how 
internal audit can support programmes. We 
are now invited in by programme teams 
rather than having to assert our right to 
provide assurance or advice.  

A recent example is the new case 
management system. The programme board 
asked for internal audit input during the 
development phase. We are able to provide 
challenge on how the new system meets the 
needs of the organisation, whether previous 
audit findings have been addressed, and 
test the proposed control framework early 
enough to make a difference. 

Paula Mills, Head of Governance and Assurance, Basildon 
Borough Council 

P
age 105



26

What is holding 
internal audit 
back? P

age 106



27CIPFA Thinks | Internal audit: untapped potential

The challenges set out in the following pages are faced by 
many public sector organisations. That is not to say that 
these are faced by all, or that internal audit teams, senior 
management or audit committees are not seeking solutions 
or taking action. There are also variations across different 
parts of the public sector and differing views between 
internal auditors and their clients. 

The obstacles noted will be interdependent for some 
organisations; it is likely that internal audit functions with a 
low profile will also be less likely to argue the need for more 
resource or enhanced training. Similarly, an organisation that 
is not yet risk mature may be less likely to seek assurance on 
strategic priorities. 

Resourcing

Capacity of internal audit
The level of internal audit resourcing is often a difficult one. 
How much assurance is sufficient? What other assurances 
exist? What skills and experience are needed to deliver the 
required assurance? Internal audit functions, alongside those 
in other departments, have seen headcount reductions over 
the past decade.  

In our 2021 survey, CIPFA asked clients and internal auditors 
for their views on internal audit resourcing. When asked 
specifically about the resource capacity of internal audit, 
there is a difference in views between groups of respondents, 
with clients more positive than internal auditors on the 
current capacity of the internal audit service to provide the 
service the organisation requires.

Forty-three percent of internal auditors said that increasing 
the capacity of internal audit was a priority for improving its 
impact and effectiveness. Less than 30% of clients agreed 
this was a priority. However, a related question (see right) on 
whether internal audit has the resource capacity to provide 
the service the organisation requires indicated a higher 
percentage of clients recognising capacity constraints

0 20 40 60 80 100

Strongly agree

Agree

Neither disagree nor agree

Disagree

Strongly disagree

Internal auditors

Head of internal audit

Senior manager

Audit committee member

Percentage (%)

Internal audit has the resources (capacity) to provide the 
service the organisation requires. View based on role of 
respondent.P

age 107



28CIPFA Thinks | Internal audit: untapped potential

Balancing resource
Resourcing was a topic of discussion at our roundtable 
events, with several heads of internal audit noting that there 
can be a difference between the levels of assurance an 
organisation requires (client appetite for assurance) and the 
levels of assurance an organisation needs. Many commented 
on the need for more resources in comments within their 
survey responses, together with the challenges in ensuring 
there are sufficiently experienced auditors to complete more 
complex work as well as provide coaching and support to 
trainees. A change in the skills and experience of the internal 
audit team was also seen as a route to being able to provide 
real-time assurance and to innovate, with some respondents 
welcoming trainees but noting a reduced ability to address 
strategic issues when a team is reliant on new entrants. 

In its 2019 report on local authority governance, the National 
Audit Office (NAO) identified that there was a decrease of 
34.2% in real-term spending on corporate support services by 
local authorities from 2010/11 to 2017/18. Internal audit has 
faced similar levels of budget reduction, and the trend has 
continued. Other parts of the public services have also faced 
resource pressures.

The capacity of internal audit functions in 
local government has decreased significantly 
at a time when the challenges and risks 
facing the sector have increased massively. 

Local government survey respondent 

Skills, experience and internal audit approaches
It may be that for many organisations, the overall budget for 
internal audit – and therefore the quantum of audit days – is 
in the gift of the leadership team, but how that budget is used 
and the skills available to deliver the internal audit plan are 
the responsibility of the head of internal audit or internal audit 
provider. 

Views on skills and experience are notably more positive than 
views on resource capacity across all groups of respondents.

0 20 40 60 80 100

Qualified/experienced internal auditor, incl trainee internal auditor

Head of internal audit or equivalent

Executive/senior manager

Audit committee member

Strongly agree

Agree

Neither disagree nor agree

Disagree

Strongly disagree

Percentage (%)

Internal audit has the skills and experience to provide the 
service the organisation requires. View based on role of 
respondent.

P
age 108



29CIPFA Thinks | Internal audit: untapped potential

We also asked respondents if any tools or approaches 
were not currently used by their internal audit function that 
would be beneficial. Use of analytics within the internal 
audit approach significantly outweighed other tools and 
approaches. As with other skills and experience, this will 
require investment in the internal audit team to develop 
analytical skills, provide the right tools and embed analytics 
into the internal audit approach.

In addition to greater integration of analytics, survey 
respondents identified the following approaches as being of 
benefit to their internal audit function.

•  Real-time assurance

•  Sharing insight on good practice or comparisons with other 
organisations

•  Assurance or advice on major change

•  Identifying opportunities or efficiencies as well as control 
weaknesses or risks

•  Sharing information on emerging risks and issues that 
could impact the organisation.

Internal auditors and their stakeholders recognise the fast 
pace of change, and that internal audit needs to keep ahead 
to best support the organisation. This results in the need for 
internal audit to: 

•  provide assurance on emerging issues and areas of change 
or transformation 

•  be equipped to play a constructive yet independent 
advisory role 

•  respond to the pace of change by providing real-time 
assurance 

•  understand and adopt new technologies 

•  maintain the ability to provide a core assurance on 
business-as-usual risks and operations.

This does not mean that internal auditors need to be experts 
in every topic, but that the wider team has appropriate 
analytical, critical thinking, communication and risk-based 
auditing skills to be able to approach those topics. The role 
of internal audit could also be to understand other assurance 
that’s available and any potential gaps in assurance. This 
assists the head of internal audit in developing the internal 
audit plan, but also management and the audit committee 
when considering the quantum of assurance and any 
additional assurance required. For example, while cyber risk 
was an area that nearly two thirds of respondents identified 
as an area where assurance will be required, this does not 
mean that internal audit will have the in-depth subject matter 
expertise of cyber specialists. 

From our research, CIPFA has concluded that internal auditors 
are agreeing plans for which they have the skills to deliver. 
Under internal auditing standards, internal auditors should 
not undertake work that the function does not have the skills 
or experience for. However, it is recognised that the assurance 
needs of organisations are changing and that internal audit 
must be able to respond to this. Internal audit needs to be 
ahead of the organisation to help it understand its risks and to 
plan focused assurance on emerging issues, transformation 
and strategic objectives, and therefore there is pressure on 
internal audit to progress, evolve and address new areas, as 
discussed later in this report.

We need to be realistic about the skills 
we expect from internal audit. Our subject 
matter expertise is auditing; we cannot 
expect to be subject matter experts in every 
topic we audit. Internal audit teams need 
core skills that include risk-based internal 
auditing that can be applied to any topic, 
financial literacy, technological capability 
and data literacy.  

Stan Farmer, Chief Auditor, The Open University 

P
age 109



30CIPFA Thinks | Internal audit: untapped potential

The wider economic view of skills and roles required
In its 2020 report on the future of jobs, the World Economic 
Forum (WEF) noted the technologies that companies thought 
were likely to be adopted by 2025, reflecting the need for 
internal auditors to keep pace with the use of data and 
digitisation in their organisations. 

The same report notes that there is an expected demand 
for data analysts and data scientists, machine learning 
specialists and big data specialists. This reflects the 
suggestions for future coverage by internal audit as seen 
earlier in this report, indicating the ever-growing use of data 
and technology and the corresponding need for assurance 
providers to be able to work with data. 

2018 Difference2025

0 20 40 60 80 100

Share of company surveyed (%)

Cloud computing (17%)

Big data analytics (2%)

Internet of things and connected devices (9%)

Encryption and cybersecurity (29%)

Artificial intelligence (inc. ML and NLP) (8%)

Text, image and voice processing (-)

E-commerce and digital trade (2%)

Robots, non-humanoid (eg industrial automation, drones) (10%)

Augmented and virtual reality (1%)

Distributed ledger technology (eg blockchain) (11%)

3D and 4D printing and modelling (10%)

Power storage and generation (-)

New materials (eg nanotubes, graphene) (-12%)

Biotechnology (8%)

Robots, humanoid (11%)

Quantum computing (-5%)

Technologies likely to be adopted by 2025 (by share of companies surveyed). 

Source: The Future of Jobs Report 2020 (World Economic Forum).

P
age 110

https://www.weforum.org/reports/the-future-of-jobs-report-2020


31CIPFA Thinks | Internal audit: untapped potential

Attracting recruits to the profession in the public 
services
Another factor holding internal audit back is the challenge of 
recruitment and retaining the right skills within the internal 
audit function. While views on levels of resources and how 
those resources are used varied across respondents and 
those participating in roundtable discussions, one theme 
was common in discussions and interviews: the challenge of 
attracting and retaining quality internal auditors. 

We need internal audit to be seen as a 
valuable career route for the benefit of the 
profession and the organisations in which 
we audit. 

Glen Bissett, Senior Financial Auditor, Scottish Prison Service 

Survey respondents shared insights into the challenges of 
recruiting to the internal audit function and the ability to 
match the nature of internal audit coverage with appropriate 
skills and resources. There was also feedback that some 
small internal audit teams are only able to deliver a basic 
assurance plan covering the bare minimum, which can 
impact the desirability of a role within that function, leading to 
challenges in recruiting or retaining the right staff. 

Based on our research, CIPFA’s view is that there are four 
key factors impairing internal audit’s capacity and ability to 
recruit, retain or procure the required skills.

Continuing development of the internal audit 
team 
•  Lack of funding to improve knowledge and skills, 

which can impair internal audit’s ability to build skills 
in emerging areas such as analytics.

•  Training budgets are often the first to be cut.

•  Challenges in arranging secondments or guest 
auditors to augment the skill set of the existing 
internal audit team. Obstacles exist around the 
desirability of such opportunities or the capacity of 
other departments to release staff to internal audit.

Culture
•  Lack of recognition of the advisory or consulting 

capability of internal audit can impact the morale and 
retention rates in the internal audit team.

•  Some internal audit teams are looking to strengthen 
skills in particular areas where the organisation 
is perceived to be weak (implying there was an 
expectation that upskilling internal audit teams 
would help compensate for lack of skills in the wider 
organisation).

•  The need for management to address the findings 
from internal audit reports.

•  The varied profile of internal audit within 
organisations. For some, this can impede internal 
audit’s access to top management.

•  Some organisations have a culture of tolerating 
internal audit rather than using and seeking internal 
audit and assurance.Attracting people to the audit profession

•  The need for more apprentices and school and 
university leavers to join the internal audit profession 
(and indeed the external audit profession).

•  Consideration of how internal audit can be part of a 
wider career path, so that internal audit skills are seen 
as a beneficial experience for other roles and internal 
audit teams can benefit from specialist knowledge 
other than internal auditing.

•  Training and qualifications for internal auditors need 
to reflect the skills that the auditors of tomorrow will 
require.

•  Concerns that in some parts of the public sector, there 
may be a disparity between pay/grading for internal 
auditors compared with their peers in accountancy roles.

Behaviours and soft skills
•  Internal audit functions need the right behaviours 

and softer skills as well as technical competencies, 
including strategic thinking, and the ability to work 
proactively, flexibly and at pace.

Key factors impacting internal audit’s capacity and ability 
to procure and retain the required skills

1

3

2

4

P
age 111



32CIPFA Thinks | Internal audit: untapped potential

Recent and forthcoming action: 
CIPFA recently updated the syllabus for its Professional 
Accountancy Qualification, which contains greater content 
that will be relevant to internal auditors compared with 
previous iterations. The qualification is also available as a 
Level 7 apprenticeship.

Future plans:

•  CIPFA and the CIIA have agreed to work together to raise 
the profile of the profession in the public sector.

•  CIPFA and the CIIA will support the profession in the 
public services through encouraging different routes into 
the profession. The institutes will undertake research 
on career paths and routes into internal audit to help 
develop sustainable teams, including for guest auditors or 
professionals who join internal audit later in their career. 
This should also help raise the awareness of internal audit, 
its benefits and its purpose.

Recommendations:
•  Organisations should ensure that the responsibilities of 

internal auditors are recognised – for example, the need to 
engage at a senior level and have access to commercial 
and sensitive information. This may warrant a review of 
role or pay/grading structure and should recognise the 
unique role of internal auditing rather than simply reflecting 
line management responsibilities and comparisons with 
accounting colleagues. 

•  To build sustainable career paths for internal auditors, 
heads of internal audit, senior management and audit 
committees should recognise opportunities for models 
such as secondments, guest auditors and rotational 
programmes to support internal audit’s skills needs. 
Rotation of staff within the organisation could also help to 
build awareness of the benefits and the purpose of internal 
audit.

•  Internal audit functions should develop not only a plan 
of the audit work they will undertake, but also a strategy 
for their function’s development and how it will flex to 
meet the future needs of the organisation. This is likely to 
include the nature of the work, the tools and skills required 
to undertake it and resources. This should be agreed with 
top management and the audit committee and progress 
reported on as part of the quality and improvement 
programme of the function. 

•  Where an individual manages the internal audit team and 
delivers the responsibilities of the chief audit executive as 
set out in PSIAS, the responsibility of the head of internal 
audit should be recognised in terms of job title, ability to 
present to senior management committees and meetings, 
and access to the most senior personnel.

The majority of our training budget goes 
to support our trainees. Experienced 
internal auditors get very little targeted or 
personalised training or development. 

Internal Audit Manager, the public sector

P
age 112



33CIPFA Thinks | Internal audit: untapped potential

Selecting the right model of internal audit
Internal auditing standards apply to any internal audit 
service, regardless of the model employed, but do not 
mandate the model that should be used. There are several 
different models of internal audit service. 

•  In-house – the internal audit service is provided by a team 
of people who are employees of the organisation.

•  Outsourced – the internal audit service is provided by a 
team of people who are not employees of the organisation. 
This may be through a shared service, a formal commercial 
contract or another partnership arrangement.

•  Co-sourced – an in-house internal audit service that 
secures some of its resource from external parties. This 
may be on an ad hoc basis or a formal partnering contract 
or arrangement. This is often a model used by in-house 
teams to procure particular expertise or skills to augment 
the existing team.

Our survey did not demonstrate that one model has clear 
strengths or weaknesses above the others. There were, 
however, some individuals with strong preferences for a 
particular model of delivery.

Our survey respondents reported that outsourced services 
have greater capacity, but there was little difference in views 
on the skills and capability across different models. As noted 
earlier, survey responses reflected a greater perception of 
advisory work from in-house internal audit teams compared 
with outsourced services.

0 20 40 60 80 100

Outsourced to an external provider

In-house team with a co-sourced arrangement

In-house internal audit team

Neither disagree nor agree

Strongly agree Disagree

Agree Strongly disagree

Percentage (%)

Internal audit has the resources (capacity) to provide the 
service the organisation requires. View based on internal 
audit resourcing model.

0 20 40 60 80 100

Outsourced to an external provider

In-house team with a co-sourced arrangement

In-house internal audit team

Neither disagree nor agree

Strongly agree Disagree

Agree Strongly disagree

Percentage (%)

Internal audit has the skills and experience to provide  
the service the organisation requires. View based on 
internal audit resourcing model.

When comparing views on the available resources based 
on the model of internal audit, an outsourced service 
has stronger capacity. Given these responses come from 
individuals who provide such a service or have likely been 
involved in procuring that service, this may not be surprising, 

given most tenders are based on a view on the overall 
quantum of resource to be delivered, and therefore, in 
effect, are an agreement on the level of assurance that the 
organisation will receive. 

P
age 113



34CIPFA Thinks | Internal audit: untapped potential

All models can be made to work, but the organisation must 
be mindful of what it needs to do to make its chosen model 
work. When selecting a model, the focus should be on what 
assurance is needed to facilitate informed prioritisation 
of coverage and the skills and quantum of assurance, not 
what assurance can be afforded in the allocated budget. 
Organisations that have a good understanding of their 
assurance requirements and priorities will be better placed to 
make an informed decision about the nature of internal audit 
required and the best way to deliver that. 

Although there are three broad models – in-house, co-
sourced and outsourced – some shared service and audit 
partnership models try to operate in a similar way to in-house 
teams, for example by basing a permanent team within an 
organisation, supplemented with flexibility and support. 

This table below sets out broad advantages and 
disadvantages of in-house and outsourced models. The 
exact operational arrangement may, in practice, bridge both 
models.

Advantages Disadvantages

In-house internal audit

Better knowledge of the organisation and people within it.
Easier to build effective working relationships with a 
constant presence. 
An effective internal audit department can be used as 
a secondment to support management development 
programmes. 
Regular liaison with other internal assurance functions and 
management.
Some heads of internal audit have a role in the 
management team and are therefore present for 
discussions on emerging issues and determining how 
internal audit can best support the organisation as priorities 
change.
If the internal audit budget allows for consultancy/advice, 
this can be provided as part of a budgeted cost rather than 
an additional fee.

Many internal audit teams are facing challenges in recruiting 
quality candidates with the skills required.
The smaller the audit team, the more challenging it will be to 
have all the skills required within that team.
The risk of long-tenured team members may lead to impaired 
objectivity and innovation.
Small internal audit teams in particular may find it difficult to 
provide succession and promotion opportunities.
Unplanned absences can delay the internal audit plan and 
impact service delivery.

P
age 114



35CIPFA Thinks | Internal audit: untapped potential

Advantages Disadvantages

Outsourced internal audit

Able to share good practice and lessons learned observed 
in other organisations.
Able to provide benchmarking or comparative data from 
similar organisations.
More options and flexibility to provide staff or subject matter 
expertise. 
A shared service model could allow for staff to be based 
predominantly with one client and therefore to build 
knowledge of the organisation.

Lack of clarity over responsibility and accountability for 
internal audit and assurance.
There may be reluctance to provide formal assurance 
opinions on certain topics.
The risk that management will not perceive their 
responsibility for maintaining an effective internal audit 
function.
The organisation may not engage as effectively with an 
external provider. 
Lack of organisational knowledge, including of the culture of 
the organisation. 
A contract manager or key contact is still required to ensure 
effective liaison between the organisation and the internal 
audit provider.
The risk of high staff rotation leading to lack of familiarity with 
the organisation.
A focus on price rather than quality when contracting for an 
outsourced service may prohibit extensive input from senior 
staff or specialists.

A co-sourced internal audit service is one with an in-house 
team that also has an arrangement to draw on resources 
from an external provider. In many ways, this helps the 
internal audit service reap the benefits from both the in-
house and outsourced models; in particular, a co-sourced 
arrangement provides access to additional staff and subject 
matter expertise. Intelligent procurers of co-sourced services 
will also seek to ensure skills and knowledge transfer 
between the external and internal teams, and to obtain to 
share insights and experience from the co-sourced partner’s 
wider client base.

P
age 115



36CIPFA Thinks | Internal audit: untapped potential

Managing internal audit 
independence

Independence and objectivity are essential to effective 
internal audit. Some of the barriers discussed below may be 
factors of perception, which can then impair stakeholders’ 
views on the quality of internal audit. 

Roles beyond internal audit
Fifty percent of the heads of internal audit who responded 
to the survey have other responsibilities as well as leading 
the internal audit function. This figure rises to 60% in local 
government. 

Of the additional responsibilities that heads of internal audit 
have, the most common were:

•  risk manager

•  head of counter fraud

•  governance.

There was also a range of additional roles for heads of 
internal audit who have a clear second-line function, such as 
business continuity, health and safety, insurance and data 
protection. Internal auditing standards provide guidance on 
how such additional roles should be managed and risks to 
independence and objectivity communicated. 

It was surprising to find some heads of internal audit state 
they had responsibilities for operational areas such as 
procurement, council tax or debtors, meaning those heads 
of internal audit would have to find other approaches to 
providing assurance on those areas rather than providing the 
assurance themselves. 

Chief audit executive roles beyond internal auditing

Where the chief audit executive has or is expected to 
have roles and/or responsibilities that fall outside of 
internal auditing, safeguards must be in place to limit 
impairments to independence or objectivity.

Interpretation:

The chief audit executive may be asked to take on 
additional roles and responsibilities outside of internal 
auditing, such as responsibility for compliance or risk 
management activities. These roles and responsibilities 
may impair, or appear to impair, the organisational 
independence of the internal audit activity or the 
individual objectivity of the internal auditor. Safeguards 
are those oversight activities, often undertaken by the 
board, to address these potential impairments, and 
may include such activities as periodically evaluating 
reporting lines and responsibilities and developing 
alternative processes to obtain assurance related to the 
areas of additional responsibility. 

Extract from the International Standards for the 
Professional Practice of Internal Auditing and the PSIAS

Recommendation:
Organisations should minimise or avoid passing on additional 
roles to the head of internal audit. Where heads do have roles 
beyond internal auditing, there must be adequate safeguards 
in place to preserve independence in accordance with the 
standards. For example, a budget should be provided to fund 
the commissioning of internal audit assurance in those areas 
that come under the responsibility of the head.

One concern flagged by clients was that internal auditors 
may impair their independence by undertaking advisory or 
consulting work. The consulting role of internal audit is set 
out within PSIAS, as are a number of safeguards. The head 
of internal audit must take a balanced view on priorities that 
can be delivered with the available skills and resource, and 
for some internal audit teams, this may preclude significant 
amounts of advisory work. Undertaking advisory work 
can also mean that internal audit cannot provide formal 
assurance around that area. Internal auditing standards 
state that internal audit can provide assurance where it has 
previously provided consulting services, provided the nature 
of the consulting input does not impair objectivity and steps 
are taken to manage individual objectivity when assigning 
team members to the audit – something that will be easier to 
manage for larger internal audit functions. 

However, many internal auditors undertake advisory work 
below the radar, such as sitting on project or steering groups 
as an observer or critical friend. There is a need for internal 
auditors to communicate more, not only about these activities 
but also the benefits they bring to the organisation.

P
age 116



37CIPFA Thinks | Internal audit: untapped potential

A third factor was also present in concerns about internal 
audit independence and objectivity: the fact that some 
internal auditors have been in post for many years. In its 
Internal Audit Code of Practice, the CIIA recommends: 

“Where the tenure of the chief internal 
auditor exceeds seven years, the audit 
committee should explicitly discuss annually 
the chair’s assessment of the chief internal 
auditor’s independence and objectivity”. 

This does not mean that long-serving heads of internal 
audit lack independence or objectivity, but that the audit 
committee should have greater understanding of the risk of 
over-familiarity and actions to mitigate that risk. This code 
does not apply to the public sector but will be relevant to third 
sector and not-for-profit organisations aligned with the public 
services.

Internal audit reporting lines
When commenting on organisational independence, both 
global internal auditing standards and PSIAS state that 
the head of internal audit “must report to a level within the 
organisation that allows the internal audit activity to fulfil its 
responsibilities”. The standards go on to explain the nature of 
internal audit’s relationship and interactions with the board2 
(and/or audit committee). The PSIAS go further, setting out an 
explicit expectation about access to the chief executive and 
chair of the audit committee.

The chief audit executive3 must report functionally to 
the board. The chief audit executive must also establish 
effective communication with, and have free and 
unfettered access to, the chief executive and the chair of 
the audit committee.

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards

We asked heads of internal audit about their functional and 
administrative reporting lines. It is recognised that many 
heads of internal audit in effect have two reporting lines: 
one within the management structure and one to the audit 
committee.

2 Internal auditing standards recognise that for most organisations, this role 
will be discharged by the audit committee on behalf of the board.
3 Internal auditing standards use the phrase ‘chief audit executive’ for the 
person who leads the internal audit function. In many UK public sector 
organisations, this role will be known as the head of internal audit, chief 
internal auditor or similar.

Reporting lines within the management structure
The traditional internal audit reporting line to the chief 
financial officer remains a common model. As shown below, 
there are significant differences in typical internal audit 
reporting lines across sectors:

0 20 40 60 80 100

Head of service (not finance) 
who is not a member of the executive team

Head of financial services 
who is not a member of the executive team

Other member of the executive team

Finance director on the executive team

Chief executive

Other public sector

Police/fire

NHS

Local government

Education

Central government

Percentage (%)

Analysis of reporting lines by sector.

P
age 117



38CIPFA Thinks | Internal audit: untapped potential

We noted in roundtable discussions and survey responses 
that there remains a perception that internal audit in local 
government must report to the section 151 officer. As 
the NAO reiterated in its 2019 report on local authority 
governance, the legal responsibility for maintaining the 
system of internal control, including arrangements for the 
management or risk and an effective internal audit, lies with 
the elected council members, and therefore responsibility no 
longer rests solely with the section 151 officer. Comments 
were also made that for some local government and policing 
organisations, it was perceived that section 151 officers 
benefitted more from internal audit and that there should 
be clear emphasis on internal audit being for the wider 
organisation and not solely focused on financial control. This 
also reflects the various views we heard from management 
on their expectations from internal audit, ranging from an 
appetite for assurance on core systems only through to 
managers who were actively seeking greater engagement 
and focus on wider strategic risks and priorities.

Our analysis showed no apparent correlation between 
reporting lines and whether the internal audit service was 
provided in-house or through an outsourced provider.

… while the section 151 or similar legislative provisions 
require the authority to appoint a suitably qualified 
officer responsible for the proper administration of its 
affairs, responsibility for proper financial administration 
still rests ultimately with elected members. The local 
authority itself has a statutory responsibility for 
maintaining a system of internal control including the 
management of risk, an effective internal audit and 
preparing annual accounts.

Extract from CIPFA’s Financial Management Code

CIPFA’s guidance on the role of the head of internal audit 
says that heads of internal audit must report functionally 
to a member of the leadership team. In total, 9% of heads 
of internal audit told us that they do not have a reporting 
line into the chief executive or a member of the executive 
team. This could mean that the leadership team lacks 
understanding of the role of internal audit and the audit team 
lacks engagement with its principal client.

Reporting line to the audit committee
Eighty-six percent of heads of internal audit confirmed that 
they have a formal reporting line to the chair of the audit 
committee, meaning 14% do not have this formal reporting 
line. This could mean that the head of internal audit’s ability to 
report independently to the audit committee is compromised.

Recommendation: 
As a minimum, the head of internal audit should report to a 
member of the executive team for administration purposes 
and also have a reporting line to the chair of the audit 
committee.

P
age 118



39CIPFA Thinks | Internal audit: untapped potential

Audit committees

Low expectations by audit committees are another factor in 
holding back internal audit from fulfilling its potential. This 
is in part due to the weakness of some audit committees in 
some public bodies.

Role and oversight
The role of the audit committee is vital in setting the 
expectation within the governance structure for risk-based 
assurance on strategic priorities. It is also key, alongside 
senior management, in setting the expectations for internal 
audit’s performance.

One third of respondents to our survey were ambivalent 
or negative about their audit committee providing robust 
oversight, although 95% of heads of internal audit said they 
felt the audit committee listened to them. 

CIPFA’s own research on audit committees in local 
government has identified that while committees are 
supportive of the work of internal audit, they are less 
effective in providing professional oversight and providing 
challenge.4 This was mirrored by some survey respondents 
who commented that management needs to be better at 
responding to internal audit recommendations and that the 
audit committee has a role to ensure action is taken.

Some audit committee chairs and heads of internal audit 
have regular meetings, and discussions between meetings, 
along with private sessions between the audit committee and 
head of internal audit before or after committee meetings. 

4 CIPFA survey of audit committees in local authorities and police (2016). 

However, this relationship is not in place for all. Some audit 
committee chairs have had to push for private meetings to be 
included in the committee’s terms of reference. 

Recommendation: 
There should be regular private meetings between the 
audit committee and the head of internal audit with no 
management present. If such meetings are diarised, this 
avoids either party having to ask for such a meeting to be 
arranged before/after a planned committee meeting, which 
can create an expectation that significant issues need to be 
discussed. Such meetings should not prevent there being 
open and regular communication between the head of 
internal audit and audit committee chair throughout the year 
and between committee meetings.

Independent audit committee members
Another factor raised at roundtable discussions was the 
potential for political bias at local authority audit committees 
and the appointment of independent members to those 
committees. 

In 2019, the NAO emphasised the benefit of independent 
audit committee members, in particular as chair of the 
committee. The 2020 Redmond Review noted that 56% of 
local authorities had no independent member on the audit 
committee. One of the recommendations from the Redmond 
Review was that the governance arrangements within 
local authorities be reviewed by local councils to consider 
appointing at least one suitably qualified, independent 
member to the audit committee.

It is noteworthy that several local government participants 
in our roundtable discussions commented on the audit 
committee being perceived as a low-status committee 
role in some authorities. Local government respondents 
were the least positive regarding the effectiveness of audit 
committees. While some committees in this sector are clearly 
high performing, others were described in survey responses 
as ineffective, with members who were not engaged or 
interested. 

While Redmond’s recommendation focused on encouraging 
the appointment of at least one co-opted independent 
member, there has been considerable activity since. A 
working group of the Local Audit Monitoring Board (a board 
commissioned by the Department for Levelling Up, Housing 
and Communities (DLUHC)) was set up to look at this 
recommendation, among others. 

New guidance: 
CIPFA published strengthened guidance on audit 
committees in April 2022. 

The Position Statement emphasises the role that audit 
committees should have in the oversight of internal audit 
and ensuring accounts are prepared to a high standard, 
alongside broader changes including the appointment of 
independent members. 

In Wales, there has been a requirement since 2011 to have 
at least one lay member on council audit committees. New 
legislation through the Local Government and Elections 
Wales Act 2021 means there should be one-third lay 
members and a lay member as chair.

P
age 119

https://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/corporate-governance-documentation/cipfa-survey-of-audit-committees-in-local-authorities-and-police
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-authority-financial-reporting-and-external-audit-independent-review
https://www.cipfa.org/services/support-for-audit-committees
https://www.cipfa.org/services/support-for-audit-committees


40CIPFA Thinks | Internal audit: untapped potential

Role of the audit committee with respect to internal 
audit planning
Through roundtable discussions, we noted different 
approaches to internal audit across different organisations. 
There were differing views on the role of the audit committee 
regarding the internal audit plan. This varied from audit 
committee members who considered it their role to determine 
what the internal audit plan should be, potentially reducing 
the independence of the head of internal audit in determining 
internal audit priorities, through to committees that agreed 
plans they were not fully happy with.

While the audit committee should approve the internal audit 
plan, the plan should ultimately be the work of the head 
of internal audit setting out their independent view of the 
assurance priorities for the organisation. The plan should be 
developed according to the strategic priorities and risks of 
the organisation, and by consulting key stakeholders such 
as management and the audit committee. While the audit 
committee will be asked to approve the plan and may request 
additional topics or challenge why certain areas are flagged 
as priorities, the plan should remain a reflection of the head of 
internal audit’s view of the organisation’s assurance needs. It 
should also reflect how internal audit can help address those 
assurance requirements.

The chief audit executive must report functionally to 
the board. The chief audit executive must also establish 
effective communication with, and have free and 
unfettered access to, the chief executive (or equivalent) 
and the chair of the audit committee.

Public sector requirement from PSIAS

If we are looking for rigour and added value, 
we can’t have peer reviews for our internal 
audit external quality assessment.

If organisations are not prepared to spend 
once every five years on this type of review, 
what does that say about how they view 
the importance of a quality internal audit 
service? 

Vice Chair, of a London local authority audit committee

Assuring the audit committee on internal audit 
quality
The quality of internal audit must include conforming 
with relevant professional standards. Both the PSIAS and 
the International Standards include a requirement for an 
independent external assessment of internal audit to be 
undertaken at least once every five years. 

Several roundtable participants had received a review or 
had been involved; others were aware of the requirement, 
but budgetary constraints prevented such an external 
assessment from being progressed. Several authorities, 
particularly in local government, have undertaken peer 
reviews as a route to an external assessment. Some 
participants were concerned that this does not add the value 
that a truly independent review would and may miss the 
opportunity to share new practices and ideas, as well as 
potentially being less rigorous. 

Agreed action: 
CIPFA and the CIIA will consider the operation of the quality 
assurance and improvement programme in the public 
services and consult with the Internal Audit Standards 
Advisory Board.

P
age 120



41CIPFA Thinks | Internal audit: untapped potential

Lack of understanding of assurance – 
immature first and second lines

Internal audit will have the greatest impact in organisations that 
understand and embrace assurance. We look below at some of 
the organisational factors that can hold internal audit back.

A holistic view of assurance?
Assurance is a key element of the governance and risk 
management framework. It provides information and 
feedback to help management and the audit committee 
understand the effectiveness of the internal control 
framework and the robustness of risk management 
arrangements. The independence of assurance is also a 
key factor. Typically, organisations will have assurance 
activity within the first line (front-line activities and the role 
of management), the second line (functions such as risk 
management, compliance and health and safety), with 
internal audit as the most independent source of assurance 
referred to as the third line.

An assurance framework is a structured means of 
identifying and mapping the main sources of assurance 
in an organisation, and co-ordinating them to best effect.

Assurance frameworks, HM Treasury, 2012

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

Don’t know

No, but under development

No

Yes

Head of 
internal audit

Senior managerAudit committee 
member

Percentage (%)

Has the organisation identified how it obtains assurance 
across the full range of its activities (sometimes called an 
assurance framework or assurance map)? Responses by 
role.

CIPFA was keen to understand the wider culture of risk 
management and assurance within the public services, and 
therefore the context in which internal audit is provided. 
We asked respondents about the status of an assurance 
framework or similar mechanism within their organisation.

When asked if the organisation has identified how it obtains 
assurance across the full range of its activities, clients were 
significantly more positive than heads of internal audit. This 
may be for a number of reasons, including the understanding 
of what constitutes an effective assurance map, or that 
internal auditors may have higher expectations on the 
formality of such an exercise. 

Of all respondents, only 48% confirmed that their 
organisation had identified how it obtains assurance across 
the full range of its activities. This is surprisingly low, given 
the concept of assurance maps or frameworks has been in 
use for over 20 years. The most positive responses came from 
NHS, police and fire respondents. 

Sixty-four percent of respondents noted that internal auditors 
worked with risk colleagues to support assurance maps and 
identify and understand different sources of assurance. 

There is a need for audit committees to have a key role in 
overseeing the assurance framework, with internal auditors 
being integral not only to delivering assurance, but in 
collecting information and assessing the robustness of other 
assurance activity to help the committee’s understanding of 
the assurances available to the organisation. Through this 
approach, the audit committee acts as a sponsor alongside 
senior management and can help create a culture of seeking 
assurance, feedback and continual improvement to support 
risk management and decision making.P

age 121



42CIPFA Thinks | Internal audit: untapped potential

Internal auditors have a vested interest in an effective 
assurance framework and a robust three lines of assurance 
within the organisation. Twenty-five percent of respondents 
thought that internal audit could be more effective if other 
formal assurance activity in the organisation was developed 
(either first or second line). 

Some heads of internal audit noted that where there is no 
second line of assurance, or where second line functions 
are weak, internal audit functions can end up filling that 
gap by providing compliance-focused assurance. This may 
mean less internal audit resource is available for risk-based 
assurance on strategic priorities. 

Crucially, organisations that do not share a good 
understanding of their assurances across management, the 
audit committee and internal audit can be less confident that 
they have robust control arrangements in place. The lack of 
clarity means it is more difficult to make full and effective use 
of internal audit.

Working with other assurance providers
The survey considered internal audit teams’ work with other 
assurance providers and the results showed less awareness 
of this area of activity among clients. 

Sixty-eight percent of heads of internal audit are working 
with risk management colleagues to understand other 
assurances available to the organisation. Fifty-nine percent of 
clients said this was happening in their organisations. 

For some organisations, there will be shared working, 
partnerships or joint ventures with third parties that could 
necessitate internal audit teams from different authorities 
working together. Forty-nine percent of heads of internal 
audit said they are working with internal audit teams from 
other organisations. 

Recommendations:
•  Internal audit plans should set out what other assurances 

are available and any work internal audit has undertaken 
to consider the reliability/scope of those assurances. If 
internal audit has not undertaken any such assessment, 
this should also be noted. For example, the internal audit 
plan could include a different aspect of the second line 
each year to provide assurance on those functions.

•  CIPFA will be publishing guidance on assurance 
frameworks in autumn 2022. While internal audit has an 
important part to play and significant insight to bring to the 
framework, the framework itself should be owned by the 
organisation, typically with sponsorship and oversight from 
the audit committee. 

•  Organisations should use CIPFA’s guidance to review and 
improve their assurance arrangements.

For audit committee members, an assurance 
map gives you a clear view of the assurance 
you need, and where and how that is 
provided. Where the second line is mature, 
internal audit can be freed up to focus on 
more strategic areas. 

Clare Minchington, Chair of the Audit and Risk Assurance 
Committee, Government Internal Audit Agency

P
age 122



43CIPFA Thinks | Internal audit: untapped potential

The impact of external audit disruption on 
organisations and internal audit
The assurance available to some public sector organisations 
has changed since the Audit Commission was abolished in 
2015. The scope of input, quality and timeliness of external 
audit has changed. The external audit of local government 
and health bodies in England has experienced a period of 
disruption that goes beyond the impact of the COVID-19 
pandemic. The problem has been most acute in local 
government, where audits are undertaken largely after those 
on health bodies are completed. 

The root of the problem is the change to a market provider 
model, where firms compete for contracts. Although local 
audit clients have audit arrangements in place, firms 
have been unable to deliver in accordance with contract 
expectations. The reasons for this were examined in the 
Redmond Review in 2020. 

Following the Redmond Review, the government is taking 
steps to improve the resilience of the public sector external 
audit market and address the report’s recommendations. As 
of spring 2022, the local audit arrangements are still fragile 
and are likely to remain so for a while.

In some bodies, working relations between the external 
auditor and client have become strained because of these 
difficulties. While most bodies initially welcomed reduced 
audit fees, there has been frustration with delays and 
the reduced value that the audit process has offered. 
External auditors themselves report dissatisfaction with the 
arrangements, citing a lack of understanding of the audit 
process among audit committees, low fees and a lack of 
regard for audit findings. 

Some internal auditors have reported that they have little 
contact with external auditors. The reduced reputation of 
external audit in the local government community and less 
interaction between the auditors also contributed to the 
difficulties faced by internal audit teams. Recent events, 
where the consequences of poor governance and poor 
financial management have been exposed, have created 
a greater understanding of the need to invest in and 
support internal audit alongside other aspects of corporate 
arrangements. The changes to the reporting on value for 
money introduced by the NAO from April 2020 onwards are 
helpful, as they create a narrative on the strength of local 
arrangements. 

There are opportunities for internal audit to interact more 
with external auditors to share findings and conclusions. To 
make a real success of this opportunity, the local audit market 
needs to be more robust.

P
age 123

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-authority-financial-reporting-and-external-audit-independent-review


44CIPFA Thinks | Internal audit: untapped potential

The quantum of internal audit 
resource and assurance

‘How much assurance is enough?’ is perhaps the million-
dollar question, and one to which there is no simple 
answer. The amount of coverage varies from organisation 
to organisation and is informed by various factors such as 
the size and complexity of the organisation, appetite for 
assurance, and the remit of the internal audit function. This 
will, in turn, determine the volume and nature of internal audit 
work and its ability to have an impact.

Appetite for assurance
As already seen, many respondents felt that internal 
audit has sufficient resources to provide the service the 
organisation requires. Some roundtable participants 
challenged the perception of the quantum of assurance 
required and that organisations may need more assurance 
than they appreciate. Therefore, there may be a gap between 
the assurance the organisation has agreed and the level of 
assurance it needs to obtain sufficient feedback and comfort 
on key risks, priorities and systems. 

The quantum of audit provided is perhaps the most 
challenging question for management and the head of 
internal audit, and it is not easy to set out a de minimis level 
that would work for two similar organisations, as there will be 
many factors that affect the risk profile and assurance needs 
of two organisations that, from the outside, seem similar. 

Questions around this may therefore cover areas that are not 
always easily quantifiable.

•  How much assurance do I need to provide to support the 
annual internal audit opinion? What areas of coverage 
should that include?

•  Is there an imbalance between the assurance I believe 
is needed by the organisation and what we are able to 
provide?

•  What change or transformation is occurring and where 
would assurance or advice from internal audit be useful? 
How do we maintain a balance between assurance on 
business as usual and areas of change and development?

•  What other sources of assurance exist? Does the scope of 
these support the work of the audit committee and is that 
assurance robust and reliable?

One of the main factors in different levels of assurance is the 
wider organisation and the budget and resources available 
for internal audit, likely linked to attitude to assurance and 
previous impact of the internal audit function. From group 
discussions, it is possible that difficult conversations will be 
needed around priorities, coverage, resources and internal 
audit’s ability to deliver a more strategic plan.

Smaller internal audit teams noted that networking and 
maintaining relationships with senior management is 
important, but more challenging when the size of the internal 
audit plan does not allow for internal audit to do more than 
a minimum assurance plan – an interdependency between 
resources, impact and engagement with the organisation. 

Recommendation: 
Internal audit plans should provide information on any areas 
not included within the plan and where the head of internal 
audit believes that assurance may be required. This should 
include an explanation of the rationale for non-inclusion, 
which can be used to inform discussions around prioritisation 
of the use of internal audit resources to facilitate a meaningful 
discussion with the audit committee.

P
age 124



45CIPFA Thinks | Internal audit: untapped potential

Impact of the pandemic
The question of how much assurance is needed has been a 
particular focus during the pandemic. From March 2020, the 
amount of internal audit delivered was impacted in many 
organisations, with internal auditors often redeployed to 
support the first line elsewhere in the organisation. For some 
local government and NHS organisations, this meant halting 
the internal audit plan for April to summer 2020, with further 
redeployments and delays during infection surges in winter 
2020/21 and 2021/22.

Thirty-six percent of respondents said that their internal 
audit plan had been suspended for a period of time. Fifty-
four percent noted that at least some of the internal audit 
team was redeployed to other roles. Eighty-five percent of 
internal audit plans were flexed to respond to emerging risks 
and priorities relating to the pandemic. One of the challenges 
of such disruption is the impact on the ability to provide an 
annual internal audit opinion. Guidance was provided by the 
IASAB, CIPFA, GIAA and HFMA for internal auditors across 
different parts of the public sector. During the pandemic, 
many heads of internal audit had to decide what work must 
continue as a bare minimum to be able to give an annual 
internal audit opinion. 

During the pandemic, internal audit team 
members were redeployed in both 2020/21 
and 2021/22 to support the trust where 
additional resource was needed. While 
internal audit resource was reduced, 
we pivoted the work of remaining team 
members to provide quick-response advisory 
reviews on emerging issues such as the 
setup of a Nightingale Hospital. Even when 
the team returned to internal audit, delivery 
of the plan was challenging due to pressures 
on frontline personnel and management.

While I determined how much assurance I 
needed to support my annual opinion during 
the pandemic, these were exceptional times. 
As a profession, we must acknowledge that 
the reduced quantity of assurance is not 
sustainable to routinely support an opinion 
in the longer term.

Mike Townsend, Head of Internal Audit, Barts Assurance

It was also noted that working remotely has reduced 
internal audit’s ability (as with many teams) to have quick, 
informal chats with colleagues across the organisation, 
which help maintain effective working relationships. Others 
noted that greater pressure on management in response 
to the pandemic meant that in some areas there was less 
willingness to engage with internal audit.

P
age 125



46CIPFA Thinks | Internal audit: untapped potential

Challenges in delivering the annual internal audit 
opinion
The PSIAS require public sector internal auditors to provide 
an annual opinion. This should inform the organisation’s 
annual governance statement. In some sectors such as 
higher education, the annual internal audit opinion will be 
used by the audit committee in developing its own annual 
report to the governing body. 

The chief audit executive must deliver an annual internal 
audit opinion and report that can be used by the 
organisation to inform its governance statement.

The annual internal audit opinion must conclude on the 
overall adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation’s 
framework of governance, risk management and control.

The annual report must also include a statement on 
conformance with the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards and the results of the quality assurance and 
improvement programme.

Extract from PSIAS

It is the head of internal audit’s responsibility to ensure that 
the audit plan, when taken together with other sources 
of assurance, will provide sufficient assurance to support 
this opinion. In CIPFA’s experience of quality assessments, 
a range of approaches exist to underpin the opinion. For 
this report, we undertook a review using publicly available 
resources of the 2020/21 annual opinion provided at 33 
London boroughs. This analysis reflects the variability of the 
nature and volume of audit work that heads of internal audit 
drew on when forming their annual opinion for 2020/21. 

Many of the opinions reflect the considerations of the head 
of internal audit regarding whether sufficient work has been 
completed on which to base the opinion; reference was made 
in reports to CIPFA’s guidance for internal auditors during the 
pandemic.

Other variations noted across those authorities’ annual 
internal audit reports include the following.

•  The scope of the opinion given. While relevant coverage 
may have been included within internal audit plans, 
36% of the opinions reviewed did not explicitly mention 
governance or risk management in the opinion statement, 
therefore appearing to omit a requirement of PSIAS. 

•  The scope of the organisation on which the opinion is 
given. Some annual opinions appear to be based on work 
both at the authority’s centre as well as in schools. Others 
were silent on this or appear to omit schools audit from 
their opinions, setting out schools’ audit work as a separate 
schedule of activity.

•  The volume of audit work supporting the opinion. 
Several heads of internal audit made a clear statement 
confirming they were satisfied that sufficient quantity 
and coverage of work had been undertaken to allow a 
conclusion to be drawn, and there were none stating they 
were unable to provide an opinion. There was a significant 
difference in the number of audits undertaken across 
the boroughs to support the 2020/21 opinion, varying 
from seven ‘systems audits’ and four ‘schools audits’ to 
authorities drawing on over 40 audits to form the opinion.

•  The form of wording. Many reports remind the reader 
that the assurance provided cannot be absolute, and 
therefore only reasonable assurance can be provided. 
However, the specific wording of the opinion varies, and 
these variations include the following: “adequate and 
effective”, “generally satisfactory”, “reasonable assurance”, 
“moderate assurance”, “limited assurance”, “a reasonable 
level of confidence”, “adequate and remains robust” and 
“good with improvements required in a few areas”. The 
most common conclusion wording used was “reasonable 
assurance”.

•  The work and assurances on which the opinion is 
based. Some opinions clearly state that they are based 
solely on work undertaken by internal audit. Others refer to 
consideration of risk management arrangements and other 
assurances available, including the work of second line 
functions such as anti-fraud teams. Some annual reports 
reflect the nature of audit work, setting out the number of 
assignments in year that were assurance, consultancy, 
follow-up or grant claim reviews, for example. Hillingdon is 
a useful example of this, informing the reader that the total 
number of audit assignments in each year has reduced 
by nearly a third between 2017 and 2021, although the 
overall number of assurance assignments has increased 
within that period. 

Notwithstanding CIPFA’s recognition that factors such as 
organisational complexity and appetite for assurance will 
impact on the quantum of audit, the variability identified in 
the quantum of audits underpinning the annual opinion is 
concerning. 

P
age 126



47CIPFA Thinks | Internal audit: untapped potential

Agreed action
•  CIPFA will work with the CIIA and IASAB to develop 

guidance on annual internal audit opinions to help heads 
of internal audit provide an opinion and audit committees 
in using that opinion.

•  CIPFA will consider options on how it can facilitate a 
thematic review of annual internal audit opinions, which 
will help heads of internal audit provide context and 
comparators with peers.

Recommendation: 
For local government with education responsibilities, consider 
an annual internal audit report that splits out schools’ audit 
work from the main opinion. This would make clearer the 
nature and quantum of assurance on which the opinion 
relating to the organisation’s central risk management, 
governance and control environment is based.

As a small internal audit team covering both 
the police force and office of the police and 
crime commissioner, I proactively seek out 
other independent assurances and feedback 
that are relevant to the framework of 
governance, risk management and control. 

The annual opinion I give each year is 
based on the internal audit work my team 
has delivered. I use the other assurances 
available to support and sense-check that 
opinion; it is a useful triangulation and 
also provides the Joint Independent Audit 
Committee with a view of the broader 
assurances and feedback from external 
parties during the year. This may include 
a report by Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of 
Constabulary and Fire & Rescue Services, 
or assurance from another organisation’s 
internal audit function where a service 
is outsourced or with whom the force 
collaborates.  

Neil Shovell, Chief Internal Auditor, Thames Valley Police and the 

Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner

P
age 127



48CIPFA Thinks | Internal audit: untapped potential

Organisational culture

Respondents were invited to provide any additional 
comments at the end of the survey. Analysis of text 
responses highlighted that culture was commented on as 
much as resources available for internal audit.

Comments were shared on the scope and coverage of 
internal audit, and that it is important to have a culture 
where internal audit findings are taken as independent, 
objective, professional advice to be acted on and taken into 
consideration. The need for a risk management culture to 
be embedded was also shared, and the ability for internal 
audit to have a voice at the top table to be able to engage in 
new initiatives, change or transformation at an early stage. 
Twenty-six percent of heads of internal audit surveyed felt 
that their role did not have appropriate status within the 
organisation. 

There was also recognition that greater use of data-driven 
tools for routine coverage should release audit resource to 
focus on more impactful work, including areas such as ethics 
and culture as well as governance.

Survey respondents shared views on what could improve 
the impact of internal audit in their organisation. As well as 
comments regarding resources and skills, the responses 
reflect the need for a cultural change, including one of 
assurance in all lines and not just by internal audit, and 
improving the risk maturity of the organisation.

While these areas will require buy-in from management and 
the audit committee, there is clearly a driver for internal audit 
to demonstrate its currency and that it can be strategic in its 
coverage and approach.

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40

Changing the supplier or resourcing model of internal audit

Improving access and engagement of internal audit with the audit committee

Addressing a lack of strategic focus from the board and/or top management

Improving internal audit’s strategic focus

Improving a weak or ineffective audit committee

Demonstrating to the business that internal audit is current

Enabling better engagement of internal audit with top management

Developing other formal assurance activity (such as in the first or second lines) within the organisation

Improving the relevant skills and experience of internal auditors

Supporting the organisation’s understanding of risk and its risk maturity

Changing the organisational culture and attitude to internal audit

Increasing resources (capacity) of internal audit

Improving the understanding of the purpose and value of internal auditing within the organisation

Percentage (%)

Views on what could improve the impact of internal audit in the organisation  
(respondents were asked to select their top three priorities).

P
age 128



49CIPFA Thinks | Internal audit: untapped potential

The framework for 
internal audit impact
The key elements of the internal audit impact model are defined below: 

Impact 
of internal 

audit

The internal 
audit team

Organisational 
context

Internal audit 
framework

Ex
pe

cta
tions

Appendix A: 

P
age 129



50CIPFA Thinks | Internal audit: untapped potential

Impact 

The ability of internal audit to support the organisation in 
achieving its strategic objectives and priorities. This will be 
through an appropriate mix of assurance, consulting activity 
and advice. The impact of internal audit will vary across 
organisations based on assurance needs, organisational 
culture, appetite for assurance and driving continual 
improvement.

Expectations

Stakeholder expectations: an impactful internal audit service 
will understand and manage stakeholder expectations. 
Where expectations of internal audit are low, the function 
will exceed these and raise expectations to help stakeholders 
understand the benefits of a modern, engaged internal 
audit function. Stakeholders are likely to include senior 
management, the audit committee and other assurance 
functions.

Audit expectations: internal auditors also set their own 
expectations in response to their professional judgement 
based on standards and their assessment of risks and audit 
needs.

Internal audit framework 

Internal auditing standards: the professional framework 
that provides the foundation for the core quality of internal 
auditing. As a minimum, internal audit functions should be 
conforming with the requirements of these standards.

Internal audit leadership: the function must be led in such 
a way that it strives to make an impact, while engaging 
with the organisation and maintaining its independence 
and objectivity. The head of internal audit must be a senior 
manager with regular and open engagement across the 
organisation, particularly with the leadership team and the 
audit committee.

Alignment with strategic priorities: the internal audit plan 
should be developed to address not only the key risks that 
the organisation faces but also support strategic objectives 
and priorities. This will also entail understanding where other 
assurance exists around strategic objectives and avoiding 
duplication or gaps in assurance. 

Internal audit team

Internal audit skills and resources: there should be a 
clear view of the skills and resources required to deliver the 
assurance that is needed by the organisation to support 
an effective governance and risk management framework. 
Where there are gaps, there are discussions with top 
management and the audit committee to understand the 
impact and to agree action.

Service delivery model: the selected model of delivery 
should enable internal audit’s professional delivery to the 
organisation according to its needs.

Organisational context 

Governance framework: the organisation has an effective 
governance framework and a high-performing audit 
committee, with members with appropriate skills and 
experience. There are clear and unrestricted reporting lines 
for the head of internal audit to the audit committee, including 
private meetings between the head of internal audit and the 
committee. 

Internal audit access to senior management: internal audit 
has unrestricted access to senior management, including 
the chief executive. There is regular dialogue, and the head 
of internal audit attends senior management meetings to be 
able to best understand the changing risks and assurance 
needs of the organisation. 

Risk and assurance culture: the organisation, led by those 
charged with governance, seeks assurance as an integral 
part of its risk management framework and the decision-
making process. Assurance is used to drive improvement and 
is viewed as an activity that supports decision making in all 
aspects of the organisation, both strategic and operational. 
The three lines model may be used as a structure to identify 
and plan assurance activity.  

P
age 130



51CIPFA Thinks | Internal audit: untapped potential

Appendix B: Maximising the impact of 
internal audit
Ten questions to ask your internal auditors

Suggested questions that senior management and audit committees should be asking to obtain the maximum 
impact from internal audit. Comparing views on these questions with the head of internal audit may also lead to 
some useful discussions.

Engagement with the organisation

1. Does internal audit receive the right level of support and engagement from the audit committee? 

2. Does internal audit get good engagement from across the organisation when it plans and conducts audits?

3.  Do managers within the organisation seek advice or assurance from internal audit?  
What are the drivers of or obstacles to this?

4.  Has the head of internal audit indicated that resources (capability or capacity) need to increase?  
What steps are being taken to address this?

P
age 131



52CIPFA Thinks | Internal audit: untapped potential

Quality, impact and continual improvement

5.  Does internal audit conform to PSIAS as demonstrated by an independent external quality assessment undertaken within 
the last five years?  
For local government organisations, this should also include conformance with the Local Government Application Note.

6.  What action is internal audit taking to continually improve its quality, engagement and impact for the organisation?  
Is internal audit considering the skills and competencies it will need in the future as well as now?

Assurance

7.  Is there a clear view of the assurance that internal audit does, and does not, provide?  
What assurance is provided by other functions or parties?  
Are there gaps in the assurance that management or the audit committee require?

8.  How do internal audit plans map to the organisation’s strategic priorities and risks? 

9.  How is internal audit developing its approach to providing assurance – for example, making greater use of data or 
undertaking audits with a more strategic focus? 

Strategy

10.  What factors currently determine our internal audit strategy?  
Are we confident that the strategy will deliver our internal audit needs in the future?

P
age 132



53CIPFA Thinks | Internal audit: untapped potential

Appendix C: References and literature 
considered in our research
In addition to references cited in footnotes, a wide range of literature, websites and reports were reviewed as part of this 
research. The following bibliography provides details of the main sources consulted and contains links to the relevant website 
or document for ease of access.

CIPFA resources

Benchmarking analysis: internal audit in local government (2015)

Facing up to COVID-19 in the public sector: the internal audit response (2020)

Financial Management Code (2019)

Financial Resilience Index (2022)

Local Government Application Note for the UK PSIAS (2019 edition)

Perceptions of audit quality: a survey analysis (2009)

Position statement on audit committees in local authorities and police (2018)

Statement on the role of the head of internal audit in public service organisations (2019)

P
age 133

https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/b/benchmarking-analysis-internal-audit-in-local-government-online
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/reports/facing-up-to-covid19-in-the-public-sector
https://www.cipfa.org/fmcode
https://www.cipfa.org/services/financial-resilience-index-2022
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/l/local-government-application-note-for-the-uk-psias-2019-edition
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/p/perceptions-of-audit-quality-a-survey-analysis
https://www.cipfa.org/services/support-for-audit-committees
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/reports/the-role-of-the-head-of-internal-audit


54CIPFA Thinks | Internal audit: untapped potential

Online resources

Assurance frameworks (HM Treasury, 2012)

Assurance, reassurance and performance (Good Governance Institute, 2021)

Audit and Inspection of Local Authorities in England: five years after the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014 – Parliamentary Academic Fellowship report by Professor Laurence 
Ferry (UK Parliament, 2019)

Avoiding the blind spot: supporting financial stability and resilience (Chartered Institute of 
Internal Auditors, 2021)

Developing an overall opinion during the pandemic crisis – considerations for 2021/22 and 
reflections on 2020/21 (Internal Audit Standards Advisory Board)

Government Functional Standard GovS 009: Internal Audit (Government Internal Audit 
Agency)

Head of internal audit annual opinion: key considerations for 2021/22 (HFMA, 2022)

Independent review into the oversight of local audit and the transparency of local authority 
financial reporting (Sir Tony Redmond, 2020)

Internal Audit Code of Practice: guidance on effective internal audit in the private and third 
sectors (Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors, 2020)

Local authority governance (National Audit Office, 2019)

Models of effective internal audit: how to organise a successful internal audit function 
(Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors, 2015)

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) (Internal Audit Standards Advisory Board, 
2017)

The Future of Jobs Report (World Economic Forum, 2020)

Value proposition for internal audit (The Institute of Internal Auditors)

Legislation

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015

Other academic references
Domingos M. Sequeira de Almeida (2007): The Value of Internal Audit (first published in 
Auditoria Interna), Lisbon: Instituto Português de Auditoria Interna (IPAI)

Eulerich, M and Lenz, R (2020): Defining, Measuring and Communicating the Value of Internal 
Audit, Florida: Internal Audit Foundation

Eulerich A and Eulerich M (2020): What is the value of internal auditing? – A literature review 
on qualitative and quantitative perspectives (published in Maandblad Voor Accountancy en 
Bedrijfseconomie, Amsterdam University Press)

P
age 134

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/270485/assurance_frameworks_191212.pdf
https://www.good-governance.org.uk/publications/insights/assurance-reassurance-and-performance
https://www.parliament.uk/globalassets/documents/commons-committees/communities-and-local-government/Correspondence/Ferry-local-authorities-audit-report.pdf
https://www.parliament.uk/globalassets/documents/commons-committees/communities-and-local-government/Correspondence/Ferry-local-authorities-audit-report.pdf
https://www.parliament.uk/globalassets/documents/commons-committees/communities-and-local-government/Correspondence/Ferry-local-authorities-audit-report.pdf
https://www.iia.org.uk/policy-and-research/research-reports/avoiding-the-blind-spot-supporting-financial-stability-and-resilience/
https://www.iasab.org/covid-19
https://www.iasab.org/covid-19
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/government-functional-standard-govs-009-internal-audit
https://www.hfma.org.uk/docs/default-source/publications/briefings/head-of-internal-audit-opinion-final.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-authority-financial-reporting-and-external-audit-independent-review
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-authority-financial-reporting-and-external-audit-independent-review
https://www.iia.org.uk/media/1691066/internal-audit-code-of-practice-report.pdf
https://www.iia.org.uk/media/1691066/internal-audit-code-of-practice-report.pdf
https://www.nao.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/01/Local-authority-governance.pdf
https://www.iia.org.uk/media/1275511/Models-for-Effective-Internal-Audit-FINAL.pdf
https://www.iasab.org/standards
https://www3.weforum.org/docs/WEF_Future_of_Jobs_2020.pdf
https://www.theiia.org/en/about-us/about-internal-audit/value-proposition
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/234


55CIPFA Thinks | Internal audit: untapped potential

Appendix D: Research methodology
This project was initiated in autumn 2021, with a survey open for one month, and roundtable discussions, wider research and 
interviews held during winter 2021.

Online survey – technical summary

On 6 October 2021, 5,120 individuals were invited by email to take part in the ‘Internal audit in public services’ online survey. 

These individuals worked in central government, education, local government or housing and were in a job role described as 
being either audit or finance related or were a political appointment, eg a councillor.

Each person was contacted a maximum of four times: the initial email followed by up to three reminders (issued on 13 October, 
20 October and 27 October). Potential respondents only received a reminder if they had not started or fully completed the 
survey. The number of people contacted/responded per wave is as follows.

•  Wave 1 (initial): 5,120 issued/193 completed (45%)

•  Wave 2 (first reminder): 4,921 issued/112 completed (26%)

•  Wave 3 (second reminder): 4,179 issued/83 completed (20%)

•  Wave 4 (third reminder): 4,720 issued/37 completed (9%)

•  Total completed: 425

Links to the survey were also distributed to members of the following organisations and groups: HAIF, TIAN, CHEIA, National 
Housing Federation, GIAA, BUFDG, CIPFA Internal Audit Special Interest Group, IASAB, CIIA and the CIPFA Governance Audit 
Risk and Assurance working group. This yielded a further 328 responses. We also received 78 responses that we judged to be 
sufficiently complete to include in our report. This brought the total number of responses to 831.P

age 135



56CIPFA Thinks | Internal audit: untapped potential

The survey consisted of 23 questions, and if the respondent was not in an audit role, four 
questions were omitted. From a statistical perspective, while we’re unable to provide a total 
response rate, we can make certain judgements about the reliability of our results. 

Responses Confidence level Error rate

400 95% ±5.0%

700 95% ±4.0%

1,000 95% ±3.0%

Consequently, the statistical validity for this survey can be viewed as being highly credible.

Responses Confidence level Error rate

831 95% ±3.4%

What does this mean, or what impact does this error rate of ±3.4% have on our results? The 
simplest way to describe this is by example. If the result for any given question is, say, 51% 
‘yes’ and 49% ‘no’, then this difference (2%) is lower than our error rate and is consequently 
not significant. If the result is 55% ‘yes’ and 45% ‘no’, then the difference (10%) is greater than 
the error and can be consequently said to be significant.

The other method by which we can assess the integrity of the survey is by undertaking an 
evaluation of potential bias. In other words: to what extent do the profiles of respondents 
match those of our population of interest? However, this assessment of bias comes with 
a caveat: the only profile information we have access to is that of the 5,120 we originally 
canvassed. Consequently, we have to assume that the profile of this cohort is similar to that of 
the other member organisations that raised awareness of our survey.

The profiling information being used for assessing bias relates to the person’s level of seniority 
and their job role – see tables below.

Level of seniority Population Respondents Difference

Operational 53.2% 38.1% -15.1%

Head 16.2% 23.7% 7.5%

Director 16.1% 18.5% 2.4%

Manager 13.3% 16.8% 3.5%

Other 1.2% 2.8% 1.7%

Total 100.0% 100.0%

The ‘difference’ illustrates the extent to which the respondent profile differs from that of the 
population of interest, ie the 5,130 people canvassed. The results would appear to suggest 
that we had a smaller proportion of operational staff taking part than that of our population, 
and consequently larger proportions of managers and senior managers. It could be argued 
that having a larger proportion of managers/senior managers’ views is a positive thing.

Job role Population Respondents Difference

Audit 69.1% 67.5% -1.5%

Finance 12.4% 14.6% 2.2%

Councillor 11.2% 7.6% -3.5%

Other 7.4% 10.2% 2.8%

Total 100.0% 100.0%

P
age 136



57CIPFA Thinks | Internal audit: untapped potential

An identical comparison but based on the job role shows that any bias is far less obvious. 
Essentially, where the ‘difference’ is at or around 2%, then we would claim that any bias 
is within acceptable bounds. From this perspective, we can claim that our results are 
representative.

Roundtable meetings

Of the 831 survey respondents, 143 agreed to get involved. Respondents were organised into 
five groups, generally corresponding to their job roles, eg heads of internal audit; clients, audit 
committee chairs; clients, senior managers; auditors, excluding heads of; and selected heads 
of internal audit together with clients. Four of these roundtables took place in November 2021 
and one took place in December 2021. To help stimulate debate and to ensure that specified 
topics were discussed, a guide was created based on the findings from the online survey. 

However, the content did vary from group to group, but it generally covered:

•  assurance frameworks/risk management

•  resources and skills

•  IT, including digitisation, real-time assurance and analytics

•  being strategic

•  changing perceptions/improving understanding of internal audit

•  the future.

Each roundtable was hosted on Microsoft Teams and, with the necessary approvals in place, 
recorded. The recordings were uploaded to Otter AI for transcription, and a Word document 
was created for each roundtable. The original audio/visual document was also retained. The 
contents of the various Word documents were imported into NVivo’s text analytics software, 
allowing us to identify the key themes arising and the comments that best illustrated them.

Sector of respondents %

Local government body 76

Civil Service – central government department, including NDPB/agencies 9

Police/fire 6

Education/FE/HE 4

Other public sector/social enterprise/charity/not-for-profit/housing/social care 3

NHS/health body 2

Role of respondents %

Qualified/experienced internal auditor, including trainee internal auditor 37

Head of internal audit or equivalent 29

Executive/senior manager 18

Audit committee member 13

Other 3

Internal audit resourcing model %

In-house internal audit team 57

Outsourced to an external provider 23

In-house team with a co-sourced arrangement 18

Contractor/outsourced head of internal audit managing an in-house team 3

P
age 137



cipfa.org

77 Mansell Street, London E1 8AN 
+44 (0)20 7543 5600 
The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy.
Registered with the Charity Commissioners of England and Wales No 231060
Registered with the Office of the Scottish Charity Regulator No SC037963.

P
age 138

http://www.cipfa.org


North East Derbyshire District Council 
 

Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee 
 

29 June 2022 
 

Risk Management 
 

Report of the Managing Director 
 

Classification: This report is public  
 
Report By:  Lee Hickin, Managing Director 
 
Contact Officer: Lee Hickin, Managing Director 
 

 
PURPOSE / SUMMARY 
 

 To update Members of the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny 
Committee of the current position regarding Risk Management arrangements 
and the Strategic Risk Register as at June 2022. 

 
 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
  
1. That the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee notes the 

report and Strategic Risk Register as at June 2022 as set out in Appendix 1. 

 
 

Approved by the Portfolio Holder – Councillor Paul Parkin 
 

IMPLICATIONS 
 

 

Finance and Risk:   Yes☒  No ☐  

Details: 
 

There are no additional financial implications arising out of this report. Whilst, where 

appropriate, additional mitigation measures have been identified and implemented 

during the course of preparing the Strategic and Operational Risk Registers, the cost 

of implementing this mitigation will be met from within previously agreed budgets.  

Risk Management Issues are covered throughout the body of the main report. 

On Behalf of the Section 151 Officer 
 

 

Legal (including Data Protection):   Yes☐  No ☒  

Page 139

Agenda Item 7a



Details: 
 

There are no legal or data protection issues arising directly out of this report. 

On Behalf of the Solicitor to the Council 
 

Staffing:  Yes☐  No ☒   

Details: 
 

There are no human resource issues arising directly out of this report. 

On behalf of the Head of Paid Service 
 

 

DECISION INFORMATION 
 

Decision Information    

Is the decision a Key Decision? 
A Key Decision is an executive decision which has a 
significant impact on two or more District wards or 
which results in income or expenditure to the Council 
above the following thresholds:  
 
NEDDC:  

Revenue - £100,000 ☐  Capital - £250,000  ☐ 

☒ Please indicate which threshold applies 

No 

Is the decision subject to Call-In? 
(Only Key Decisions are subject to Call-In)  
 

No 
 

District Wards Significantly Affected 
 

None 
 

Consultation: 

Leader / Deputy Leader ☐   Cabinet  ☒ 

SAMT ☒ Relevant Service Manager ☐ 

Members ☐   Public ☐ Other ☐ 

 

Yes 
 
 

 

Links to Council Plan (NED) priorities or Policy Framework including Climate 
Change, Equalities, and Economics and Health implications. 

None.  

 
REPORT DETAILS 
 
1 Background  
 

Page 140



1.1 Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee have previously 
endorsed the Council’s Risk Management Strategy which was then approved 
by Cabinet in March 2020.  The Strategy includes but is not limited to the 
following; 
 

 The nature of ‘risk’ both the ‘threats’ and the ‘opportunities’  

 The benefits of a robust risk management approach 

 The Council’s risk appetite 

 Risk categorisation – Operational, Governance, Strategic 

 Project and Partnership risk 

 The Council’s risk management approach and arrangements including a 
new ‘Risk Management Group’ 

 Roles and responsibilities including Senior Risk Officer and Senior 
Information Risk Officer (SRO and SIRO) 

 

1.2  The Strategy also details the work of a ‘Risk Management Group’.  This is 

elected Member led and includes the Councils Senior Risk Officer (SRO), 

Senior Information Risk Officer (SIRO), S151 Officer, representation from 

senior management, Internal Audit and Health and Safety.  The group 

provides a comprehensive oversight of risk throughout the organisation and is 

the conduit to and from the whole organisation in terms of risk management.  

1.3 The group ‘regularly’ and ‘consistently’ oversee, all of the risk registers 

ensuring they are up to date and accurate whilst offering challenge to the 

assessment process itself.  It is responsible for risk management reporting to 

stakeholder groups across the Council, including this Scrutiny Committee and 

supports the production of the Annual Governance Statement.  The group 

leads on the development and review of all risk related policies, plans and 

strategies across the Council and  oversees and champions the 

implementation of the Risk Management Strategy and associated action plan 

including training ‘relating to’ and the ‘embedding of’ an effective risk 

management culture. 

 Update of the Risk Management Group held on 25 May 2022 

1.4 Review of Strategic Risk Register 
 
The RMG discussed and reviewed the Strategic Risk Register and agreed 
that ‘Cost of Living’ would be included in the Strategic Risk Register. 
 
Plan3:  It was suggested that the risk of refusing planning applications should 
be raised to a strategic risk from an operational one currently held within the 
Planning Operational Risk Register.  This is due to the potential consequence 
of these upon the organisation (see 1.5 of this report). 

 
STR5: Recruitment and Retention.  Meeting to be held to discuss a ‘talent 
pipeline’ (grow our own) e.g. apprenticeships, interns, volunteers, graduates, 
school leavers etc. 

Page 141



 
The Internal Audit Manager informed the RMG that Cipfa acknowledged the 
difficulty in recruiting to senior posts. 
  
The RMG signed off the Strategic Risk Register.  

 
1.5 Review of Planning Operational Risk Register  

 
At the meeting the AD - Planning presented the Planning operational risks.   
 
Discussion focussed on Plan3: Refusals of planning consent being issued 
based on non-evidenced decisions with potential for reputational and financial 
loss.   
 
The inherent risk score had been increased to 25 based upon the potential 
consequence, including financial and reputational and the possibility of 
sanctions from government.    
 
Training had been provided to Planning Committee members and will 
continue to be provided.  Cllr Parkin stressed the need to minimise/mitigate 
the risk.     
 
The RMG agreed that Plan3 should be elevated to the Strategic Risk 
Register.   
 
The Internal Audit Manager asked if S106 agreements were included and 
the risk of not spending funding within timescale.  R Purcell advised that a 
report was being prepared to go to Audit Committee in July 22 in relation 
to this and was happy to add to the operational risk register along with 
mitigations. 
 
Plan5:  Failure to recruit to vacant posts. 
 
Currently still have 5 vacant posts within the service. 
 
Plan6: Continued use of external support on expired contracts. 
 
Work was underway with Procurement on a new framework and a further 
tender exercise would be undertaken. 
 
The Information, Engagement and Performance Manager reminded the RMG 
that publishing personal data was a risk. 

 
1.6 New or Emerging Risks Identified 
  
The following new or emerging risks were identified: 
 

 Rising cost of living generally and the impact upon our organisation 
and communities. 

 Homelessness specifically in relation to cost of living increases and 
Ukrainian guests. 

Page 142



 Climate change agenda. 

 Shortage of chemicals e.g. chlorine for swimming pools.  Currently 
NEDDC stocks were good.  NEDDC had been collaborating/sharing 
with partners.  There was a potential financial and reputational risk of 
swimming pools closing. 

 Risk to STR6 – (Delivery of major initiatives and key projects whilst 
implementing a range of new government reforms against a backdrop of 
challenging financial targets and maintaining service quality) due to short 
timescales to submit bid applications, there is a danger of completing 
too quickly and inaccurately. It was suggested that use of a standard 
template would help mitigate the risk.  The Information, Engagement 
and Performance Manager and AD, Economic Development and 
Regeneration would progress. 

 
1.7 Insurance Claims / Legal Claims 

 

 The AD, Finance and Resources, advised that no major insurance 
claims had been made. 

 There had been an increase in damage to other peoples’ property e.g. 
bin wagons damaging cars.  AD, Finance and Resources to raise with 
the AD Street Scene. 

 
1.8 Health and Safety Update 

 
The Health and Safety Manager provided an update: 

 

 NEDDC has achieved Gold Rospa award for third year running in 
respect of its H&S activity and arrangements in place. 

 The H&S team are continuing to progress income generation 
opportunities with other local authorities. 

 New violent incident reporting form now available on the extranet. 

 Housekeeping at Mill Lane; The Health and Safety Manager advised 
there were still a few areas in Mill Lane that required attention due to 
the amount of paper that was still stored e.g. archive store on the 
ground floor.  The Health and Safety Manager requested a final 
attempt to clear this area up.  The Interim AD, Property, Estates and 
Assets suggested that a member of the facilities team identify which 
service area the offending paperwork belongs to.  The Health and 
Safety Manager welcomed this offer.  This was considered to be a 
minimal fire risk.   

 
The Health and Safety Manager also raised concern that the Health & 
Safety team had not been able to gain access to some secure areas e.g. 
HR confidential store.  The Managing Director commented that the Health 
& Safety team should be allowed accompanied access to check secure 
areas.  The Health and Safety Manager would visit Mill Lane on 26 May 
and visit the HR secure area with the Managing Director. 
 
The Information, Engagement and Performance Manager advised that the 
only reasons for keeping paperwork was for either legal or business 
reasons.    

Page 143



 
The Joint AD, Environmental Health suggested this was raised through 
SMT. 

 
1.9 2022/23 Internal Audit Plan  
  

The Internal Audit Manager presented the 2022/23 Internal Audit Plan 
which had been discussed at SMT. Due to a lack of resources Audit would 
be focussing on higher risk areas.  Audit would align with the risk 
management approach. 

 
1.10 Emergency Planning / Business Continuity Planning 

 
The Director of Growth and Assets provided an update: 

 

 Veolia emergency exercise; the AD - Leisure had attended to represent 
NEDDC since Killamarsh Leisure Centre was within the planned exclusion 
zone. 

 The new Emergency Planning Officer – Adam Ballard, was now in post. 

 All strategic Emergency Planning and Business Continuity documents 
currently being refreshed. 

 Adam is also working on a ‘time plan’ for business continuity incidents 
based upon the Operation London Bridge format – specific ‘who does what, 
when and how’ detail.  Updated documents would be presented to SMT 
and the RMG. 

 
2. Details of Proposal or Information 
 
2.1 To update Members of the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny 

Committee of the current position regarding Risk Management arrangements 
and the Strategic Risk Register as at June 2022. 

 
3 Reasons for Recommendation  
 
3.1 The Council have in place a robust Risk Management Strategy and action 

plan which enables the organisation to manage the many and varied risks 

facing the Council.  The approach to managing those risks is applied within 

decision making processes and is continuous with a structured review process 

overseen by the Risk Management Group. 

3.2 The Risk Management Group is elected Member led and includes the 

Councils Senior Risk Officer (SRO), Senior Information Risk Officer (SIRO), 

S151 Officer, representation from senior management, Internal Audit and 

Health and Safety.  The group provides a comprehensive oversight of risk 

throughout the organisation and is now becoming the conduit to and from the 

whole organisation in terms of risk management.  The Risk Management 

Group is now able to provide risk management reporting to stakeholder 

groups across the Council and will support the production of the Annual 

Governance Statement.   

Page 144



3.3 The Risk Management Group have made significant progress in ensuring that 

risk is effectively managed within the organisation.  By leading on the 

development and review of all risk related policies, plans and strategies 

across the Council, the Risk Management Group will provide consistency of 

approach and alignment of all service areas in relation to risk management.  

By overseeing and championing the implementation of the Risk Management 

Strategy and associated action plan including training ‘relating to’ and the 

‘embedding of’ an effective risk management culture, the Risk Management 

Group will be pivotal in the organisations future success. 

4 Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection 
 
 Under relevant good practice and to facilitate the development of robust 

managerial arrangements the Council is required to prepare a Strategic Risk 
Register as part of its risk management framework. This report is intended for 
Members and Officers to consider both the Strategic Risk Register, together 
with the Council’s wider framework for managing risk and partnerships. Given 
the importance of these arrangements for the overall governance of the Council 
it is necessary to subject them to regular review. The alternative of not providing 
this is therefore rejected.    

 
DOCUMENT INFORMATION 
 

Appendix No 
 

Title 

1 
 

Strategic Risk Register as at 14 June 2022 

Background Papers (These are unpublished works which have been relied on to a 
material extent when preparing the report.  They must be listed in the section below.  
If the report is going to Cabinet (NEDDC) you must provide copies of the 
background papers) 

Service Area Operational Risk Registers 
 
 

 

Page 145



1 
 

 
 

Click on department to go to register / matrix 

 

ENVIRONMENT and 
ENFORCEMENT 

GROWTH AND 
ECONOMIC 

DEVELOPMENT 

CORPORATE 
RESOURCES 

 

PLANNING 
ECONOMIC 

DEVELOPMENT 
TRANSFORMATION & 

ORGANISATION 

EXTERNAL 

PARTNERSHIPS 

STREETSCENE STRATEGIC HOUSING 
CORPORATE 

GOVERNANCE 
PROJECTS 

COMMUNITY SAFETY 
PROPERTY AND 
COMMERCIAL 

SERVICES 

FINANCE & 
RESOURCES 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL 
HEALTH 

  
 

    

 STRATEGIC RISKS  

 SCORING MATRIX  
 

P
age 146



2 
 

APPENDIX  

STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER – updated 14/06/22 

 

Area Of  Risk 

(Reference / Date) 

Threats / Opportunities Mitigation / Controls In Place / 
Actions Undertaken 

Potential Further Action / 
Action Planned / When By 

Date 

STR1  

 National Funding, Priorities, 
Policy or Regulatory change 
which affects the Council 
area and impacts upon the 
business of the Council 
negatively.  

 Unable to deliver a package of 
services that both addresses 
changing national priorities whilst 
meeting changing local needs and 
aspirations. 

 Increases costs or reduces resources 
available to the Council directly, or to 
its key partners. 

 Reduced influence over delivery of 
local services. 

 Unable to effectively support local 
communities. 

 Increased demands on Council 
services at a time when Council 
resource base is reducing. 

 Failure to deliver the Council Plan. 

 The Council is outward looking and 
actively works to secure details of 
proposed change and the 
approaches that might be adopted 
to mitigate against associated risks, 
including working to identify new 
income streams. 

 The Council has effective political 
and managerial arrangements in 
place to manage change. 

 Appropriate levels of financial 
reserves / investment funding are 
maintained to fund strategic shifts in 
service delivery. 

 The Council has in place a robust 
Risk Management Framework 
including Strategic and Service Area 
risk registers that help identify; 
risks/threats/opportunities; 
mitigation; and potential further 
action – these are monitored closely 
and reported widely throughout the 
organisation including but not limited 
to; Risk Management Group; Audit 
and Corporate Governance Scrutiny 
committee; Cabinet; and Council 

No specific identified further 
action however ongoing and 
regular monitoring and review 
as detailed in the mitigation 
section, including quarterly 
review by the Risk 
Management Group. 

P
age 147



3 
 

Area Of  Risk 

(Reference / Date) 

Threats / Opportunities Mitigation / Controls In Place / 
Actions Undertaken 

Potential Further Action / 
Action Planned / When By 

Date 

 Effective engagement with staff to 
ensure they embrace necessary 
change. 

STR1 Sept 19 Inherent Risk Score 
(Likelihood x Impact) 

4x4 16 Residual Risk Score 
(Likelihood x Impact) 

3x4 12 Risk Owner / 
Lead Officer 

SMT / Political 
Leadership 

STR2 

Failure to deliver a balanced 
budget.   

 

 

 Impact upon ability to deliver current 
level of services. 

 Significant adverse reputational 
Impact. 

 Unexpected external factors creating 
unforeseen financial pressures 

 A one year financial settlement and 
continued uncertainty over the future 
of the national settlement presents 
challenges for medium term financial 
planning 

 Failure to deliver the Council Plan. 

 

 The Council has effective financial 
management in place to ensure 
budget arrangements are robust. 

 The Council has appropriate 
managerial arrangements and 
culture in place to manage any 
necessary change. 

 The Council has sufficient reserves 
in place to cushion against 
unforeseen external factors creating 
financial pressures in the short term. 

 The Council has effective financial 
resilience monitoring in place that 
reflects the requirement of the 
CIPFA Financial Management Code 

 The Council follows the CIPFA code 
of accounting practice and all 
International Financial Reporting 
Standards when producing their 
statutory accounts 

 The budget is subject to scrutiny by 
Council, Cabinet, Audit and 
Corporate Governance Scrutiny 

An efficiency plan has been 
produced to closely monitor 
savings needed. This will be 
owned by SMT and progress 
reported to Audit and 
Corporate Governance 
Scrutiny Committee and 
Cabinet quarterly.  

First report due: July 2022 
(Q1) 

Financial resilience metrics 
have been produced and will 
be monitored by the S151 
Officer and reported to Audit 
Committee twice a year. 

Next report due : Oct  2022 
(Q2) 

 

P
age 148



4 
 

Area Of  Risk 

(Reference / Date) 

Threats / Opportunities Mitigation / Controls In Place / 
Actions Undertaken 

Potential Further Action / 
Action Planned / When By 

Date 

Committee, SMT and the auditors 
(Internal and External).  

 The external auditor reports on the 
robustness of the Council’s finances 
and arrangements for Value for 
Money in its annual report 

 The Council commissions external 
advice for highly specialist areas  
including treasury management 

 The Annual Governance statement 
reports on risk areas to the Council 
including financial risk. This is 
scrutinised by the Audit and 
Corporate Governance Committee 
and the External Auditor 

STR2 16/11/ 20 Inherent Risk Score 
(Likelihood x Impact) 

4x4 16 Residual Risk Score 
(Likelihood x Impact) 

3x4 12 Risk Owner / 
Lead Officer 

Political 
Leadership  / 
S151 Officer/ 
SMT 

STR3 

The Council is affected by 
an operational service 
failure which has a major 
impact upon the Council as 
a whole or significant impact 
upon the local community. 

  

 A significant service failure 
associated with a major impact on the 
local community. 

 Deterioration in services to the public, 
potentially a major impact upon a 
local resident or a group of local 
residents. 

 Significant staff and financial 
resources required to resolve 
position, impacting on other services. 

 The Council has appropriate 
managerial arrangements in place 
supported by staff recruitment and 
training to ensure these risks are 
effectively managed. 

 The Council has a Performance 
Management Framework in place to 
help ensure that services are 
delivered in line with good practice 
and industry standards. Ongoing 
monitoring and regular reporting will 
help ensure that any emerging 

No specific identified further 
action however ongoing and 
regular monitoring and review 
as detailed in the mitigation 
section, including quarterly 
review by the Risk 
Management Group.   

P
age 149



5 
 

Area Of  Risk 

(Reference / Date) 

Threats / Opportunities Mitigation / Controls In Place / 
Actions Undertaken 

Potential Further Action / 
Action Planned / When By 

Date 

 A major service has its operating 
capacity significantly impact and is 
required to introduce major reform in 
its approach to service delivery. 

 Severe reputational damage 

issues re service performance are 
effectively identified and resolved at 
the earliest possible opportunity. 

 The Council has in place a robust 
Risk Management Framework 
including Strategic and Service Area 
risk registers that help identify; 
risks/threats/opportunities; 
mitigation; and potential further 
action – these are monitored closely 
and reported widely throughout the 
organisation including but not limited 
to; Risk Management Group; Audit 
and Corporate Governance Scrutiny 
committee; Cabinet; and Council. 

 Operational risks are reviewed 
constantly and consideration given 
with regard to an escalation of the 
risk to become a strategic risk. 

STR3 Sept 19 Inherent Risk Score 
(Likelihood x Impact) 

3x5 15 Residual Risk Score 
(Likelihood x Impact) 

2x5 10 Risk Owner / 
Lead Officer 

SMT  

STR4 

Emergency Planning and 
Business Continuity 
arrangements fail to meet 
required standards when 
tested by incidents such as 
pandemic, natural disaster, 
a loss of data / systems 
which results in the inability 

 Inability of Council to provide services 
as a consequence of a severe 
catastrophic external event (e.g. 
flooding, major terrorist incident, 
pandemic, fire, loss of ICT systems). 

 Failure of IT infrastructure, leading to 
inability to effectively operate services 
and to safeguard income streams. 

 The Council works in partnership 
with a range of partners on its 
Emergency Planning and Business 
Continuity arrangements to ensure 
that we operate in line with best 
practice. There is an annual 
‘desktop’ scenario to test officers 
understanding of the arrangements 

Business Continuity exercise 
has now been delivered during 
early 2022 focussed upon the 
loss of access to digital 
data/systems.  An action plan 
is currently in development 
based upon the learning and 
findings from the event. P

age 150



6 
 

Area Of  Risk 

(Reference / Date) 

Threats / Opportunities Mitigation / Controls In Place / 
Actions Undertaken 

Potential Further Action / 
Action Planned / When By 

Date 

to provide core services 
and potential reputational 
damage.   

 

See STR 13 for Cyber 
security specific risk 

 Business Continuity Plans prove 
ineffective in practice.    

and validate that they are fit for 
purpose in a realistic ‘test’ scenario. 

 All services have Business 
Continuity plans in place which 
identify key risks and mitigation. 
Corporate IT systems have been 
tested against Industry standards for 
Business Continuity. 

 The Council works in partnership 
with a range of other agencies that 
should be able to provide support in 
the event of the Council’s own 
procedures and resources failing to 
be effective. 

 The Council has in place, and 
continues to develop, industry 
standard measures to minimise 
business interruption. 

STR4 Sept 19 Inherent Risk Score 
(Likelihood x Impact) 

5x5 25 Residual Risk Score 
(Likelihood x Impact) 

5x3 15 Risk Owner / 
Lead Officer 

SMT 

STR5 

Difficulty in recruiting to key 
posts or in replacing key 
staff who leave.  

 Deterioration in services to the public. 

 Increasing inefficiencies in service 
provision. 

 Weakening of Internal Control 
arrangements. 

 Increased pressure on other 
members of staff. 

 Opportunity to facilitate review of job 
roles/services to ensure staffing 

 The Council has effective 
communication and working 
relationships with management and 
staff across the organisation to 
identify issues and threats in regard 
to this risk. 

 There are embedded practices and 
sufficient funding to bring in agency 
staff where required to maintain 

Part of the ongoing work is 
identifying opportunities to 
‘partner’ with others who share 
the same challenges and 
experiences. 

Work is ongoing with 
managers to improve 
workforce planning and 
succession planning within key 
services and job roles. 

P
age 151



7 
 

Area Of  Risk 

(Reference / Date) 

Threats / Opportunities Mitigation / Controls In Place / 
Actions Undertaken 

Potential Further Action / 
Action Planned / When By 

Date 

structure is fit for purpose to meet 
current needs 

 

service performance in such 
instances.  

 The market has changed 
significantly as a result of Brexit and 
the COVID Pandemic.  It is proving 
harder to recruit to some posts 
however the Councils Agile Working 
Policy enables the recruitment net to 
be cast wider than before and is 
now providing some mitigation.  

 Appropriate training budgets are in 
place to ensure that staff receive 
necessary training to maintain 
service quality / continuity – a ‘grow 
our own’ culture is very prominent. 

 The Council has introduced 
apprenticeship / training schemes / 
leadership programmes in order to 
develop suitable staff. 

 Ensuring that the culture and 
benefits for working for North East 
Derbyshire DC are ‘front and centre’ 
in all recruitment packages. 

STR5 Sept 19 Inherent Risk Score 
(Likelihood x Impact) 

3x4 12 Residual Risk Score 
(Likelihood x Impact) 

2x4 8 Risk Owner / 
Lead Officer 

SMT  

STR6 

Delivery of major initiatives 
and key projects whilst 
implementing a range of new 
government reforms against 

 New initiatives are not delivered in a 
cost-effective manner. 

 Failure to maintain / improve services 
in line with local aspirations. 

 The Council has effective 
prioritisation and project 
management arrangements in place 
to ensure resources are directed at 
key objectives. 

At the meeting in October 
2021, Council recognised how 
over time, along with the 
changing needs of both 
Councils, that the senior 

P
age 152



8 
 

Area Of  Risk 

(Reference / Date) 

Threats / Opportunities Mitigation / Controls In Place / 
Actions Undertaken 

Potential Further Action / 
Action Planned / When By 

Date 

a backdrop of challenging 
financial targets and 
maintaining service quality.   

 Failure to generate the savings 
required to balance the budget. 

 Financial savings measures weaken 
Governance / Internal Control 
arrangements. 

 Service deterioration / failure arising 
from capacity issues. 

 Over-stretched organisational 
capacity. 

 Failure to deliver the Council Plan. 

 The Council has made efforts to 
ensure effective use of employees 
by utilising shared services to 
protect service resilience, by 
maintaining appropriate training 
arrangements and by investing in 
transformational service delivery 
projects. 

 The Council has a robust 
performance management 
framework that is intended to 
highlight emerging issues. 

 The Council has in place a 
mechanism/team/group to ensure 
extensive senior management 
oversight of key projects which 
includes; MD; Directors; Statutory 
Officers who meet weekly with the 
aim of ‘spreading the load’ as it were 
amongst the Council as a whole 
rather than one team managing   
potentially complex programmes 
with competing and sometimes 
conflicting demands.  The culture 
we are very much driving through 
this group, and through SMT and 
the Council as a whole, is one of 
NO SILO’s and that we are ONE 
TEAM, addressing specific 
programmes and the wider business 
of the Council as a collective. 

management structure was no 
longer fit for purpose. 
It was acknowledged that the 
structure needed to change to 
ensure effectiveness, have 
the ability to achieve its 
ambitions and deliver its 
objectives. 
 
The re-structure is now 
implemented and fully in 
place.  A recent interim 
structure change has 
however taken place to deal 
with the departure of the 
former Director of Growth – 
this interim structure is 
working well. 

 

P
age 153



9 
 

Area Of  Risk 

(Reference / Date) 

Threats / Opportunities Mitigation / Controls In Place / 
Actions Undertaken 

Potential Further Action / 
Action Planned / When By 

Date 

STR6 Sept 19 Inherent Risk Score 
(Likelihood x Impact) 

3x4 12 Residual Risk Score 
(Likelihood x Impact) 

2x4 8 Risk Owner / 
Lead Officer 

SMT  

STR7 

Ineffective engagement with 
local communities and 
stakeholders including 
Parish Councils and other 
local partners.   

 Failure to provide effective community 
leadership. 

 Loss of trust in the Council 

 Inability to deliver good quality cost 
effective services targeted at local 
needs. 

 Poor outcomes for local residents, 
due to failure to engage other 
agencies. 

 The Council has in place a range of 
mechanisms designed to secure 
feedback from local residents 
including the Performance 
Framework, a range of consultation 
events and the role of Elected 
Members as local champions.  

 The Council has in place a Parish 
Council liaison group which meets 
regularly. 

 The Council has an active 
Partnerships Team and senior 
Members / Officers actively engage 
with other organisations serving the 
area. 

 The Council’s management 
structures are aligned to our key 
partnership arrangements. 

 Opportunities and events allow 
residents to engage with senior 
officers and members  

 Meet the Council events held at 
Clay Cross and Eckington. 

Review of events completed 
on 02.12.21 with 
improvements on engagement 
and staff resource.  

 
Meet the Council events held 
at Clay Cross, Eckington, 
Shirland.  
 
Future sessions planned 
reflecting experiences of the 
pilot events – these began in  
Spring 2022. 

 

Other events currently being 
planned for the next 12 months 
spanning 2022/23. 

STR7 Sept 19 Inherent Risk Score 
(Likelihood x Impact) 

3x4 12 Residual Risk Score 
(Likelihood x Impact) 

2x4 8 Risk Owner / 
Lead Officer 

SMT / Political 
Leadership 

P
age 154



10 
 

Area Of  Risk 

(Reference / Date) 

Threats / Opportunities Mitigation / Controls In Place / 
Actions Undertaken 

Potential Further Action / 
Action Planned / When By 

Date 

STR8 

Ineffective ‘Good 
Governance’ arrangements 
including; Performance, 
Finance and Risk 
Management.  
 
 

 

 Adverse Impact upon Service Quality. 

 Failure to deliver high quality services 
which address national and local 
priorities. 

 Significant adverse reputational 
impact. 

 Risk of legal challenge being 
successful where suitable 
arrangements are not in place. 

 The Council has appropriate 
managerial arrangements in place 
supported by staff recruitment and 
training to ensure these risks are 
effectively managed. 

 The Council has active Standards 
and Audit Committees which provide 
independent review of the 
Governance arrangements in the 
Council. 

 The Council has a robust 
performance management 
framework that is intended to 
highlight emerging issues. 

 The Council has in place a robust 
Risk Management Framework 
including Strategic and Service Area 
risk registers that help identify; 
risks/threats/opportunities; 
mitigation; and potential further 
action – these are monitored closely 
and reported widely throughout the 
organisation including but not limited 
to; Risk Management Group; Audit 
and Corporate Governance Scrutiny 
committee; Cabinet; and Council. 

 The Annual Governance Report sets 
out an evidence based structured 
assessment of the operation of the 
Council’s governance 
arrangements.  This report is 
externally assessed. 

No specific identified further 
action however ongoing and 
regular monitoring and review 
as detailed in the mitigation 
section, including quarterly 
review by the Risk 
Management Group. 

P
age 155



11 
 

Area Of  Risk 

(Reference / Date) 

Threats / Opportunities Mitigation / Controls In Place / 
Actions Undertaken 

Potential Further Action / 
Action Planned / When By 

Date 

 New senior management structure 
reinforces the protection measures 
in place for the Council. 

STR8 Sept 19 Inherent Risk Score 
(Likelihood x Impact) 

3x4 12 Residual Risk Score 
(Likelihood x Impact) 

2x4 8 Risk Owner / 
Lead Officer 

S151 Officer / 
Monitoring 
Officer / SMT 

STR9 

Staff morale / sickness 
levels adversely affected as 
a result of the pace of 
change, tightening financial 
circumstances or external 
circumstances. 

 Deterioration in services to the public 
and loss of productivity. 

 Loss of key staff / increased sickness 
levels. 

 Increased pressure on other 
members of staff. 

 Loss of ‘goodwill.’ 

 The Council operates in line HR 
‘best practice’ to help ensure current 
staff are well managed and 
motivated. 

 The Council have a range of 
communication mechanisms in 
place to ensure staff engagement 
with the Council’s agenda. 

 The Council has reduced its 
emphasis of securing savings 
through vacancy management.   

 Whilst the Council cannot control 
external circumstances it works 
intensively with the workforce to 
mitigate the impact of these upon 
individual employees – for example 
throughout the pandemic. 

 Both Senior Management and 
Leadership Team are actively 
building a ‘ONE TEAM’ ethos which 
is built ‘top down’ and ‘bottom up’ 
with the aim of getting everyone 
‘buying in’, feeling that they are part 
of the solution and that everyone 

Although somewhat hampered 
by COVID and the risk of 
transmission, other activities 
being planned for the next 12 
months and beyond include; 

 

 ‘Back to the Floor’ sessions 
– MD & Directors across 
the Council – take part, 
observe and listen - 
Cabinet welcome!  

 MD to work out of various 
locations each week – 
Depot, Leisure Centres – 
being visible, observing 
and listening 

 SMT and Cabinet – away-
days (blue sky thinking) – 
business and strategy 
planning – took place on 1st 
April 2022, a follow-up 
planned for end of July 
2022. P

age 156



12 
 

Area Of  Risk 

(Reference / Date) 

Threats / Opportunities Mitigation / Controls In Place / 
Actions Undertaken 

Potential Further Action / 
Action Planned / When By 

Date 

has the opportunity to influence our  
success and  shape our future.  This 
includes; 

 Regular and meaningful Directorate 
TEAM meetings and Brainstorm and 
Troubleshoot sessions to update, 
Q&A and listen 

 Regular and meaningful AD/service 
TEAM meetings and Brainstorm and 
Troubleshoot sessions to update, 
Q&A and listen 

 Wider workforce workshops 

 Leader weekly briefings – digital – 
promoted to all staff 

 Leader / MD workforce briefings – 
physical and virtual to update, Q&A 
and listen – promoted to all staff 

 Service Managers Forum – 
Leader/Deputy, MD and Directors – 
update, Q&A and listen 

 Employee liaison group – quarterly – 
Leader/Deputy, MD and Directors 
meet with staff to update, Q&A and 
listen – promoted to all staff 

 Site Visits – 
Leader/Deputy/Cabinet/MD/Director
s x 2 p.a. each site to update, Q&A 
and listen  

 Employee Awards – celebration at 
Mill Lane 

 Employee survey due this 
spring to obtain current 
staff perceptions 

 Refreshing appropriate 
policies and training 
delivered to ensure 
managers have basic 
leadership skills 

P
age 157



13 
 

Area Of  Risk 

(Reference / Date) 

Threats / Opportunities Mitigation / Controls In Place / 
Actions Undertaken 

Potential Further Action / 
Action Planned / When By 

Date 

 Employee survey – another 
mechanism for listening 

 

STR9 Sept 19 Inherent Risk Score 
(Likelihood x Impact) 

3x4 12 Residual Risk Score 
(Likelihood x Impact) 

3x3 9 Risk Owner / 
Lead Officer 

SMT 

STR10 

Failure to have in place 
robust, comprehensive and 
up to date policies and 
procedures for safeguarding 
children and vulnerable 
adults. 

 Profile of safeguarding is poor 

 Staff and members do not know what 
safeguarding is and their role within it 

 Staff and members do not know how 
to spot the signs 

 Staff and members do not know how 
to report it and to who? 

 Lack of public confidence in Council 
policies plans and staff 

 Reputational damage 

 Potential significant harm to 
individuals resulting from abuse and 
neglect of Children and/or Vulnerable 
Adults possibly leading to personal 
harm, injury and death 

 

 The Council has in place up to date 
policies for safeguarding both 
Children and Adults at Risk.  These 
policies are aligned to DCC policies 
which in turn are in line with 
legislation, regulation and statutory 
duties placed on Local Authorities. 

• The Council has in place and 
maintain systems of working 
practice to safeguard children and 
adults at risk during or aligned to 
Council activities and those who 
receive Council services. 

•  Staff recognised as appropriate to 
do, are DBS checked 

• All staff receive mandatory 
safeguarding training 

• Safeguarding is widely promoted and 
embedded throughout the 
organisation with all staff being 
issued with a wallet sized 
‘safeguarding quick reference guide’ 
which details what to look out for 
and what to do 

• The Council has an internal 
safeguarding group which meets 

Regular and ongoing internal 
audit to assure compliance – 
every two years. 

P
age 158



14 
 

Area Of  Risk 

(Reference / Date) 

Threats / Opportunities Mitigation / Controls In Place / 
Actions Undertaken 

Potential Further Action / 
Action Planned / When By 

Date 

quarterly which has representation 
from all service areas of the Council.  

• The Council host and Chair the 
Countywide Derbyshire 
Safeguarding Leads Sub Group of 
the Derbyshire Safeguarding 
Childrens’ Board and Derbyshire 
Safeguarding Adults Board 

• The Council are represented on both 
the Derby and Derbyshire 
Safeguarding Children’s Partnership 
(DDSCP) and the Derbyshire 
Safeguarding Adults Board ( DSAB) 

 

STR10 16/11/ 20 Inherent Risk Score 
(Likelihood x Impact) 

5x4 20 Residual Risk Score 
(Likelihood x Impact) 

4x3 12 Risk Owner / 
Lead Officer 

SMT / Political 
Leadership 

STR11 

Impact of HS2 and the 
electrification of the MML on 
environment, heritage, 
communities and 
businesses. 

 Without considerable environmental 
mitigation measures will have a 
negative impact on the visual amenity 
of the district, disruption to 
businesses, home owners and 
communities. It also has the potential 
to cause disruption on the roads and 
stall progress on areas of 
development due to uncertainty. 

 Senior management actively 
engaged with HS2 staff to discuss 
proactive business mitigation 
measures. 

 Political leadership working with 
relevant community groups and 
agencies lobbying for enhanced 
mitigation measures. 

 Contributing to the East Midlands 
HS2 growth strategy and  mitigation 
study 

 Awaiting the outcome of the 
Government Review and the 
Integrated Rail Plan 

This risk is under review 
following recent 
announcements made in 
relation to this stage of the 
programme affecting our area.  
Even though/if the HS2 project 
does not come this far north, 
residual risk may remain. 

 

 

P
age 159



15 
 

Area Of  Risk 

(Reference / Date) 

Threats / Opportunities Mitigation / Controls In Place / 
Actions Undertaken 

Potential Further Action / 
Action Planned / When By 

Date 

STR11 16/11/ 20 Inherent Risk Score 
(Likelihood x Impact) 

4x4 16 Residual Risk Score 
(Likelihood x Impact) 

3x4 12 Risk Owner / 
Lead Officer 

SMT / Political 
Leadership 

STR12 

Failure to address the 
impact of COVID-19 upon 
the organisation, local 
economy and community 

 Inability to deliver services or service 
failure 

 Loss of income to the Council 

 Inability to provide safe working 
environment resulting in COVID 
contamination and infection 

 Adverse impact on employee health 

 Inability to change the Councils ‘ways 
of working’ to meet the current 
challenges  

 Increased Cybersecurity and ICT 
related risk due to remote working 
increase 

 Inability to deliver strategic plans and 
ambitions 

 Inability to support local businesses 
and employers 

 Inability to support the community and 
in particular vulnerable people 

 The Council plays an active role in 
the Local Resilience Forum (LRF) 
and network of sub groups taking 
part in very frequent meetings and 
working to effectively and 
collectively tackle the impact of 
COVID within the County.  This 
forum includes many agencies 
across the public sector spectrum 
including emergency services, NHS, 
Public Health and others (see 
strategic risk 6 also) 

 The Council has in place effective 
business continuity and emergency 
action plans which enabled the 
effective and efficient deployment 
and diversification of resources to 
ensure service resumption, business 
and community support in the initial 
response phase of the COVID-19 
pandemic 

 The Council have in place robust 
recovery plans which include the 
following; 

 Maintaining Financial Control - 
Development of financial resilience 
reserves and accessing govt. 
funding aimed at local authority 
support, service budget reviews, 

The government have 
established a ‘living with Covid’ 
approach with most measures 
now being removed.  The LRF 
have stood down in this regard 
now with all meetings, 
frameworks being removed – 
this is due to be reviewed 
however during autumn 2022 
on the run up to winter to 
establish whether there is a 
need for any future 
collaboration in this regard. 

P
age 160



16 
 

Area Of  Risk 

(Reference / Date) 

Threats / Opportunities Mitigation / Controls In Place / 
Actions Undertaken 

Potential Further Action / 
Action Planned / When By 

Date 

controlling expenditure, regular fees 
and charges reviews, furloughing 
staff as necessary 

 Workplace Safety – Return to work 
protocols and risk assessments, 
regular inspection, social distancing 
plans, protection and hygiene 
measures, PPE, staff testing, 
communication plan, staff related 
policy reviews, training and 
briefings, recognition of vulnerable 
employees  

 New Ways of Working – Virtual and 
remote working capability, digital 
workforce training, digital inclusion 
plans, remote and homeworking 
task group, homeworking policy 
review, website and online services 
capability review, managing teams 
remotely guidance 

 ICT and Cybersecurity – Evaluation 
of remote applications and tools, 
training and guidance, cybersecurity 
investment planning 

 Front Facing Services – Workplace 
safety as above, public interaction 
protocols, equipment such as 
‘sneeze, screens in place and face 
masks etc, floor markings and 
signage, social distancing 
measures, one way systems in 
facilities and public areas, NHS test 

P
age 161



17 
 

Area Of  Risk 

(Reference / Date) 

Threats / Opportunities Mitigation / Controls In Place / 
Actions Undertaken 

Potential Further Action / 
Action Planned / When By 

Date 

and trace registration and materials 
in place 

 Strategy and Plans Review – Risk 
management, Transformation 
Programme, Digital, Climate 
Change, People, Growth, Tourism 
and Leisure are all strategies either 
reviewed or currently being 
reviewed 

 External Recovery Plans – Aimed at 
the local economy, business support 
and survival, includes channelling 
and distribution of business grants, 
council tax and business rates 
support, links to other bodies 
including; LRF Recovery Sub 
Group, D2N2 Recovery.  There is 
also a key focus on Communities 
and the Council’s engagement and 
support with them including Parish 
Councils, voluntary sector and 
partners at all levels in the 
restoration and recovery challenge 

STR12 Nov 20 Inherent Risk Score 
(Likelihood x Impact) 

5x5 25 Residual Risk Score 
(Likelihood x Impact) 

5x3 15 Risk Owner / 
Lead Officer 

SMT / Political 
Leadership 

STR13 

Cyber security attack which 
severely impacts ICT 
systems and data. E.g. 
Ransomware attack 

 Inability of Council to provide services 
as a consequence of a severe 
catastrophic event which renders 
access to ICT unavailable such as 
Ransomware attack.    

 See Operational level activities risk 
reference ICT1 

 The Council works in partnership 
with a range of partners on its 
Emergency Planning arrangements 

Emergency planning to run 
Cyber security training events.  

 

Improved awareness to 
Service Managers. 

P
age 162



18 
 

Area Of  Risk 

(Reference / Date) 

Threats / Opportunities Mitigation / Controls In Place / 
Actions Undertaken 

Potential Further Action / 
Action Planned / When By 

Date 

rendering access to ICT 
unavailable for some time.  

 

 Potential ICO Fines and reputational 
damage. 

 Adverse Impact upon Service Quality 
and income streams. 

  Failure to deliver high quality 
services which address national and 
local priorities. 

 Potential ICO fines for loss of data 

 Significant adverse reputational 
impact. 

 Significant cost to Council. 

to ensure that we operate in line 
with best practice.  

 All sections have Business 
Continuity plans in place which 
identify key risks and mitigation.  

 Corporate IT systems have been 
tested against Industry standards for 
Business Continuity. 

 Awareness raising sessions taken 
place with SMT, Cabinet and other 
relevant committees. 

 Review response to Cleveland and 
Redcar case study and report to 
Cabinet was taken in  March 2022. 

 Business Continuity exercise has 
been delivered focussed upon the 
loss of access to digital 
data/systems. 

 

 

Service Managers to review 
business continuity plans 
specifically relating to cyber-
attack.  

 

Cabinet paper outlining the 
response to the Cleveland and 
Redcar case study and 
recommendations 

 

Ongoing work to ensure 
continued security and 
compliance. Next PSN (public 
Services Network) compliance 
review June 22. 

 

STR13 08/02/2021 
Inherent Risk Score 
(Likelihood x Impact) 

4x5  20 
Residual Risk Score 
(Likelihood x Impact) 

4x4 16 
Risk Owner / 
Lead Officer 

SMT / Political 
Leadership 

 

P
age 163



19 
 

Area Of  Risk 

(Reference / Date) 

Threats / Opportunities Mitigation / Controls In Place / 

Actions Undertaken 

Potential Further Action / 

Action Planned / When By 

Date 

STR14 

Illegal dumping of waste 

on  large area of Council 

owned land at Rotherside 

Road, Eckington leading to 

prosecution and/or 

contamination or water 

course or risk to human 

health/environment.   

 Potential contamination of river 

Rother 

 Potential risk to human 

health/environment from waste 

 Potential prosecution by the 

Environment Agency for 

knowing  allowing deposit of waste 

onto land 

 Cost of remediation of land 

potentially substantial 

 Council peaceably re-entered site 

and taken control of site. 

16/06/2021 

 Council Secured site   

 Keep Environment Agency 

informed of Council actions 

 Visible hazardous waste has been 

removed 

 Tenders received for site 

investigation works across the site 

and contractor will be instructed in 

Early Feb 2022. 

 

 Lessons learned to be 

created  31st March 2022 

 Site investigation report to 

be commissioned February 

2022 

 Site remediation works to 

deal with any 

risks   (timescale 

dependant on findings 

above) 

Update awaited. 

STR14 22/06/2021 Inherent Risk Score 

(Likelihood x Impact) 

 20 Residual Risk Score 

(Likelihood x Impact) 

 10 Risk Owner / 

Lead Officer 

SMT / Political 

Leadership 

STR15 

Climate Change – meeting 

the challenge and impact 

upon the organisation in its 

environment 

 

 Meeting potential changes around 

government policy and targets 

 Financial pressures of changes 

required including buildings, fleet, 

land, utilities etc. 

 Capacity to deliver change – both 

Human and Financial 

 Impact upon operations and carbon 

neutrality targets  

 Visibility of activity/actions by the 

Council in this regard 

 Council declared a Climate 

Emergency 

 Council Climate Change Action 

Plan in place – 2019 to 2030.  This 

currently being reviewed 

 Key targets for the organisation 

set to achieve net zero by 2030 

 Climate Change Group 

established to track progress and 

influence change 

 NEDDC leading (chair) the 

County-wide Climate Change 

Group 

 Take advantage of 

further funding 

opportunities as they 

arrive 

 Deliver on the Asset 

Carbon Survey findings 

 Deliver on 

Accommodation 

Review findings 

 Deliver Thanks-a-

Tonne – community P
age 164



20 
 

Area Of  Risk 

(Reference / Date) 

Threats / Opportunities Mitigation / Controls In Place / 

Actions Undertaken 

Potential Further Action / 

Action Planned / When By 

Date 

 Community Leadership challenge – 

engagement and education – 

reputational damage if not seen to 

be leading by example 

 Reputational damage if own targets 

not met 

 

 Regular reporting of progress to 

Council 

 Extensive External Wall Insulation 

programme undertaken and 

continuing in regard to Hard to 

Treat Council housing stock 

 Asset Carbon Survey undertaken 

to establish opportunities and 

threats in relation to building stock 

 Accommodation review underway 

to explore possibility of co-location 

amongst other things 

 Thanks-a-Tonne – community 

climate change awareness 

campaign designed 

 Requires update Steve Lee to 

support 

climate change 

awareness campaign  

 Requires update Steve 

Lee to support 

STR15 07/06/22 Inherent Risk Score 

(Likelihood x Impact) 

 25 Residual Risk Score 

(Likelihood x Impact) 

 12 Risk Owner / 

Lead Officer 

SMT / Political 

Leadership 

STR16 

Utilities, fuel and general 

Cost of Living rises 

 

 A disruption to supply chains 

and lack of raw materials 

increases the potential to delay 

or increase the cost of capital 

projects 

 Financial pressure upon delivery 

of day-to-day operations i.e. 

heating buildings, energy, fuel for 

fleet etc. 

 Requires update Joy Redfern, 

Damien Johnson, Jayne Dethick, 

Steve Lee to support 

 Requires update Joy 

Redfern, Damien 

Johnson, Jayne 

Dethick, Steve Lee to 

support 

P
age 165



21 
 

Area Of  Risk 

(Reference / Date) 

Threats / Opportunities Mitigation / Controls In Place / 

Actions Undertaken 

Potential Further Action / 

Action Planned / When By 

Date 

 This combination also impacts 

upon wider communities, 

household budgets and the 

financial security of our 

residents increasing the cost of 

everyday items including food 

and the cost of living generally 

 These impacts upon the wider 

community, in-turn have a 

significant potential to impact 

further upon Council services 

through rent arrears from 

housing and business tenants, 

increased demand for welfare 

support and homelessness 

services amongst many other 

things 

STR16 07/06/22 Inherent Risk Score 

(Likelihood x Impact) 

 20 Residual Risk Score 

(Likelihood x Impact) 

 12 Risk Owner / 

Lead Officer 

SMT / Political 

Leadership 

STR17 

Asylum Dispersal Area 

status – no longer voluntary 

for LA’s to decide 

 Risk/threat/opportunity currently 

being established/understood 

 Mitigation being considered   

STR17 07/06/22 Inherent Risk Score 

(Likelihood x Impact) 

  Residual Risk Score 

(Likelihood x Impact) 

  Risk Owner / 

Lead Officer 

SMT / Political 

Leadership P
age 166



22 
 

Area Of  Risk 

(Reference / Date) 

Threats / Opportunities Mitigation / Controls In Place / 

Actions Undertaken 

Potential Further Action / 

Action Planned / When By 

Date 

STR18 

Devolution and County 

Deals 

 Risk/threat/opportunity currently 

being established/understood 

 Mitigation being considered   

STR15 21/01/22 Inherent Risk Score 

(Likelihood x Impact) 

  Residual Risk Score 

(Likelihood x Impact) 

  Risk Owner / 

Lead Officer 

 

 

 

P
age 167



1 
 

Agenda Item No  
 

North East Derbyshire District Council 
 

Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee 
 

29 June 2022 
 
 
 
 

Report of the Director of Finance and Resources 
 

Classification:  This report is public 
 
Report By:  Jayne Dethick, Director of Finance and Resources (S151 Officer) 
 
Contact Officer:  as above 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PURPOSE/SUMMARY 
 
To inform the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee of the contents of the 
attached Financial Outturn 2021/22 report to be presented to Cabinet on 7 July 2022.  
________________________________________________________________________ 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
1. That the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee note the report and 

make any comments that they believe to be appropriate with regards to the attached 
report as presented to Cabinet on 7 July 2022.  
 

Approved by the Portfolio Holder – Cllr Parkin, Cabinet Member for Finance 
________________________________________________________________________ 
  
IMPLICATIONS 
  
Finance and Risk         Yes   No  
 
These are detailed in the attached report.  
 
On Behalf of the Section 151 Officer    
________________________________________________________________________ 
  
Legal (including Data Protection)     Yes   No  
 
These are detailed in the attached report. 
 

On Behalf of the Solicitor to the Council  
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

Medium Term Financial Plan – Financial Outturn 2021/22 

Page 168

Agenda Item 8a



2 
 

 
Staffing         Yes  No  
 
These are detailed in the attached report. 
 

On Behalf of the Head of Paid Service 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
DECISION INFORMATION 
 
 
Decision Information    
Is the decision a Key Decision? 
A Key Decision is an executive decision which has a 
significant impact on two or more District wards or 
which results in income or expenditure to the Council 
above the following thresholds:  
 
NEDDC:  
Revenue - £100,000 ☐  Capital - £250,000  ☐ 
☒ Please indicate which threshold applies 

No 

Is the decision subject to Call-In? 
(Only Key Decisions are subject to Call-In)  
 

No 
 

District Wards Significantly Affected 
 

None 
 

Consultation: 
Leader / Deputy Leader ☐   Cabinet ☐ 
SMT ☒ Relevant Service Manager ☒ 
Members ☐   Public ☐ Other ☐ 
 

Yes 
 
Details:  
 
 

 
Links to Council Plan priorities, including Climate Change, Equalities, and 
Economics and Health implications. 
 
 All 

____________________________________________________________________ 
 
REPORT DETAILS 
 
1 Background 

 
To inform the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee of the contents 
of the attached Financial Outturn 2021/22 report to be presented to Cabinet on 7 July 
2022.  

 
2 Financial Outturn 2021/22 
 
2.1    To update Members of the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee 

concerning the Council’s financial outturn position.   

Page 169



3 
 

2.2   The report attached as Appendix 1 will be presented to the Council’s Cabinet on 7th 
July 2022.   
 

3 Reasons for Recommendation  
 
3.1 These are detailed in the attached report. 
 
3.2    To ensure that the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee are kept 

informed of the Council’s latest financial outturn position. 
 
4 Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 These are detailed in the attached report. 
 
 
DOCUMENT INFORMATION 
 
Appendix No 
 

Title 

1 Cabinet  Outturn Report 7 July 2022 
Background Papers  
 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 170



1 
 

Agenda Item No  
 

North East Derbyshire District Council 
 

Cabinet  
 

7 July 2022 
 

Medium Term Financial Plan - Financial Outturn 2021/22 

 
Report of the Portfolio Holder with Responsibility for Finance 

 
 Classification:  This report is public 
 

Report By:  Jayne Dethick, Director of Finance and Resources (S151 Officer) 
 

Contact Officer:  as above 
 

_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
 PURPOSE/SUMMARY 
 

To inform Cabinet of the outturn position of the Council for the 2021/22 financial year.  
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
1. That Cabinet note the outturn position in respect of the 2021/22 financial year 

 
2. That Cabinet approve the proposed carry forward of revenue budgets as detailed 

in 2.8 totalling £0.036m.    
 

3. That Cabinet approve the proposed carry forward of capital budgets detailed in 
Appendix 4 totalling £11.024m.    

 

Approved by the Portfolio Holder – Cllr Parkin, Cabinet Member for Finance 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

  
 IMPLICATIONS 
  
 Finance and Risk         Yes   No  
 
 The financial implications are set out within the body of the report.   
 
 Members should note that the budgets against which we have monitored the 2021/22 

outturn were those agreed within the Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan. The Medium 
Term Financial Plan gave careful consideration to both the affordability of the budgets 
that were approved, and to ensuring that the level of balances remained adequate for 
purposes of enabling sound financial management.  

 

Page 171



2 
 

 The issue of financial risk is covered throughout the report. The risk of not achieving a 
balanced budget, together with the risk that the Council’s level of financial balances will 
be further eroded are currently key corporate risks identified on the Council’s Strategic 
Risk Register. The outturn report shows the budget has been balanced in 2021/22 and 
the level of reserves protected.  

 
 While the Council has effectively addressed its Strategic Financial Risks during 2021/22 

it needs to be recognised that it will need to continue to meet a range of challenging 
savings targets if it is to operate effectively within the financial environment established 
by Central Government spending targets. This has been an intrinsic part of the budget 
setting process and will continue to be so.  

 
During the year the Covid 19 pandemic continued to have an impact on the budget on 
services such as Leisure and Waste Recycling however these have been carefully 
monitored through the year. Further Covid Response grant funding of £0.491m has been 
received from the Government during the year to aid the continued delivery of council 
services.  

On Behalf of the Section 151 Officer 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

  
 Legal including Data Protection      Yes   No  
 
 The Statement of Accounts is required to be prepared by the 30 November this year.  The 

Council has now completed the draft Statement of Accounts and they have been signed 
off by the Chief Financial Officer as at 26 May 2022 which secures compliance with the 
Council’s obligations.  

 
 On Behalf of the Solicitor to the Council  

  _____________________________________________________________________ 
 
 Staffing         Yes  No  
 
 There are no staffing issues arising directly from this report. 
 

 On Behalf of the Head of Paid Service 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

 
 DECISION INFORMATION 
  

Decision Information    
  
Is the decision a Key Decision? 
A Key Decision is an executive decision which has a 
significant impact on two or more District wards or 
which results in income or expenditure to the Council 
above the following thresholds:  
 
NEDDC:  
Revenue - £100,000 ☐  Capital - £250,000  ☐ 
☒ Please indicate which threshold applies 

No 

 
 

Page 172



3 
 

 Is the decision subject to Call-In? 
(Only Key Decisions are subject to Call-In)  
 

No 
 

District Wards Significantly Affected 
 

None 
 

Consultation: 
Leader / Deputy Leader ☐   Cabinet ☐ 
SMT ☒ Relevant Service Manager ☒ 
Members ☐   Public ☐ Other ☐ 
 

Yes 
 
Details:  
 
 

 

Links to Council Plan priorities, including Climate Change, Equalities, and 
Economics and Health implications. 
 All 

_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
 REPORT DETAILS 
 
1 Background 
 
 The Director of Finance and Resources is responsible for the preparation of the 

authority’s Statement of Accounts which, in terms of the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice 
on Local Authority Accounting in United Kingdom ("the Code”), is required to present a 
true and fair view of the financial position of the authority at the accounting date and its 
income and expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2022.  

 
2 Financial Outturn 2021/22 
 
2.1 The Council published its draft Statement of Accounts in respect of 2021/22 on 26 May 

2022, ahead of the statutory deadline of 31 July 2022. Due to the continued impact of the 
Coronavirus pandemic, the deadline for completion this year has remained as 31 July, 
however the draft accounts have been completed ahead of this time in order to facilitate 
the External Auditor’s work schedule. The draft Statement of Accounts 2021/22 is now 
subject to the independent audit from the Council’s external auditors, Mazars. Until the 
accounts have been signed off by the external auditors, there remains the possibility that 
they will be subject to amendment. Whilst the statutory deadline for sign off by the Auditor 
is 30 November this year, it is the intention that the final audited accounts will be reported 
to and approved by the Audit & Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee at its meeting 
of 28 September 2022.   

 
2.2 International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) dictates that the main focus of the 

Statement of Accounts is on reporting to the public in a format which is directly 
comparable with every country that has adopted IFRS i.e. not just UK or even other local 
authorities. By contrast, the focus of this report is on providing management information 
to Members and other stakeholders to assist in the financial management of the Council.  

 
2.3 The following sections of this report will consider the 2021/22 outturn position in respect 

of the General Fund, Housing Revenue Account (HRA), Capital Programme and Treasury 
Management activities. Within the report, consideration is given to the level of balances 
at the year end and the impact which the closing position has upon the Council’s budgets 
in respect of the current financial year. 

Page 173



4 
 

  General Fund  
 
2.4 The summary position in respect of the General Fund outturn is detailed in Appendix 1 

and shows the Original Budget that was set in January 2021, together with the Current 
Budget compared to the final 2021/22 Outturn position. Appendix 2 provides a more 
detailed breakdown by directorate. 

  
2.5 A subjective breakdown of the variances identified in Appendix 1 can be found in Table 1 

below. A detailed breakdown of the amounts making up the transfers from reserves can 
be found in Table 2. 

 
  Table 1 

 Current 
Budget 
2021/22 

Outturn 
2021/22 

Variance 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Vacancy management 16,732 16,134 (598) 
Premises related costs  1,640 1,594 (46) 
Vehicle related costs  532 566 34 
Supplies & services  14,308 14,261 (48) 
Year end adjustment for Rent Rebates 
(DWP) 

(59) 231 290 

Income   (22,244) (22,355) (110) 
Net cost of services  10,909 10,431 (478) 

 
2.6 Table 1 above comprises: 

 Vacancy management – the largest proportion of the under spend is attributable to 
employee salaries as a result of staff vacancies  

 Premises related costs – the underspend relates mainly to reduced spend on energy 
costs at the leisure centres, with Eckington Leisure Centre having been closed for 
refurbishment works during the year. 

 Vehicle related costs – the main overspend is due to increased spend on fuel. 
 Supplies & services – the variance relates mainly to underspends in software 

maintenance, provision for bad debts and external audit fees, offset by increased 
costs of vehicle maintenance, increased printing costs for elections, offset by elections 
grant income. Covid19 spend is also included which is offset by grant funding. 

 Rent Rebates – this relates to the year end adjustment on completion of the annual 
Housing Subsidy claim. 

 Income - the variance relates mainly to increased leisure centre income post Covid, 
grant received to cover election costs and Covid19 grant income, offset by a shortfall 
in court costs recovered.  
 

2.7 Two budgets have been identified for which there is a requirement to roll over into 
2022/23. The first is for the funding of church wall repairs £0.008m that should have been 
repaired by 31 March 2022 but were delayed due to difficulties in securing a contractor. 
The second is for rent review valuations of £0.028m due to a slight delay in securing a 
valuer. The total amount to be rolled over is £0.036m. 

 
 Financial Reserves  

2.8 Transfers from Earmarked Reserves 

The use of earmarked reserves in 2021/22 was £3.557m comprising: 

Page 174



5 
 

 £2.552m from revenue grants 
 £0.579m from earmarked reserves 
 £0.426m from the Invest to Save Reserve 

 
There are ongoing commitments against these reserves in 2022/23 and future years so 
will continue to be utilised.  
 
The variances in Movement from Reserves can be found in Table 2 below. 
 
Table 2 
 

 Current 
Budget 
2021/22 

Outturn 
2021/22 

Variance 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Movements from Reserves:    

Revised Budget (3,107) (3,107) 0 

Plus:    

Contribution to General Fund balance (491) (94) 397 

Healthy NED & Low Carbon Skills Fund (101) (131) (30) 

Low Carbon Skills Fund 0 (14) (14) 

Covid Response Grant (278) (211) 67 

Total movement from reserves  - outturn (3,977) (3,557) 420 

 
2.9 Transfers to Earmarked Reserves 
 

There have been transfers to earmarked reserves during 2021/22 totalling £3.681m. 
These comprise: 

 £2.357m in revenue grants received.  

 £0.811m into earmarked reserves.  

 £0.513 into capital reserve 

These are in line with the Revised Estimate so there are no variances to report.  
 

2.10 The contribution to the General Fund of £0.094m has been transferred from reserves 
which is £0.397m less than the budgeted amount of £0.491m that was approved in the 
Medium Term Financial Plan. Members will recall the need to utilise reserves in the 
revised budget to fund the cost of bringing the waste recycling services in house. Whilst 
the cost of this service remains an additional pressure on the General Fund, the majority 
has been absorbed through other efficiencies during 2021/22.   

2.11 Ongoing commitments against the earmarked reserves which will continue in 2022/23 
and future years. Should any of the reserves prove unnecessary in the light of subsequent 
events then they will be moved back into unallocated General Fund resources.  

 
 

Page 175



6 
 

Covid Grants 

2.12 A number of grant and relief schemes on behalf of the Government have continued 
throughout 2021/22 although much reduced in number and value on last year. The 
eligibility criteria for these schemes are set out in government guidance and throughout 
the year the Council has worked closely with the Department for Business, Energy and 
Industrial Strategy (BEIS) to deliver all grant and relief schemes as swiftly as possible to 
qualifying business owners and individuals across the district. The Covid19 grants 
received during 2021/22 are shown in Table 3 below. 

  
Table 3 
 

 

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Agency Grants

Local Restrictions Support Grants (Closed) (694) 231 8 (455) 0

Christmas Support Payments (18) 18 0 0 0

Closed Business Lockdown Payments (460) 0 17 (443) 0

Local Restrictions Support Grant (Open) (95) 0 84 (11) 0

Covid19 Test & Trace (109) (269) 310 (68) 0

Business Restart Grant 0 (4,518) 4,808 290 0

Omicron Hospitality & Leisure 0 (996) 715 (281) 0

Total (1,376) (5,534) 5,942 (968) 0

Principal Grants

Local Authority Discretionary Grants (LADGF) 0 0 (10) 0 (10)

Additional Restrictions Grants (ARG) (587) (726) 1,298 0 (15)

Covid19 Response Grant (via Resilience Reserve) (377) (491) 211 0 (657)

Council Tax Hardship (160) 0 0 0 (160)

Homelessness during lockdown 0 (10) 10 0 0

Covid19 Compliance & Enforcement (9) (127) 124 0 (12)

Covid19 Enforcement (50) 0 0 0 (50)

New Burdens - 1 SBGF & RHLG (130) 0 0 0 (130)

New Burdens - 2 LADGF (53) (167) 72 0 (148)

New Burdens - 3 Business Rates Admin Costs (23) 0 0 0 (23)

New Burdens - 4 Restart & ARG 0 (73) 8 0 (65)

New Burdens - 5 Post Payment Assurance, Reco & 
Debt Recovery

0 (18) 0 0 (18)

New Burdens - 6 Omicron Hospitality & Leisure and 
ARG grants

0 (39) 0 0 (39)

Total (1,389) (1,651) 1,713 0 (1,327)

Grand Total (2,765) (7,185) 7,655 (968) (1,327)

Grant 
Transfer to 
Reserves

Covid19 Grants

Grant 
Brought 
Forward 

from 
2020/21

Grant 
Received/ 
Returned 
2021/22

Net 
Expenditure 

2021/22

Grant 
Carried 
Forward 

Page 176



7 
 

 Invest to Save 

2.13 The Invest to Save Reserve has a balance at the end of the year of £2.984m. 
Commitments already made against this reserve for 2021/22 and future years amount to 
£0.733m leaving £2.251m uncommitted.  

 Resilience Reserve 

2.14 The Resilience Reserve has a balance at the end of the year of £2.601m. This will be 
utilised to provide financial resilience to the General Fund in future years as required by 
Medium Term Financial Plan. Ongoing pressures arising from the Covid pandemic will 
continue to be met from this reserve. 

  
General Fund Balances 

 
2.15 The level of General Fund Balances has been maintained at £2.000m.  The General Fund 

balances are considered to be at an acceptable level rather than generous. The General 
Fund balance needs to be considered against the background of ongoing reductions in 
the level of Government funding together with the range of risks facing the Council. With 
only a limited level of General Fund reserves it is crucial that the Council continues to 
maintain robust budgetary control while securing its ongoing savings targets in order to 
safeguard both its reserves and its financial sustainability. 

 
2.16 Given the current level of general balances, should either an over spend or an under 

achievement of income occur then the Council would have a period of time in which to 
recover the situation. In addition the earmarked Resilience reserve can provide short term 
funding support as needed.  In a situation in which the Council were operating at a lower 
level of balances and an overspend or an under achievement of income occurred which 
took balances to below minimum level then immediate ‘crisis’ remedial action would need 
to be considered. Such a response is not conducive to sound financial management but 
more importantly would have a significant detrimental impact upon the Council’s ability to 
deliver the planned and agreed level of services to local residents. However, Cabinet will 
recognise that given a level of General Fund Balances of £2.000m, against the 
requirement to secure £5.253m in savings by 2025/26, as identified in the Medium Term 
Financial Plan (MTFP) of January 2022, the need to continue to tackle the underlying 
forecast budget deficit remains.  

 
2.17 The main feature of the 2021/22 financial year is that the Council was successful in 

reducing the amount of funding required from reserves to fund the General Fund budget 
shortfall. This reduced from £0.491m at the Medium Term Financial Plan stage to 
£0.094m at outturn, a reduction of £0.397m. 

 
2.18 The Efficiency Plan, presented as part of the Medium Term Financial Plan identifies the 

plans in place to address the ongoing budget shortfall, summarised below in Table 4. This 
plan is embedded in the financial monitoring and reporting processes and regularly 
reviewed and refreshed.  

 
  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 177



8 
 

Table 4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          

 
Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 

 
2.19 The Housing Revenue Account is provided in Appendix 3 to this report.  The figures 

provided include all the statutory accounting transactions that the Council is required to 
make within the Statement of Accounts.  These are accounting transactions which net off 
to zero and are not included within the HRA management budgets as they do not impact 
on the overall financial position or balances of the HRA. To allow comparison between 
budget and outturn these accounting adjustments are included within both the adjusted 
budget and outturn position.   

  
2.20 The Housing Revenue Account position shows a number of relatively small variances 

during the year. Income is just £0.052m above budget. The overall expenditure position 
is £0.253m below the current budget mainly due to a decrease in the bad debt provision 
in year. This gives a net cost of services underspend of £0.305m, which remains constant 
after interest. A contribution of £2.540m has been made from the Development Reserve 
which is available to sustain the Council’s housing stock.  

 
2.21 The HRA balance is being maintained at £3m in line with the level of financial risk facing 

the HRA. Maintenance of this balance is necessary as it will help ensure the financial and 
operational stability of the HRA which is essential if we are to maintain the level of 
services and quality of housing provided to our tenants. Given the changes to the rent 
setting process together with the increasing numbers of houses lost under Right to Buy 
the Council and Rykneld Homes will need to continue to work closely together in order to 
ensure the continued sustainability of the HRA over the life of the 30 year Business Plan.  

 
 
Capital Investment Programme 

 
2.22 Details of the capital expenditure incurred by the Council in 2021/22 on a scheme by 

scheme basis is provided in Appendix 4  

  

 

 

 

Page 178



9 
 

 

The Capital Programme may be summarised as follows:- 

 Current 
Programme 

£m 

 Outturn 
 

£m 

Variance 
 

£m 

HRA  28.605 20.678 (7.927) 

General Fund 9.376 4.966 (4.410) 

Programme Total 37.981 25.644 (12.337) 

 
2.23 HRA Schemes 
 

The housing investment programme was underutilised during 2021/22 including EWI 
works to non-traditional properties. This was largely due to material shortages on site in 
the earlier part of the year but both are progressing well again now.  The acquisitions and 
disposals budget was fully utilised during 2021/22.  

2.24 General Fund 
 

The General Fund element of the Capital Programme during 2021/22 increased 
significantly from the previous year. This was largely in response to the award of £24.1m 
New Town Deal funding from the Government for place making works in Clay Cross. The 
regeneration programme runs from now until 2026 and the under spend in 2021 will be 
rolled over to future years as delivery phases get fully underway. In addition, works 
continued on the refurbishment of Killamarsh Leisure Centre, which is expected to 
complete by the summer of 2022 and this year’s underspend of £1.06m will be utilised by 
completion. The same applies to the variances for the Eckington Depot Refurbishment 
(£0.582m) and Eckington Pool Carbon Efficiencies Programme (£0.285m) both of which 
will carry forward into 2022/23. The vehicle replacement scheme shows a variance of 
£0.451m which is also being carried forward to be available to fund the purchase of 
vehicles in the future financial years as required. 
 

2.25 Appendix 4 details the proposed carry forward amounts to 2022/23 as mentioned in 2.25 
above.  The total carry forward amounts to £11.024m. It should be noted that all these 
expenditure requirements will take forward a corresponding level of financial resources 
and thus have a neutral impact on the financial position in 2022/23. 

 
  

Capital Financing 
 

2.26 Appendix 4 also details how each scheme is financed. In summary: 
 
 HRA Capital Financing 
 
2.27 The HRA Capital Programme is financed from a combination of capital receipts, revenue 

contributions, prudential borrowing, use of reserves and grants.  
 
 
 
 

Page 179



10 
 

General Fund Capital Financing 
 
2.28 The General Fund Capital Programme is financed from a combination of capital receipts, 

revenue contributions, prudential borrowing and grants. The Prudential Borrowing 
financing arrangements were agreed by Council as part of the Treasury Management 
Strategy at its meeting in February 2021.       
 
Treasury Management 

 
2.29 Appendix 5 provides a brief report on the Treasury Management activity of the Council 

for 2021/22.  In summary the Council operated throughout 2021/22 within the Authorised 
Limit and Operational Boundary limits approved in the Treasury Management strategy as 
approved by the Council in February 2021.   

 
2.30 The key points from the summary report are: 
 

 The overall borrowing requirement of the Council was £187.116m at 31 March 2022. 
 The PWLB debt is £147.032m at 31 March 2022. 
 Effective internal borrowing is £40.084m at 31 March 2022 
 No new PWLB borrowing was undertaken in 2021/22 
 Repaid PWLB debt in year of £2.206m 
 PWLB interest paid in year was £5.227m  
 Interest received in year on investments was £0.027m 

 
3 Reasons for Recommendation  
 
3.1 General Fund 
 
 During the previous financial year the Council managed its budget effectively securing an 

improved financial position on net cost of services of £0.478m underspend. This 
underspend has meant a much reduced call on reserves has been required at outturn  
resulting in a contribution of £0.094m being made from reserves compared to the original 
budget of £0.491m, which is an improvement of £0.397m. Two budgets have been 
identified for rollover into 2021/22 totalling £0.036m. 

  
3.2 HRA 
 
 The HRA continues to operate within the parameters set by the 30 Year Business Plan 

and the MTFP. Officers will be working with Rykneld Homes to ensure that the Business 
Plan continues to reflect the impact of recent government legislation, and that the HRA 
remains sustainable over the 30 year period of the Business Plan. 

 
3.3 Capital Programme 
 
 The Capital Programme saw progress on approved schemes during the 2021/22 financial 

year despite the continued disruptions due to the Coronavirus pandemic. There are, 
however, a number of schemes which are work in progress and this requires that the 
associated expenditure and funding be carried forward into the 2022/23 financial year.    

 
 
 
 

Page 180



11 
 

3.4 Capital Financing 
 
 Capital expenditure during 2021/22 has been fully financed in line with the approved 

programme. 
 
3.5 Treasury Management 
 
 The Council operated in line with its agreed Treasury Management Strategy during the 

2021/22 financial year. This ensures that lending and borrowing arrangements were 
prudent and sustainable, minimising the risk of financial loss to the Council. Effective 
management of these arrangements ensured that interest costs during the year were 
minimised in order to assist the Council’s revenue position whilst interest receivable 
reduced slightly.  

 
4 Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 The financial outturn report for 2021/22 is primarily a factual report detailing the actual 

position compared to previously approved budgets therefore there are no alternative 
options that need to be considered.     

 
4.2 The allocation of resources to earmarked reserve accounts has been undertaken in line 

with the Council’s policy and service delivery framework and in the light of the risks and 
issues facing the Council over the period of the current MTFP.  If these risks do not 
materialise or are settled at a lower cost than anticipated then the earmarked reserves 
will be reassessed and returned to balances where appropriate. 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

 
 DOCUMENT INFORMATION 
 

Appendix No 
 

Title 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 

General Fund Summary Outturn 2021/22 
General Fund Detailed Outturn 2021/22 
HRA Summary Outturn 2021/22 
Capital Expenditure Outturn 2021/22 
Treasury Management Outturn 2021/22 

Background Papers  
 

 
 
 

Page 181



GENERAL FUND ACCOUNT - SUMMARY OUTTURN 2021/22 APPENDIX 1 

Original 
Budget 
2021/22

Current 
Budget 
2021/22

Outturn 
2021/22 Variance     

£ £ £ £

Operations Directorate 8,151,169 7,399,048 7,734,096 335,048
Growth Directorate 1,091,510 1,395,709 1,257,291 (138,418)
Transformation Directorate 2,861,350 2,684,877 2,020,174 (664,703)
Recharges to Capital and HRA (527,500) (570,500) (580,500) (10,000)
Savings Target (15,933) 0 0 0

Net Cost of Services 11,560,596 10,909,134 10,431,061 (478,073)

Investment Properties (413,910) (463,677) (474,243) (10,566)
Bad Debt Provision 40,000 40,000 60,864 20,864
Interest (177,160) (110,572) (163,718) (53,146)
Debt Repayment Minimum Revenue Provision 56,000 56,000 56,000 0
Parish Precepts 3,386,780 3,386,780 3,386,780 (0)
Parish Council Grants 70,382 0 0 0
Transfer To Earmarked Reserves 60,000 3,680,767 3,680,767 0
Transfer From Earmarked Reserves (1,683,186) (3,977,723) (3,557,338) 420,385

Total Spending Requirement 12,899,502 13,520,709 13,420,172 (100,537)

Business Rates (2,826,100) (3,447,307) (3,345,413) 101,894
Lower Tier Services Grant (205,095) (205,095) (205,095) 0
New Homes Bonus (360,439) (360,439) (360,439) 0
Collection Fund (Surplus)/Deficit - Council Tax 0 0 (1,357) (1,357)
Collection Fund (Surplus)/Deficit - NNDR 0 0 0
NEDDC Council Tax Requirement (6,121,088) (6,121,088) (6,121,088) 0
Parish Council Council Tax Requirement (3,386,780) (3,386,780) (3,386,780) 0

Council Tax Requirement (12,899,502) (13,520,709) (13,420,172) 100,537

Page 182



GENERAL FUND ACCOUNT - DETAILED OUTTURN 2021/22 APPENDIX 2

Current 
Budget 
2021/22

Outturn 
2021/22 Variance

£ £ £
Operations Directorate

Director of Operations & Head Of Paid Service
1283 Emergency Planning 16,000 16,756 756  
4500 Managing Director - Operations & Head of Paid Service 90,814 100,101 9,287
5700 Joint Strategic Director - Environment & Enforcement 19,199 19,132 (67)
5720 Supporting PA's 123,998 124,076 78

250,011 260,065 10,054

Assistant Director Environmental Health
3400 Environmental Protection 86,701 78,968 (7,733)
3401 Food, Health & Safety 123,970 118,124 (5,846)
3402 Environmental Enforcement 97,499 74,188 (23,311)
3403 Neighbourhood Management 0 0 0
3404 Licensing (28,176) (28,176) (0)
3405 Pollution 110,687 104,524 (6,163)
3407 Pest Control 32,329 34,606 2,277
3409 EH Technical Support & Management 228,087 235,628 7,541
3410 Private Sector Housing 73,241 70,710 (2,531)
3419 Destitute Funerals 1,500 3,012 1,512
3420 Fly Tipping 3,000 2,577 (423)
3421 VARM (NE) Discretionary Funding (252) 781 1,033
3423 Air Quality Feasibility Study 16,452 16,453 1
3425 Covid-19 Fines (260) (1,260) (1,000)
3426 Covid Enforcement Team (2,364) (2,364) (0)
3427 Private Water Supply Contract 0 (2,779) (2,779)
3428 MEES Project (23,248) (23,248) (0)
3726 Works In Default 0 154 154

719,166 681,896 (37,270)

Assistant Director Streetscene
3174 Street Scene 341,276 314,441 (26,835)
3227 Materials Recycling 588,859 406,589 (182,270)
3244 Parks Derbyshire County Council Agency (360,000) (359,667) 333
3282 Eckington Depot 105,580 106,006 426
3285 Dronfield Bulk Depot 3,495 3,493 (2)
3511 Hasland Cemetery (52,820) (64,144) (11,324)
3513 Temple Normanton Cemetery (7,405) (4,488) 2,917
3514 Clay Cross Cemetery (59,685) (67,942) (8,257)
3516 Killamarsh Cemetery (22,015) (27,247) (5,232)
3918 Dog Fouling Bins (57,150) (65,921) (8,771)
3921 Street Cleaning Service 615,802 578,002 (37,800)
3943 Transport 128,824 466,165 337,341
3944 Grounds Maintenance 605,226 582,177 (23,049)
3945 Domestic Waste Collection 1,547,232 1,610,286 63,054
3946 Commercial Waste Collection (215,980) (242,543) (26,563)

3,161,239 3,235,206 73,967

Assistant Director Planning
4111 Applications And Advice (588,400) (536,606) 51,794
4113 Planning Appeals 28,847 28,847 0
4116 Planning Policy 227,911 230,041 2,130
4119 Neighbourhood Planning Grant 0 0 0
4311 Environmental Conservation 14,220 13,920 (300)
4511 Assistant Director Planning 63,079 62,488 (591)
4513 Planning 295,816 279,738 (16,078)
4515 Building Control 58,000 48,108 (9,892)
4522 Section 106 Agreement 35,603 35,604 1

135,076 162,141 27,065

Assistant Director Governance
1121 Member's Services 430,613 415,350 (15,263)
1123 Chair’s Expenses 12,120 10,127 (1,993)
1131 District Elections 0 28,048 28,048
1133 Parish Elections 0 0 0

Page 183



Current 
Budget 
2021/22

Outturn 
2021/22 Variance

1137 Parliamentary Elections 0 0 0
1139 County Council Elections 0 0 0
1231 Corporate Training 0 0 0
1259 Corporate Groups 38,480 28,799 (9,681)
1311 Human Resources 6,000 0 (6,000)
1313 Work Well Team 196,645 178,668 (17,977)
3121 Health & Safety Advisor 88,488 78,079 (10,409)
5250 National Civic Events 0 364 364
5273 Brass Band Concert 5,000 0 (5,000)
5313 Register Of Electors 160,036 148,054 (11,982)
5321 Assistant Director Governance 41,760 50,214 8,454
5353 Legal Section 158,002 112,624 (45,378)
5354 Land Charges (8,653) (11,458) (2,805)
5392 Scrutiny 52,274 35,432 (16,842)
5711 Democratic Services 209,075 186,645 (22,430)

1,389,840 1,260,946 (128,894)

Assistant Director Finance
1312 Payroll 57,217 47,550 (9,667)
3176 Pool Car 0 0 0
5113 Unison Duties 16,891 16,995 104
5611 External Audit 83,061 32,066 (50,995)
5615 Bank Charges 95,500 104,000 8,500
5621 Contribution to/from HRA (185,600) (185,450) 150
5713 Audit 104,160 104,000 (160)
5714 Financial Support Services 3,500 2,475 (1,025)
5715 Procurement 47,667 42,872 (4,796)
5721 Financial Services 338,520 331,852 (6,668)
5724 Insurance 321,000 312,867 (8,133)
5725 Apprenticeship Levy 45,000 43,439 (1,561)
5727 Cost Of Ex-Employees 864,000 860,876 (3,124)
5728 Covid-19 Response (430,735) (430,736) (1)
5729 Additional Restrictions Grant 571,522 571,522 (0)
5730 Local Restrictions Support Grant (Closed) 0 0 0
5731 Local Restrictions Support Grant (Open) 0 0 0
5732 Christmas Support Payments 0 0 0
5738 Closed Business Lockdown Payments 0 0 0
5739 LAGDF (10,000) (10,000) 0
5740 Council Tax Hardship 0 0 0
5741 Housing Benefit Service (100,474) 373,552 474,026
5742 Test and Trace 0 0 0
5743 Business Restart Grant 0 0 0
5744 Omicron Hospitality and Leisure Grant 0 0 0
5745 Covid New Burdens (217,265) (217,266) (1)
5747 Debtors 51,149 52,121 972
5751 NNDR Collection (11,437) 6,554 17,991
5759 Council Tax Administration 247,620 222,134 (25,486)
5775 Council Tax Rebate 0 0 0
5776 Discretionary Fund (162,450) (162,450) 0
5781 Village Hall Grants 14,870 14,867 (3)

1,743,716 2,133,842 390,126

Total for Operations Directorate 7,399,048 7,734,096 335,048

Growth Directorate

Director of Growth
1143 Director of Growth 51,941 52,332 391
1218 Community Safety 12,257 9,547 (2,710)
3512 CBC Crematorium (173,000) (221,787) (48,787)

(108,802) (159,908) (51,106)

Assistant Director Property, Estates & Assets
3135 Drainage 36,240 20,493 (15,747)
3172 Engineers 87,546 82,129 (5,417)
3241 Car Parks 50,945 48,591 (2,354)
3247 Street Names/Lights 5,000 4,286 (714)
3249 Footpath Orders (900) 155 1,055

Page 184



Current 
Budget 
2021/22

Outturn 
2021/22 Variance

3265 Dams And Fishing Ponds 3,550 2,084 (1,466)
3281 Clay Cross Depot 1,000 562 (438)
3811 Closed Circuit Television 0 270 270
4412 Midway Business Centre (67,485) (74,298) (6,813)
4425 Coney Green Business Centre (160,945) (119,027) 41,918
4519 The Avenue, Wingerworth 20,664 20,664 0
4523 Estates Administration 352,705 310,796 (41,909)
5204 Assistant Director Property, Estates & Assets 114,000 133,652 19,652
5205 Mill Lane 273,313 274,239 926
5206 Mill Lane Land 0 0 0
5209 Facilities Management 52,135 47,412 (4,723)
5210 Pioneer House (24,503) (22,402) 2,101

743,265 729,605 (13,660)

Assistant Director Economic Development, Regeneration & Housing
3165 Housing Options Team 206,401 227,180 20,779
3740 Strategic Housing 71,288 45,989 (25,299)
3745 Household Support Fund 0 0 0
3746 Homelessness Prevention Grant (154,637) (154,637) 0
3747 Homeless Temp Accomodation (14,625) (25,390) (10,765)
3748 Homelessness Grant 80,467 80,467 0
3749 Empty Properties 2,000 1,019 (981)
3750 Housing Growth 14,998 14,998 0

3754 Rough Sleepers 116,674 116,674 (0)
3759 Emergency Welfare Assistance Grant 38,308 38,308 (0)
4211 Tourism Promotions 51,284 40,165 (11,119)
4237 KickStarter Project 0 0 0
4238 Working Communities Strategy 72,743 71,273 (1,470)
4512 Growth Agenda 21,385 24,596 3,211
4517 Economic Development 162,617 105,301 (57,316)
4520 Eckington Killamarsh OPE 17,794 17,794 (0)
4521 Eckington Masterplan 29,781 29,781 0
4524 New Towns Fund - Clay Cross 2,575 2,575 0
4526 Sheffield City Region 0 (4,000) (4,000)
4527 Dronfield Civic Centre 34,528 34,528 (0)
5750 Assistant Director Economic Development, Regeneration & Housing 7,665 20,972 13,307

761,246 687,593 (73,653)

Total for Growth Directorate 1,395,709 1,257,291 (138,418)

Transformation Directorate

Director of Transformation
4600 Director of Transformation 37,918 61,122 23,204
5215 Telephones 37,370 37,354 (16)
5216 Mobile Phones and Ipads 23,110 22,346 (764)
5701 Joint ICT Service (84,991) (84,991) 0
5734 NEDDC ICT Service 453,349 437,676 (15,673)
5735 Cyber Security 3,042 3,042 0
5736 Business Development 92,621 101,198 8,577
5737 Corporate Printing Costs 15,610 14,309 (1,301)

578,029 592,058 14,029

Assistant Director Leisure
4561 Leisure Centre Management 440,494 410,687 (29,807)
4720 Sportivate 0 0 0
4722 Physical Inactivity Fund 0 84 84
4723 Generation Games 0 0 0
4724 Walking into Communities 11,000 11,101 101
4726 Walking for Health 0 0 0
4727 Five 60 0 0 0
4731 Promotion Of Recreation And Leisure 30,335 30,143 (192)
4732 Schools Promotion 0 0 0
4736 Derbyshire Sports Forum 14,450 14,450 0
4739 Coach Core Apprentices 0 0 0
4742 Arts Development 2,530 2,524 (6)
8441 Eckington Swimming Pool 334,039 196,693 (137,346)
8445 Eckington Pool Cafe (9,069) (24,789) (15,720)

Page 185



Current 
Budget 
2021/22

Outturn 
2021/22 Variance

8451 Dronfield Sports Centre 104,867 (109,249) (214,116)
8455 Dronfield Café 11,413 (14,310) (25,723)
8461 Sharley Park Sports Centre 379,399 240,727 (138,672)
8465 Sharley Park Sports Centre Outdoor (3,090) (1,969) 1,122
8471 Killamarsh Leisure Centre (39,498) (79,953) (40,455)
8475 Killamarsh Outdoors (9,389) (4,794) 4,595
8476 Killamarsh Café 4,548 0 (4,548)

1,272,029 671,346 (600,683)

Assistant Director Transformation & Communication
1255 Strategy and Performance 105,410 103,074 (2,336)
1256 Corporate Consultation 4,653 1,169 (3,484)
1315 Design & Print 109,234 107,941 (1,293)
1321 Communications & Marketing 91,124 89,404 (1,720)
1323 NEDDC News 26,400 25,977 (423)
1329 Corporate Web Site 1,000 1,081 81
1331 Strategic Partnerships 169,597 163,524 (6,073)
1332 Strategic Partnership Projects (71,004) (71,004) (0)
1333 Healthy North East Derbyshire (150,694) (150,694) (0)
3408 Home Improvement 20,985 20,836 (149)
4352 LEADER 0 0 0
4443 Elderly Peoples Clubs 4,000 698 (3,302)
5221 Customer Services 339,729 310,102 (29,627)
5223 Franking Machine 58,400 41,586 (16,814)
5785 Contributions 136,085 123,497 (12,588)
5825 Concessionary Bus Passes (10,100) (10,419) (319)

834,819 756,771 (78,048)

Total for Transformation Directorate 2,684,877 2,020,174 (664,703)

Corporate Charges
5790 Savings Target 0 0 0
0001 Recharges to Capital and HRA (570,500) (580,500) (10,000)

Total for Corporate Charges (570,500) (580,500) (10,000)

Net Cost of Services 10,909,134 10,431,061 (478,073)

Investment Properties

4411 Stonebroom Industrial Estate (58,330) (62,529) (4,199)

4413 Clay Cross Industrial Estate (80,715) (85,207) (4,492)

4415 Norwood Industrial Estate (231,590) (240,312) (8,722)

4417 Eckington Business Park (6,200) (2,713) 3,487

4418 Rotherside Court Eckington Business Unit (17,785) (8,014) 9,771

4423 Pavillion Workshops Holmewood (93,840) (94,406) (566)

4432 Miscellaneous Properties 24,783 18,937 (5,846)

Total for Investment Properties (463,677) (474,243) (10,566)

Page 186



HOUSING REVENUE INCOME - SUMMARY OUTTURN 2021/22 APPENDIX 3

A B C D E

Current 
Budget

Adjustments 
to aid 

comparison

Adjusted 
Current 
Budget Actual Variance

2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2021/22 2021/22
£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

Dwelling Rents (31,043) 0 (31,043) (31,098) (55)
Non-Dwelling Rents (428) 0 (428) (436) (8)
Charges for Services and Facilities (128) 0 (128) (117) 11
Contributions Towards Expenditure (50) 0 (50) (50) 0

Total Income (31,649) 0 (31,649) (31,701) (52)

Repairs & Maintenance 5,156 0 5,156 5,181 25
Revenue Expenditure funded from Capital (REFCUS) 0 915 915 915 0
Supervision and Management 6,326 0 6,326 6,297 (29)
Rents, Rates & Taxes 110 0 110 93 (17)
Capital Charges - Depreciation 7,765 0 7,765 7,766 1
Increase in Provision for Bad Debts 250 0 250 18 (232)
Water Litigation Liability 0 0 0 0 0
Debt Management Expenses 12 0 12 11 (1)
Impairments & Revaluations 0 (3,717) (3,717) (3,717) 0

Total Expenditure 19,619 (2,802) 16,817 16,564 (253)

Net Cost of Services (12,030) (2,802) (14,832) (15,137) (305)

Corporate & Democratic Core 186 0 186 186 0

Net Cost of all HRA services (11,844) (2,802) (14,646) (14,951) (305)

(Gain)/Loss on sale of HRA fixed assets 0 2,977 2,977 2,977 0
Interest Payable 4,847 0 4,847 4,857 10
Transfer - Pensions Reserve 0

0
Revaluation of Investment Property 0 (1,755) (1,755) (1,755) 0
Interest Receivable (7) 0 (7) (17) (10)
Capital Grants 0 (497) (497) (497) 0

(Surplus)/Deficit on HRA Services (7,004) (2,077) (9,081) (9,386) (305)

MRP Voluntary Contribution 0 0 0 0 0
Transfers to/from Rykneld Homes Loss Reserve 0 0 0 0 0
Transfer to Capital Grant Reserve 0 0 0 0 0
Transfer to HRA Reserves - Insurance 50 0 50 50 0
Transfer to HRA Reserves - Development 391 0 391 391 0
Transfer to/from HRA Reserves - Debt Repayment Reserve(2,846) 0 (2,846) (2,540) 306
Adjustments between accounting and funding basis 0 2,077 2,077 2,077 0
Transfers to/from Major Repairs Reserve 9,409 0 9,409 9,408 (1)

Transfer to HRA Balances 0 0 0 0 0

Housing Revenue Account Balances

Current 
Budget     
2021/22            

£

 Actual              
2021/22            

£

Variance        
2021/22            

£

HRA Opening Balance (3,000) (3,000) 0
Transfer fm Balances 21/22
Transfer to Balances 21/22
HRA Closing Balances (3,000) (3,000) 0

Income

Expenditure

Page 187



CAPITAL PROGRAMME - OUTTURN 2021/22 APPENDIX 4 

Project/Scheme

Current 
Programme 

2021/22
Outturn 
2021/22

Variance 
2021/22

Amount 
Carried 

Forward to 
2022/23

Original 
Programme 

2022/23

Current 
Programme 

2022/23
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Housing Investment

Housing Capital Works 12,211 10,763 (1,448) 1,448 10,824 12,272
Housing Capital Works - Non Traditional Properties 7,152 7,152 0 0 4,600 4,600
Garage Demolitions 37 0 (37) 37 23 60
Concrete Balconies 111 0 (111) 111 0 111
EWI Scheme - Heath 0 (26) (26) 0 0 0
Pine View, Danesmoor 1,007 245 (762) 762 70 832
Parking Solutions 576 3 (573) 285 288 573
Green Homes EWI - Mickley 1,110 777 (333) 333 0 333
North Wingfield New Build Scheme 2,081 120 (1,961) 1,961 0 1,961
Stock Purchase Programme 3,000 761 (2,239) 0 2,500 2,500
Acquisitions & Disposal Scheme (RHL) 500 501 1 0 500 500

27,785 20,296 (7,489) 4,937 18,805 23,742

Private Sector Spending - DFG 820 382 (438) 0 820 820

Total Housing Investment 28,605 20,678 (7,927) 4,937 19,625 24,562

Other Capital Projects
Asset Refurbishment - General 312 203 (109) 109 500 609
Eckington Depot Refurbishment 599 17 (582) 582 0 582
Roller Shutter Doors 42 6 (36) 36 0 36
Eckington Pool Carbon Efficiencies Programme 1,565 1,280 (285) 231 0 231
Killamarsh Leisure Centre Refurbishment 1,991 931 (1,060) 1,060 0 1,060
Dronfield Sports Centre Carbon Efficiencies Programme 0 0 0 0 1,380 1,380
Lottery Funded Schemes 9 0 (9) 9 0 9
Replacement Vehicles 920 469 (451) 451 2,976 3,427
Contaminated Land 42 0 (42) 42 0 42
ICT Schemes 205 37 (168) 168 248 416
CX Town Market Street Regeneration 2,000 1 (1,999) 1,999 0 1,999
CX Town Clay Cross Skills and Enterprise Hub 500 0 (500) 500 0 500
CX Town Sharley Park Active Community Hub 300 5 (295) 295 0 295
CX Town Rail Station Feasability 150 0 (150) 150 0 150
CX Town Programme Management 241 67 (174) 174 0 174
CX Acc Fund Old Constabulary 150 0 (150) 150 0 150
CX Acc Fund School Demolition 60 52 (8) 8 0 8
CX Acc Fund CX Depot Demolition 85 (1) (86) 86 0 86
CX Acc Fund Public Art Work 55 23 (32) 32 0 32
CX Acc Fund Land Assembly 10 7 (3) 3 0 3
CX Acc Fund Other 140 138 (2) 2 0 2
Loan Commitments - ECL 0 9 9 0 0 0
Section 106 Capital Expenditure 0 1,722 1,722 0 0 0

Total Other Capital Projects 9,376 4,966 (4,410) 6,087 5,104 11,191

Total Capital Expenditure 37,981 25,644 (12,337) 11,024 24,729 35,753

Housing Investment Funding
HRA Capital Investment Reserve (1,751) (222) 1,529 (1,215) (381) (1,596)
Major Repairs Reserve (19,348) (17,110) 2,238 (1,701) (15,424) (17,125)
Prudential Borrowing - HRA (3,576) (906) 2,670 (1,356) (1,800) (3,156)
External Grant (1,045) (1,546) (501) 0 0 0
Useable Capital Receipts (2,065) (512) 1,553 (665) (1,200) (1,865)

(27,785) (20,296) 7,489 (4,937) (18,805) (23,742)

Disabled Facilities Grant (820) (382) 438 0 (820) (820)

Total Housing Investment Funding (28,605) (20,678) 7,927 (4,937) (19,625) (24,562)

Other Capital Projects Funding
Useable Capital Receipts (1,141) (584) 557 (565) (2,340) (2,905)
Prudential Borrowing (3,436) (1,400) 2,036 (2,036) (1,417) (3,453)
RCCO - General Fund (42) (6) 36 (36) 0 (36)
External Grant (4,757) (2,976) 1,781 (3,450) (1,347) (4,797)
Other Capital Project Funding (9,376) (4,966) 4,410 (6,087) (5,104) (11,191)

Total Capital Financing (37,981) (25,644) 12,337 (11,024) (24,729) (35,753)

HRA Development Reserve
Opening Balance (2,382) (2,382) 0 (2,551) (2,551)
Amount due in year (391) (391) 0 (415) (415)
Amount used in year 1,751 222 (1,529) 381 1,596
Closing Balance (1,022) (2,551) (1,529) (2,585) (1,370)

Major Repairs Reserve
Opening Balance (2,174) (2,174) 0 (2,238) (2,238)
Amount due in year (17,174) (17,174) 0 (15,424) (15,424)
Amount used in year 19,348 17,110 (2,238) 15,424 17,125
Closing Balance 0 (2,238) (2,238) (2,238) (537)

Capital Receipts Reserves
Opening Balance (1,407) (1,407) 0 (2,340) (2,340)
Income expected in year (3,000) (3,428) (428) (3,000) (3,000)
Debt Repayment/Other Expenses 2,700 644 (2,056) 1,000 1,000
Amount used in year 1,141 1,851 710 2,340 2,905
Closing Balance (566) (2,340) (1,774) (2,000) (1,435)

Capital Receipts Reserves 1-4-1 receipts
Opening Balance (1,275) (1,275) 0 (763) (763)
Income expected in year (790) (1,748) (958) (1,200) (1,200)
Debt Repayment/Other Expenses 0 1,748 1,748 763 98
Amount used in year 2,065 512 (1,553) 1,200 1,865
Closing Balance 0 (763) (763) 0 0

Page 188



   

1 

 
NEDDC Treasury Management Outturn 2021/22 
 
Capital Financing Requirement 

Treasury Management is the measurement and control of the overall debt position of the 
Council.  This is calculated through the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR).  The CFR 
calculates the Council’s underlying need to borrow in order to finance its capital 
expenditure. The revised estimate of the CFR for 2021/22 and the actual outturn CFR 
are shown in the table below: - 

 
 
 

Current 
Budget 
2021/22 
£000’s 

Actual 
Outturn 
2021/22 
£000’s 

Capital Financing Requirement 1 April 2021 183,170 183,170 
Prudential Borrowing Gen Fund  – Vehicle Replacement 920 469 
Prudential Borrowing Gen Fund – Killamarsh Leisure Centre 1,991 931 
Prudential Borrowing HRA – North Wingfield Scheme 3,576 907 
Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) (636) (627) 
Net repayment of other debt  (1,972) (1,530) 
Prudential Borrowing Gen Fund - Financing of Loan to 
Rykneld Homes 

184 184 

Prudential Borrowing Gen Fund - Financing of Loan to 
Northwood Group Ltd 

3,112 3,612 

Implementation of IFRS 16 Leases 12 0 
   
Capital Financing Requirement 31 March 2022 190,357 187,116 

 
The overall final position shows a net increase in outstanding debt of £3.946m during the 
year.  
 
The Capital Financing requirement is split between the HRA and General Fund the 
balance of each is shown below: 
 

Capital Financing Requirement at 31 March 2022 £000’s 
General Fund 16,409 
Housing Revenue Account 170,707 
Total CFR 187,116 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX 5 

Page 189



   

2 

Changes to the HRA Debt Cap 
 
In October 2018 the legislation that capped the amount of HRA debt a local housing 
authority could hold was revoked with immediate effect. The capital financing 
requirements relating to the HRA will remain the same so there will still be no 
requirement for an MRP and levels of debt will be managed through prudential borrowing 
limits controlled by the Treasury Management Strategy approved by Council in February 
2020. This is to ensure that all additional borrowing is prudent and affordable within the 
context of the HRA and should include: 

 
 affordability over the life of the 30 year business plan; 
 a clear case for demand/need in the district; 
 generation of additional income. 

 
Removing the debt cap and not having a statutory requirement to make a provision to 
repay debt presents a significant risk to the HRA. Very careful treasury management is 
needed to ensure that the Council’s HRA borrowing remains affordable, prudent and 
reasonable and that the HRA remains sustainable over the long term.  
   
How the CFR is financed by the Council  
 
The CFR is the Council’s underlying need to borrow to finance capital expenditure.  To 
finance the CFR the Council has external borrowing, finance leases and the use of its 
own reserves and balances.  The position as at 31 March 2022 is as follows: 
 

 £000’s 
Capital Financing Requirement 31 March 2022 187,116 
Financed from  
External Borrowing via PWLB  147,032 
Use of internal balances and reserves 40,084 
Total Financing of CFR 187,116 

 
The table above shows that the Council is effectively under borrowing by £40.084m at 31 
March 2022.  This means that no debt charges are being incurred on £40.084m of 
borrowing but also means that the funds are not being invested in the money market.  
However, the cost of borrowing from the PWLB would incur interest charges that are 
higher than the investment interest foregone. This position is regularly monitored and 
reviewed in line with forecast interest rates. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 190



   

3 

PWLB Borrowing 
 
The Council’s total outstanding PWLB debt amounted to £149.238m at 1 April 2021.  
During 2021/22 an amount of £2.206m was repaid leaving a balance at 31 March 2022 
of £147.032m.  During 2021/22 no new loans have been taken out with the PWLB.  The 
profile of the outstanding debt is analysed as follows: - 
 

 
PWLB Interest 
 
The interest cost to the Council of the PWLB debt for 2021/22 is shown in the table 
below.  The cost is split between the HRA and General Fund based on the level of debt 
outstanding within the CFR.  
 

Date Amount Paid to PWLB 
£000’s 

Less Accrued Interest re 2020/21 (46) 
Interest Paid during 2021/22 5,229 
Plus Accrued Interest re 2021/22 44 
Total Paid 5,227 

 
Temporary Borrowing 
 
Cash flow monitoring and management serves to identify the need for short term 
borrowing to cover delays in the receipt of income during the course of the year.  No 
interest charges from short term borrowing were incurred during the year. At the 31 
March 2022 the Council had no temporary borrowing.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PWLB BORROWING 
 
Term 

Maturity Profile 31 
March 2021 

£000’s 

Maturity Profile 31 
March 2022 

£000’s 
12 Months 2,205 111 
1   -   2 years 111 4,112 
2   -   5 years 19,222 17,206 
5   -   10 years 18,470 20,466 
10  -   15 years 36,140 40,047 
Over 15 years       73,090   65,090 
Total PWLB Debt 149,238 147,032 

Page 191



   

4 

Temporary Investments 
 
The tables below detail the short term investments made at various times during the 
financial year 2021/22: - 
 

Bank Name Duration 
of Loan 

B/Fwd 
01/04/21 
£000’s 

Amount 
Invested 
2021/22 
£000’s 

Amount 
Returned 
2021/22 
£000’s 

Balance 
Invested 
31/3/22 
£000’s 

Interest 
Received  
31/3/22 
£000’s 

Federated Fund 3 Call 3,000 2 (2) 3,000 (2) 
Federated GBP 3 Call 2,000 0 (0) 2,000 (0) 
Aberdeen 
Standard 

Call 5,000 3 (3) 5,000 (3) 

CCLA Public 
Sector Deposit 
Fund 

1 Day Call 5,000 5 (5) 5,000 (5) 

Debt Management 
Account Deposit 
Facility 

Various  0 28,000 (28,000) 0 (0) 

Aviva Call 5,000 2,003 (2,003) 5,000 (3) 
Invesco Call 5,000 2 (3,002) 2,000 (2) 
JP Morgan Call 3,000 9,001 (12,001) 0 (1) 
Goldman Sachs Call 5,000 4,000 (9,000) 0 (0) 
SSGA Call 0 10,001 (5,001) 5,000 (1) 
London Borough of 
Croydon Council 

12 
months 

3,000 5 (3,005) 0 (5) 

Ashford Borough 
Council 

12 
months 

0 5,002 (2) 5,000 (2) 

Lancashire County 
Council 

12 
months 

0 5,003 (3) 5,000 (3) 

Total  36,000 63,027 (62,027) 37,000 (27) 
 
Overnight Investments 
 
The maximum amount invested with Lloyds Bank in the financial year was £4.986m. 
There has been no breach of the £5m limit set in the Treasury Management Strategy.  
 
Compliance with Treasury Limits 
 
During the financial year the Council continued to operate within the treasury limits set 
out in the Council’s Borrowing and Investment Strategy.   
 
 Actual 

2021/22 
£000’s 

Set Limits 
2021/22 
£000’s 

Authorised Limit (total Council external 
borrowing limit) 

197,116 
 

202,762 

Operational Boundary 192,116 197,761 
 

Page 192



North East Derbyshire District Council 
 

Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee 
 

29 June 2022 
 

Committee Work Programme 2022/2023 
 

Report of the Assistant Director of Governance and Monitoring Officer  
 

Classification: This report is public  
 
Report By:  Alan Maher 
 
Contact Officer: Alan Maher – 01246 217391 
 

 
PURPOSE / SUMMARY 
 
To enable the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee to review the 
Work Programme for the remainder of the municipal year 2022/2023. 
 
 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
  

1. That the Committee notes and approves the Audit and Corporate Governance 
Scrutiny Work Programme for the remainder of the 2022/2023 municipal year 
as set out in the attached Appendix 1. 

 
 

IMPLICATIONS 
 

 

Finance and Risk:   Yes☒  No ☐  

Details: 
 

Risk - the development of a Work Programme for the Audit and Corporate 

Governance Scrutiny Committee will provide an appropriate structure to assist and 

support the Committee’s work.  This will help to ensure that the Committee continues 

to operate effectively and that the Council’s governance/scrutiny and accountability 

arrangements remain robust. The Programme is designed to allow the Audit and 

Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee to continue its flexible approach to its 

and consider work the range of matters which are within its remit. There are no 

financial issues arising from the report. 

On Behalf of the Section 151 Officer 
 

 

Legal (including Data Protection):   Yes☐  No ☒  

Page 193

Agenda Item 9a



Details: 
 

There are no legal issues or Data Protection matters arising directly from this report. 

On Behalf of the Solicitor to the Council 
 

Staffing:  Yes☐  No ☒   

Details: 
 

There are no staffing issues arising from the report. 

On behalf of the Head of Paid Service 
 

 

DECISION INFORMATION 
 

Decision Information    

Is the decision a Key Decision? 
A Key Decision is an executive decision which has a 
significant impact on two or more District wards or 
which results in income or expenditure to the Council 
above the following thresholds:  
 
NEDDC:  

Revenue - £100,000 ☐  Capital - £250,000  ☐ 

☒ Please indicate which threshold applies 

No 

Is the decision subject to Call-In? 
(Only Key Decisions are subject to Call-In)  
 

No 
 

District Wards Significantly Affected 
 

None 
 

Consultation: 

Leader / Deputy Leader ☐   Cabinet  ☐ 

SAMT ☐ Relevant Service Manager ☐ 

Members ☒   Public ☐ Other ☐ 

 

Yes 
 
Details: 
Members of the Audit and 
Corporate Governance 
Scrutiny Committee 
 

 

Links to Council Ambition (NED) priorities or Policy Framework including 
Climate Change, Equalities, and Economics and Health implications. 

None.  

 
 

Page 194



REPORT DETAILS 
 
1 Background  
 
1.1 The Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee considers a range of 

financial and governance issues on a regular basis.  Given the number of 
matters that are examined by the Committee it is appropriate that an Annual 
Work Programme continues to be in place.  

 
1.2 The Work Programme is set out in the attached Appendix 1. It should be 

recognised that the work plan is a live document to which matters may be added 
or removed as appropriate and approved by the Committee, including standing 
items.  

 
1.3 The Work Programme enables Members to give structured consideration as to 

whether the proposed agenda items are appropriate and serve to meet the 
objectives of the Committee.  That question needs to be considered in the light 
of the Council’s Constitution, Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy (CIPFA) Guidance on the role of an Audit Committee and 
established good practice. 

 
2. Details of Proposal or Information 
 
2.1 To enable the Audit and Corporate Governance Scrutiny Committee to review 

the Work Programme for the remainder of the municipal year 2022/23. 
 
3 Reasons for Recommendation  
 
3.1 To enable the Committee to consider the Work Programme for the remainder 

of the 2021/22 municipal year. 
 
4 Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 There are no other options proposed. 
 
DOCUMENT INFORMATION 
 

Appendix No 
 

Title 

1 
 

Committee Work Programme 2022/23 

Background Papers (These are unpublished works which have been relied on to a 
material extent when preparing the report.  They must be listed in the section below.  
If the report is going to Cabinet (NEDDC) you must provide copies of the 
background papers) 
Click here to enter text. 

 
 

 
 
  

Page 195



Appendix 1 

AUDIT AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE: PROPOSED 

WORK PROGRAMME  

DATE OF MEETING ITEM 

29 June 2022  Car Parking on Council owned housing estates 

 Internal Audit Annual Report 

 Internal Audit Progress Report 

 CIPFA – Internal Audit Untapped Potential (for 
information) 

 External Audit Strategy Memorandum 

 Risk Management update 

 Medium Term Financial Plan – Outturn 

 Review of Work Programme 
 

27 July 2022  S106 Update 

 External Audit Strategy Memorandum  

 Performance Management  

 Corporate Debt  

 Financial Monitoring  
 

28 September 2022  

 Internal Audit Progress Update 

 Monitoring the Implementation of Internal Audit 
Recommendations 

 Review of the Internal Audit Charter 

 Annual Statement of Accounts and Going Concern 
Report 2020-21 

 Annual Governance Statement and Code of Corporate 
Governance 2020/21 

 Audit Completion Report 2020/21 

 Letter of Representation 2020/21 

 Report of the External Auditor – Progress report and 
Technical Update  

 Review of Work Programme 
 

09 November 2022 

 

 Internal Audit Progress Update  

 Performance Management  

 Risk Management 

 Corporate Debt  

 Financial Monitoring 

 Report of the External Auditor – Progress report and 
Technical Update  

 Evaluate the Effectiveness of the Audit and Corporate 
Governance Committee  

 Review of Work Programme 
 

Page 196



18 January 2023  Medium Term Financial Plan 2022/23 - 2025/26 

 Treasury Management Strategies 2022/23 – 2025/26 

 Internal Audit Progress Update  

 Report of the External Auditor – Progress report and 
Technical Update  

 Review of Work Programme 
 
 

15 February 2023  

 Internal Audit Progress Update  

 Monitoring the Implementation of Internal Audit 
Recommendations  

 Report of the External Auditor – Progress report and 
Technical Update  

 Performance Management  

 Financial Monitoring  

 Corporate Debt 

 Proposed Accounting Policies 2022/23 

 Review of Work Programme  

 Risk Management  

 Report of the External Auditor – Progress report and 
Technical Update  
 

10 May 2023  Annual Review of Effectiveness of Internal Audit  

 Internal Audit Progress Update  

 Report of the External Auditor – Audit Plan 2022/23 

 Report of the External Auditor – Progress report and 
Technical Update 

 Internal Audit Plan 2023/24 

 Work Programme 

 
 
 
 

Page 197



AUDIT AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE: PROPOSED 

WORK PROGRAMME  

DATE OF MEETING ITEM 

29 June 2022  Car Parking on Council owned housing estates 

 Internal Audit Annual Report 

 Internal Audit Progress Report 

 CIPFA – Internal Audit Untapped Potential (for 
information) 

 External Audit Strategy Memorandum 

 Risk Management update 

 Medium Term Financial Plan – Outturn 

 Review of Work Programme 
 

27 July 2022  S106 Update 

 External Audit Strategy Memorandum  

 Performance Management  

 Corporate Debt  

 Financial Monitoring  
 

28 September 2022  

 Internal Audit Progress Update 

 Monitoring the Implementation of Internal Audit 
Recommendations 

 Review of the Internal Audit Charter 

 Annual Statement of Accounts and Going Concern 
Report 2020-21 

 Annual Governance Statement and Code of Corporate 
Governance 2020/21 

 Audit Completion Report 2020/21 

 Letter of Representation 2020/21 

 Report of the External Auditor – Progress report and 
Technical Update  

 Review of Work Programme 
 

09 November 2022 

 

 Internal Audit Progress Update  

 Performance Management  

 Risk Management 

 Corporate Debt  

 Financial Monitoring 

 Report of the External Auditor – Progress report and 
Technical Update  

 Evaluate the Effectiveness of the Audit and Corporate 
Governance Committee  

 Review of Work Programme 
 

18 January 2023  Medium Term Financial Plan 2022/23 - 2025/26 

Page 198



 Treasury Management Strategies 2022/23 – 2025/26 

 Internal Audit Progress Update  

 Report of the External Auditor – Progress report and 
Technical Update  

 Review of Work Programme 
 
 

15 February 2023  

 Internal Audit Progress Update  

 Monitoring the Implementation of Internal Audit 
Recommendations  

 Report of the External Auditor – Progress report and 
Technical Update  

 Performance Management  

 Financial Monitoring  

 Corporate Debt 

 Proposed Accounting Policies 2022/23 

 Review of Work Programme  

 Risk Management  

 Report of the External Auditor – Progress report and 
Technical Update  
 

10 May 2023  Annual Review of Effectiveness of Internal Audit  

 Internal Audit Progress Update  

 Report of the External Auditor – Audit Plan 2022/23 

 Report of the External Auditor – Progress report and 
Technical Update 

 Internal Audit Plan 2023/24 

 Work Programme 

 
 
 

Page 199


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Last Meeting
	4a Car Parking Strategy
	5 Report of the External Auditors - Mazars
	6a Internal Audit Annual Report
	JW - Annual Report Appendix 1 Reports issued 2021.22
	JW - Annual Report Appendix 2 Comparison of Planned work to work completed
	JW - Annual Report Appendix 3 Internal Audit Consortium Quality Assurance Programme

	6b Internal Audit Progress Report
	JW - IAProgress Report Appendix 1 Reports Issued_
	JW - IAProgress Report Appendix 2 Assurance Definitions
	JW - IAProgress Report Appendix 3  Digital Transformation Report

	6c CIPFA Publication - Internal Audit Untapped Potential
	JW - CIPFA Appendix 1 Internal audit untapped potentential
	Executive summary
	Identifying the impact of internal audit
	How internal audit is making an impact
	The potential for internal audit 
	What is holding internal audit back? 
	Appendix€A: The framework for internal audit impact
	Appendix€B: Maximising the impact of internal audit
	Appendix€C: References and literature considered in our research
	Appendix D: Research methodology



	7a Risk Management
	LH - Appendix Strategic Risk Register as at 14 June 22

	8a Medium Term Financial Plan Outturn
	JD Appendix - Merged Report - Cabinet Outturn 21-22 appendices

	9a Committee Work Programme
	Audit & CG Work Programme 2022-23


	Next button 3: 
	Page 2: 

	Previous 3: 
	Page 2: 

	Home 3: 
	Page 2: 

	Next button 2: 
	Page 3: 

	Previous 2: 
	Page 3: 

	Home 2: 
	Page 3: 

	Next button 4: 
	Page 4: 

	Previous 4: 
	Page 4: 

	Home 4: 
	Page 4: 

	Next button 5: 
	Page 5: 
	Page 9: 
	Page 12: 
	Page 17: 
	Page 26: 

	Previous 5: 
	Page 5: 
	Page 9: 
	Page 12: 
	Page 17: 
	Page 26: 

	Home 5: 
	Page 5: 
	Page 9: 
	Page 12: 
	Page 17: 
	Page 26: 

	Next button: 
	Page 6: 
	Page 7: 
	Page 8: 
	Page 10: 
	Page 11: 
	Page 13: 
	Page 14: 
	Page 15: 
	Page 16: 
	Page 18: 
	Page 19: 
	Page 20: 
	Page 21: 
	Page 22: 
	Page 23: 
	Page 24: 
	Page 25: 
	Page 27: 
	Page 28: 
	Page 29: 
	Page 30: 
	Page 31: 
	Page 32: 
	Page 33: 
	Page 34: 
	Page 35: 
	Page 36: 
	Page 37: 
	Page 38: 
	Page 39: 
	Page 40: 
	Page 41: 
	Page 42: 
	Page 43: 
	Page 44: 
	Page 45: 
	Page 46: 
	Page 47: 
	Page 48: 
	Page 49: 
	Page 50: 
	Page 51: 
	Page 52: 
	Page 53: 
	Page 54: 
	Page 55: 
	Page 56: 
	Page 57: 

	Previous: 
	Page 6: 
	Page 7: 
	Page 8: 
	Page 10: 
	Page 11: 
	Page 13: 
	Page 14: 
	Page 15: 
	Page 16: 
	Page 18: 
	Page 19: 
	Page 20: 
	Page 21: 
	Page 22: 
	Page 23: 
	Page 24: 
	Page 25: 
	Page 27: 
	Page 28: 
	Page 29: 
	Page 30: 
	Page 31: 
	Page 32: 
	Page 33: 
	Page 34: 
	Page 35: 
	Page 36: 
	Page 37: 
	Page 38: 
	Page 39: 
	Page 40: 
	Page 41: 
	Page 42: 
	Page 43: 
	Page 44: 
	Page 45: 
	Page 46: 
	Page 47: 
	Page 48: 
	Page 49: 
	Page 50: 
	Page 51: 
	Page 52: 
	Page 53: 
	Page 54: 
	Page 55: 
	Page 56: 
	Page 57: 

	Home: 
	Page 6: 
	Page 7: 
	Page 8: 
	Page 10: 
	Page 11: 
	Page 13: 
	Page 14: 
	Page 15: 
	Page 16: 
	Page 18: 
	Page 19: 
	Page 20: 
	Page 21: 
	Page 22: 
	Page 23: 
	Page 24: 
	Page 25: 
	Page 27: 
	Page 28: 
	Page 29: 
	Page 30: 
	Page 31: 
	Page 32: 
	Page 33: 
	Page 34: 
	Page 35: 
	Page 36: 
	Page 37: 
	Page 38: 
	Page 39: 
	Page 40: 
	Page 41: 
	Page 42: 
	Page 43: 
	Page 44: 
	Page 45: 
	Page 46: 
	Page 47: 
	Page 48: 
	Page 49: 
	Page 50: 
	Page 51: 
	Page 52: 
	Page 53: 
	Page 54: 
	Page 55: 
	Page 56: 
	Page 57: 



